January 29, 2024

To,

The National Stock Exchange of India Ltd.

Exchange Plaza,

Plot No. C/1, G- Block,
Bandra Kurla Complex,
Bandra (E), Mumbai- 400051.

Scrip Symbol “MINDSPACE” (Units)

BUSINESS PARKS REIT

BSE Limited

Phiroze Jeejeebhoy Towers,
Dalal Street,

Mumbai- 400001

Scrip Code “543217” (Units) and

Scrip Code “973069”, “973070”, “973754”,
“974075”, “974668”, “974882” and “975068”
(Debentures) and Scrip Code: “726151”

(Commercial Paper)

Subject: Outcome of the meeting of the Board of Directors of K Raheja Corp Investment Managers Private
Limited, Manager to Mindspace Business Parks REIT, held on January 29, 2024.

Dear Sir / Madam,

We wish to inform you that the Board of Directors (“Board”) of K Raheja Corp Investment Managers Private
Limited (“Manager”), Manager to Mindspace Business Parks REIT (“Mindspace REIT”) at its meeting held on
January 29, 2024, has, inter-alia:

1. considered and approved the unaudited condensed standalone interim financial statements and
unaudited condensed consolidated interim financial statements of Mindspace REIT for the quarter and
nine months ended December 31, 2023, and taken on record the limited review report thereon, with
an unmodified opinion by the statutory auditors of the Mindspace REIT.

2. approved distribution of Rs. 4.80/- per unit aggregating to Rs. 2846 million, which comprises dividend of
Rs. 4.29/-per unit aggregating to Rs. 2544 million, interest of Rs. 0.50/- per unit aggregating to Rs. 297
million and other income of Rs.0.01/- per unit aggregating to Rs. 6 million.

3. took note of revised Net Distributable Cash Flow(“NDCF”) framework prescribed by SEBI vide circular
no. SEBI/HO/DDHS/DDHS-PoD/P/CIR/2023/184 dated December 6, 2023.

4, approved proposed acquisition and term sheet to be entered in relation to the said acquisition of
certain units admeasuring leasable area of ~0.04 million sq.ft (42,000 sq.ft) in Commerzone Yerwada
Park, situated at Yerwada, Samrat Ashok Path, Off Airport Road, Pune by Mindspace Business Parks
Private Limited, one of the Asset SPVs of Mindspace REIT, for a consideration Rs 410 million adjusted
for any outstanding liabilities, plus related transaction costs, subject to ongoing diligence and on such
other terms and conditions as may be mutually agreed by and between the parties.

K Raheja Corp Investment Managers Private Limited
(acting as the Manager to Mindspace Business Parks REIT)
Corporate Identification Number (CIN): U68200MH2023PTC406104
Regd. Office: Raheja Tower, C-30, Block ‘G’, Bandra Kurla Complex, Bandra (E), Mumbai — 400 051
Phone: +91 — 22- 2656 4000 | www.mindspacereit.com



BUSINESS PARKS REIT

approved the initiation and associated matters in relation to the process of divestment of land parcel
admeasuring approximately 26 acres along with the structures thereon at Mindspace Pocharam,
situated at Pocharam Village, Ghatkesar Madal, Range Reddy District, Telangana. On conclusion of
the process, a detailed proposal shall be placed before the Board for its consideration.

approved certain amendments to the following agreements:

Support Services Agreement dated June 29, 2020, entered between K Raheja Corp Investment
Managers LLP (now known as K Raheja Corp Investment Managers Private Limited) and K Raheja
Corporate Services Private Limited (now to be entered with K Raheja Corp Real Estate Private
Limited).

Property Management and Support Services Agreement dated June 29, 2020, entered between K.
Raheja Corp Investment Managers LLP (now known as K Raheja Corp Investment Managers Private
Limited) and Asset SPVs of Mindspace Business Parks REIT

Support Services Agreement dated March 21, 2017, entered between K Raheja Corporate Services
Private Limited (now to be entered with K. Raheja Corp Real Estate Private Limited) and Asset SPVs.
Facility Management Agreement dated June 29, 2020 entered between KRC Infrastructure and
Projects Private Limited (“KRC Infra”) and the Asset SPVs (other than KRC Infra) of Mindspace
Business Parks REIT

Further, we have enclosed: -

Unaudited condensed standalone interim financial statements and unaudited condensed
consolidated interim financial statements of Mindspace REIT for the quarter and nine month
ended December 31, 2023 and taken on record the limited review reports thereon, with an
unmodified opinion by the statutory auditors of the Mindspace REIT pursuant to Regulations 51,
52 and 54 read with Para A of Part B of Schedule Ill of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (“Listing Regulations”) and other regulations, if applicable; as
Annexure-1.

In accordance with Regulation 52 of the SEBI LODR Regulations, Mindspace REIT would be publishing the
Unaudited Consolidated Financial Results for the quarter and nine months ended December 31, 2023 in the
newspapers.

We also wish to inform you that the record date for the distribution to unitholders for the quarter ended
December 31, 2023, will be February 6, 2024, and the payment of distribution will be made on or before
February 13, 2024.

K Raheja Corp Investment Managers Private Limited
(acting as the Manager to Mindspace Business Parks REIT)
Corporate Identification Number (CIN): U68200MH2023PTC406104

Regd. Office: Raheja Tower, C-30, Block ‘G’, Bandra Kurla Complex, Bandra (E), Mumbai — 400 051

Phone: +91 — 22- 2656 4000 | www.mindspacereit.com



BUSINESS PARKS REIT

The above information shall also be made available on Mindspace REIT's website at-
https://www.mindspacereit.com/investor-relations/stock-exchange-filings.

Please take the same on your record.
Thanking you,

Yours sincerely,
For K Raheja Corp Investment Managers Private Limited
(Formerly known as K Raheja Corp Investment Managers LLP)

(acting as Manager to Mindspace Business Parks REIT)
Digitally signed by BHARAT

BHARAT KANAKLAL  kaNAKLAL SANGHAVI
SANGHAV' Date: 2024.01.29 16:56:48

+05'30"

Bharat Sanghavi
Company Secretary and Compliance Officer
Membership No.: A13157

Encl: as above

K Raheja Corp Investment Managers Private Limited
(acting as the Manager to Mindspace Business Parks REIT)
Corporate Identification Number (CIN): U68200MH2023PTC406104
Regd. Office: Raheja Tower, C-30, Block ‘G’, Bandra Kurla Complex, Bandra (E), Mumbai — 400 051
Phone: +91 — 22- 2656 4000 | www.mindspacereit.com



Annexure-1

Chartered Accountants
Lotus Corporate Park

1st Floor, Wing A-G

CTS No. 185/A, Jay Coach

Off Western Express Highway
Goregaon (East)

Mumbai-400 063
Maharashtra, India

Tel: +91 22 6245 1000
Fax: +91 22 6245 1001

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’'S REPORT ON REVIEW OF CONDENSED STANDALONE INTERIM
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

To

The Board of Directors,

K Raheja Corp Investment Managers Private Limited (formerly known as K Raheja Corp Investment
Managers LLP) (The “Investment Manager”)

(Acting in capacity as the Investment Manager of Mindspace Business Parks REIT)

Introduction

1. We have reviewed the accompanying unaudited Condensed Standalone Interim Financial Statements
of MINDSPACE BUSINESS PARKS REIT (the "REIT”), which comprise the unaudited Condensed
Standalone Balance Sheet as at December 31, 2023, the unaudited Condensed Standalone
Statement of Profit and Loss, including other comprehensive income, the unaudited Condensed
Standalone Statement of Cash Flow for quarter and nine months ended December 31, 2023, the
unaudited Condensed Standalone Statement of changes in Unitholders’ Equity for the nine months
ended December 31, 2023, and the unaudited Statement of Net Distributable Cash Flow for the
quarter and nine months ended December 31, 2023, as an additional disclosure in accordance with
paragraph 4.6 of Chapter 4 to the Security Exchange Board of India (SEBI) Master Circular No.
SEBI/HO/DDHS-PoD-2/P/CIR/2023/116 dated July 06, 2023 (“SEBI Circular”) along with summary
of the material accounting policies and select explanatory notes (together hereinafter referred as the
“Condensed Standalone Interim Financial Statements”).

2. The Condensed Standalone Interim Financial Statements, which is the responsibility of the
Investment Manager and approved by the Board of Directors of the Investment Manager, have been
prepared in accordance with the requirements of SEBI (Real Estate Investment Trusts) Regulations,
2014 as amended from time to time read with Master Circular No. SEBI/HO/DDHS-PoD-
2/P/CIR/2023/116 dated July 06, 2023 ("SEBI REIT Regulations”); Regulation 52 and Regulation 54
of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (“Listing
Regulations”); Indian Accounting Standard (Ind AS) 34 “Interim Financial Reporting”, as prescribed
in Rule 2(1)(a) of the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 (as amended) and other
accounting principles generally accepted in India, to the extent not inconsistent with the SEBI REIT
Regulations. Our responsibility is to express a conclusion on the Condensed Standalone Interim
Financial Statements based on our review.

Scope of review

3. We conducted our review in accordance with the Standard on Review Engagements (SRE) 2410
‘Review of Interim Financial Information Performed by the Independent Auditor of the Entity’, issued
by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI). A review of interim financial information
consists of making inquiries, primarily of the Investment Manager’'s personnel responsible for
financial and accounting matters and applying analytical and other review procedures. A review is
substantially less in scope than an audit conducted in accordance with Standards on Auditing issued
by ICAI and consequently does not enable us to obtain assurance that we would become aware of
all significant matters that might be identified in an audit. Accordingly, we do not express an audit

opinion.
=

Regd. Office: One 32nd floor, Senapati Bapat Marg, Elphinstone Road (West), Mumbai-400 013, Maharashtra, India.
Deloitte Haskins & Sells ited Liability having LLP identification No: AAB-8737
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Conclusion

4. Based on our review conducted and procedures performed as stated in paragraph 3 above, nothing
has come to our attention that causes us to believe that the accompanying Condensed Standalone
Interim Financial Statements have not been prepared in accordance with SEBI REIT Regulations, Ind
AS 34 “Interim Financial Reporting”, as prescribed in Rule 2(1)(a) of the Companies (Indian
Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 (as amended) and other accounting principles generally accepted
in India, to the extent not inconsistent with the SEBI REIT Regulations and has not disclosed the
information required to be disclosed in terms of the Listing Regulations, including the manner in
which it is to be disclosed or that it contains any material misstatement.

Emphasis of matter

5. We draw attention to Note 13(a) of the Condensed Standalone Interim Financial Statements, which
describes the presentation of “Unit Capital” as “Equity” to comply with the SEBI REIT Regulations.
Our conclusion is not modified in respect of this matter.

For DELOITTE HASKINS & SELLS LLP
Chartered Accountants
(Firm's Registration No. 117366W/W-100018)

nd A "\"

r !I '1

j*\hf{

Nilesh Shah
Partner

Membership No. 49660
Mumbai, January 29, 2024 UDIN: 2Yoyg( (0 BKFFBH2)




Mindspace Business Park REIT
RN:IM!REIT{IE—JD{UDE

Condensed Standalone Interim Balance Sheet

(all amounts are in Rs. million unless otherwise stated)

Particuiars Note As at As at
31 December 2023 31 March 2023
(Unaudited) (Audited)
ASSETS
Non-current assets
Financial assets
- Investments 4 1,53,103 1,53,103
- Loans 5 30,453 29,879
- Other financial assets 6 22 564
Other non-current assets 7 11 2
Total non-current assets 1,83,589 1,83,548
Current assets
Financial assets
- Loans 8 10,881 1,980
- Cash and cash equivalents 9 3,044 2,984
- Others financial assets 10 826 4
Other current assets 11 19 8
Total current asseis 14,770 4976
Total assets 1,98,359 1,88,524
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
EQUITY
Carpus 12 0 0
Unit capital 13 1,62,839 1,62,839
Other equity 14 3.386 3,202
Total equity 1,66,225 1,66,041
LIABILITIES
Non-current liabilities
Financial liabilities
- Borrowings 15 20,404 19,892
- Other financial liabilities 16 26 540
Total non-current liabilities 20,430 20.432
Current liabilities
Financial liabilities
- Borrowings 17 10,925 1,996
- Trade payables 18
- total outstanding dues of micro and small enterprises 1 1
- total outstanding dues of creditors other than 8 16
micro and small enterprise
- Other financial liabilities 19 766 29
Other current liabilities 20 3 7
Current tax liabilities (net) 21 1 2
Total current liabilities 11,704 2,051
Total liabilities 32,134 22,483
Total equity and liabilities 1,98,359 1,88,524
Material accounting policies 3

See the accompanying notes to the condensed standalone

interim financial statements
As per our report of even date attached
For Deloitte Haskins & Sells LLP

Chartered Accountants

Firm'’s registration number: 117366W/W-100018
A
v

Nilesh Shah
Partner
Membership number: 49660

Place: Mumbai
Date : 29 January 2024

S ,,
\N | C. Rafieja

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
K Raheja Corp Investment Managers Private Limited

:_{acnﬁ\g as the Manager to Mindspace Business Parks REIT)

: 2.0}
] T — g .
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/k .,/T_
Ramesh Nair

Dirgctor Chief Executive Officer

DIN: 010029010

Place: Mumbai
Date : 29 January 2024

Place: Mumbai
Date : 29 January 2024

_ (Formerly known as K Raheja Corp Investment Managers LLP)
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ﬂ -
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Preeti N. Chheda
Chief Financial Officer

Place: Mumbai
Date : 29 January 2024
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Mindspace Business Park REIT
RM:AN/REITS19-20/003

Condensed Standal Interim St of Cash Flows
[all amounts are in Rs. million unless otherwise stated}

Particulars For the quarter For the quarter  For the quarter ended For the nine months For the nine months  For the year ended
ended ended ended ended
31 December 2023 30 September 2023 31 December 2022 31 December 2023 31 December 2022 31 March 2023
{Unaudited)* {Unaudited}* {Unaudited)* {Unaudited) {Unaudited) {Audited)
A Cash flows from operating activities
Profit before tax 2,927 2,880 2,918 8,731 8,559 11,509
Adjustments for:
Interest income (935) (850) (584) {2,530) (1,516) {2,123)
Dividend Income (2,640) (2,612) (2,672) (7,906) (7,954) (10,662)
Guarantee commission fees 2) (1) {4) (4) {13) (16)
Gain on redemption of mutual fund units {2) 2) {6) {12) (15) (21)
Finance costs 617 539 306 1,604 804 1,138
Operating profit before working capital changes (35) (47) {42) {117) {135) {174)
Mavement in working capital
{Increase) / Decrease in other financial assets and other assets 2 (12) 4 (24) (15) {15)
(Decrease) / Increase in financial and other liabilities (2) 16 4 17 5 o
(Decrease) / Increase in trade payables {1} (1) (1) (8) (1) 7
Cash (used in) / generated from operations {36} {43} {35) {132) (145) {182)
Income tax paid (net) (3) (3) {5) {8) {10] {17)
Net cash (used in) / generated from operating activities (A) {39) {46) (40} {140) {155) {199)
B Cash flows from investing activities
Loans repaid by SPV 9,270 6,205 5,915 25,210 31,775 45,025
Loans given to SPVs (8,746) (11,154) {6,958) (34,685) (32,797} (50,615)
Maturity proceeds of fixed deposits - - - - 806 806
Investment in fixed deposit - - - - (800) (800)
investment in Mutual Fund (910} {729) {4,180) (6,329) (8,316) {13,309)
Proceeds from redemption of mutual fund 912 731 4,186 6,341 8,331 13,330
Dividend Received 2,640 2,612 2,672 7,906 7,954 10,662
Interest received 240 760 504 2,254 1,856 2,388
Net cash {used in) / generated from investing activities (8} 4,006 {1,615) 2,140 697 8,809 7,487
€ Cash flows from financing activities
Proceeds from issue of Commercial Paper 1,446 =3 983 1,446 983 983
Redemption of Commercial Paper . - - * {983)
Proceeds from issue of debentures - 5,000 - 10,000 5,000 10,500
Redemption of debentures {2,000) - - {2,000) {5,000) (5,000)
Distribution to unit holders (2,841) (2,346) (2,817) (8,539) (8,362) {11,208)
Recovery Expense Fund Deposits - . {1) 1) (1)
Interest paid (530) (455) (225) (1,348) (1,094) (1,351)
Debentures issue expenses {7} {26) - {55) 26| (58]
Net cash [used in) / generated from financing activities {C} {3,932) 1,672 (2,059} (497) (8,500} (7,118)
Net {decrease} / increase in cash and cash equivalents 35 ii 41 60 154 170
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the period /
year 3,009 2.998 2,927 2,984 2,814 2,814
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the period / year 3,044 3,009 2,968 3,044 2,968 2,984
Cash and cash equivalents comprise:
Cash on hand - - 0 0 -
Balance with banks
-in current accounts 3,044 3,009 2,968 3,044 2,968 2,984
- in escrow accounts - - - E .
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the period / year {refer
note 9} 3,044 3,009 2,968 3,044 2,968 2,984
=Sacaly
Material accounting policies 3
See the accompanying notes to the condensed standalone
interim financial statements. 4-36

*refer note 33
As per our report of even date attached.

For Deloitte Haskins & Sells LLP
Chartered Accountants

Firm'’s registration number: 117366W/W-100018

MW

Nilesh Shah
Partner
Membership number: 49660

Place: Mumbai
Date : 29 lanuary 2024

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of

K Raheja C_Dr'p Investment Managers Private Limited
[Fgrmerly known as K Raheja Corp Investment Managers LLP}
{aitirr:g as the 'Mafﬁﬂer to Mindspace Business Parks REIT)

\ \ Qi ez 4 ﬁ"’ /J
\\ ya jiazf for

mesh Nair  *
Chief Executive Officer

DiNsponzdain

Place: Mumbai
Date : 29 January 2024

Place: Mumbai
Date: 29 January 2024

Place: Mumbai
Date : 29 January 2024

/M’“ hdrr—

Preeti N. Chheda
Chief Financial Officer



Mindspace Business Park REIT

Condensed Standalone Interim Statement of Changes in Unit holder's Equity
{all amounts are in Rs. Millions unless otherwise stated)

Corpus
Particulars
Balance as on 1 April 2022
Add : Changes during the year
Balance as on 31 March 2023
Balance as on 1 April 2023
Add : duri  the
as at 31 December 2023

Bafance as on 1 April 2022
Add : Changes during the period
Closing balance as at 31 December 2022

Unit Canital

Particulars

Balance as on 1 April 2022

Add : Changes during the year

Balance as on 31 March 2023

Balance as on 1 April 2023

Add : Chanees during the period

Closing balance as at 31 December 2023

Balance as on 1 April 2022

Other equity
Particulars

Balance as on 1 April 2022

Profit for the year

Other comprehensive income for the year

Less: Distribution to Unit holders for the quarter ended 31 March 2022*
Less: Distribution to Unit holders for the quarter ended 30 lune 2022*

Less: Distribution to Unit holders for the quarter ended 30 September 2022*
Less: Distribution to Unit holders for the auarter ended 31 December 2022*
Balance at 31 March 2023

Balance as on 1 April 2023

Profit for the period

Other comprehensive income for the period

Less: Distribution to Unit holders for the quarter ended 31 March 2023*
Less: Distribution ta Unit holders for the quarter ended 30 June 2023*

Less: Distribution to Unitholders for the quarter ended 30 September 2023*
Bafance at 31 December 2023

Balance as on 1 April 2022

Profit for the period

Other comprehensive income for the period

Less: Distribution to Unit holders for the quarter ended 31 March 2022*
Less: Distribution to Unit holders for the quarter ended 30 June 2022*
Less: Distribution to Unit holders for the auarter ended 30 Seotember
Balance at 31 December 2022

Amount
0

Amount
1,62,839

1.62.839
1,62,839

1.62,839

1,62,839

Retained Earnings

2,920
11,492

(2,734)
(2,811)
(2,817)
(2 846)
3,202
3,202
8,724

(2,852)
(2,846)
(2,841)
3.386

2,920
8,545

(2,734)
(2,811)
{2.817)
3,103

*The distributions made by Mindspace REIT to its Unit holders are based on the Net Distributable Cash flows (NDCF) of Mindspace REIT under the

REIT Regulations.
See the accompanying notes to the condensed standalone 4-36
interim financial statements.

As per our report of even date attached.

For Deloltte Haskins & Selis LLP

Chartered Accountants

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
K Raheja Corp Investment Managers Private Limited

known as K Raheja Corp Investment Managers LLP)

Firm'’s registration number: 117366W/W-100018 the Manager to Parks REIT)

Nilesh Shah Ramesh Nair . Preet| N. Chheda
Partner Chief Executive Officer Chief Financial Officer
Membership number: 49660

Place: Mumbai Place: Mumbai Place: Mumbai Place: Mumbai

Date : 29 January 2024 Date : 29 January 2024  Date: 29 January 2024 Date : 29 January 2024

A



{all amounts in Rs. million unless otherwise stated)
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Description

Cash flows received from Asset SPVs including but
not limited to:

interest

dividends (net of applicable taxes)

repayment of REIT Funding

proceeds from buy-backs/ capital reduction
(net of applicable taxes)

redemption proceeds from preference shares
or any other similar instrument

Add: Proceeds from sale of investments, assets,
sale of shares of Asset SPVs, liquidation of any other
asset or investment (incl. cash equivalents) or any
form of fund raise at Mindspace REIT level adjusted
for the following:

applicable capital gains and other taxes, if
any

debts settled or due to be settled from sale
proceeds
transaction costs

proceeds re-invested or planned to be
reinvested in accordance with the REIT regulations

any acquisition

investments as permitted under the REIT
regulations

lending to Asset SPVs

as may be deemed necessary by the Manager

Add: Proceeds from sale of investments, assets or
sale of shares of Asset SPVs not distributed
pursuant to an earlier plan to re-invest in
accordance with the REIT Regulations, if such
proceeds are not intended to be invested
subsegquently

Add: Any other income received by Mindspace REIT
not captured herein

Less: Any other expenses paid by Mindspace REIT
not captured herein

Less: Any expense in the nature of capital
expenditure at Mindspace REIT level

Less: Net debt repayment / (drawdown),
redemption of preference shares / debentures / any
other such instrument / premiums / any other
obligations / liabilities, etc., as maybe deemed
necessary by the Manager

Add/Less: Other adjustments, including but not
limited to net changes in security deposits, working
capital, etc., as may be deemed necessary by the
Manager

Less: Interest paid on external debt borrowing at
Mindspace REIT level

Less: Income tax and other taxes (if applicable) at
the Standalone Mindspace REIT level

Net Distributable Cash Flows (NDCF)

A

For the quarter
ended

31 December
2023
{Unaudited)

2,640

5,906

(3,926)

(12)

(2,000)

(45)

(530)

(3)

2,872

For the quarter
ended

30 September 2023

(Unaudited)

760
2,612

7,124

(7,124)

(14)

(46)

(455}

3)

2,855

For the quarter
ended

For the nine
months ended

31 December 31 December 2023

2022
{Unaudited)

504
2,672

3,743

(3,743)

)

(88)

{225)

(5)

2,855

{Unaudited)

2,254
7,906

24,715

(22,735)

12

(37)

{2,000)

(169)

(1,348)

(8)

8.590

For the nine
months ended

31 December 2022

{Unaudited)

1,856
7,954

27,839

(26)

(22,813)

25

(24)

(5,000)

(213)

{1,094)

(10

8.494

For the year ended

31 March 2023

(Audited)

2,388
10,662

43,449

(26)

(37,440)

31

(34)

(5,983)

(324)

(1,351)

17)

11,355
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Mindspace Business Park REIT
RN:IN/REIT/19-20/003

Met Distributable Cash Flows (NDCF) pursuant to guidance under Chapter 3, Paragraph 3.20 ta SEBI master circular no. SEBI/HO/DDHS-PoD-2/P/CIR/2023/116

(all amounts in Rs. million unless otherwise stated)

Notes:

The Board of Directors of the Manager to the Trust, in their meeting held on 29 January 2023, has declared distribution to unitholders of Rs 4.80 per unit which aggregates to Rs. 2,846 million for
the quarter ended 31 December 2023. The distributions of Rs 4.80 per unit comprises Rs. 4.29 per unit in the form of dividend, Rs. 0.50 per unit in the form of interest payment and Rs. 0.01 per

unit in the form of other income.

unit,

Repayment of REIT funding which is further lent to SPVs has been captured under "Liquidation of assets"
Lending to and repayment from SPVs within the same period has been adjusted under "Other Adjustments" and includes loan given by REIT to SPV out of surplus funds or repayment of such loans.

NDCF is calculated on quarterly basis and amount presented for the nine months and year end is mathematical summation of quarterly numbers.

As per our report of even date attached:
For Deloitte Haskins & Sells LLP

Chartered Accountants

Firm’s registration number: 117366W/W-100018

/\Jw\fix\_/

Nilesh Shah

Partner
Membership number: 49660

Place: Mumbai
Date : 29 January 2024

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of

K Raheja Corp Investment Managers Private Limited
(Rarmerly known as K Raheja Corp Investment Managers LLP)
{Lchng a4 the Manager to Mindspace Business Parks REIT)

Czéar;l_esh Na{
Dirgcthy Chief Executive Officer
DIN: 00023010
Place: Mumbai Place: Mumbai
Date : 29 January 2024 Date : 29 lanuary 2024

Along with the distribution of Rs. 9.59 per unit for the half year ended 30 September 2023, the cumulative distribution for the nine months ended 31 December 2023 aggregates to Rs. 14.39 per

M'NW

Preeti N. Chheda

Chief Financiol Officer

Place: Mumbai
Date : 29 lanuary 2024
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Notes to the Condensed Standalone Interim Financial Statements
(all amounts in Rs. million unless otherwise stated)

1 Mindspace REIT Information

Mindspace Business Parks REIT (‘Mindspace REIT’ or 'Trust') was set up on 18 November 2019 at Mumbai, Maharashtra, India as a contributory,
determinate and irrevocable trust under the provisions of the Indian Trusts Act, 1882, pursuant to a trust deed dated 18 November 2019.
Mindspace REIT was registered with Securities and Exchange Board of India ('SEBI') on 10 December 2019, at Mumbai as a Real Estate
Investment Trust (‘REIT') pursuant to the SEBI (Real Estate Investment Trusts) Regulations, 2014 as amended from time to time including
guidelines and circulars issued thereunder ('REIT Regulations') having registration number IN/REIT/19-20/0003. The Trust's principat place of

business address is at Raheja Tower, Level 8, Block ‘G’, C-30, Bandra Kurla Complex, Mumbai - 400 051.

Anbee Constructions LLP (ACL) and Cape Trading LLP (‘CTL’) are the sponsors of Mindspace REIT. The Trustee to Mindspace REIT is Axis Trustee

Services Limited (the ‘Trustee’) and the Manager for Mindspace REIT is K Raheja Corp Investment Managers Private Limited (the ‘Manager’).

The objectives and principal activity of Mindspace REIT is to carry on the activity of a real estate investment trust, as permissible under the REIT
Regulations, to raise funds through the REIT, to make investments in accordance with the REIT Regulations and the investment strategy and to
carry on the activities as may be required for operating the REIT, including incidental and ancillary matters thereto.

The units of the Trust were listed on the BSE Limited (BSE) and National Stock Exchange of India Limited {NSE) on 7 August 2020.
The brief activities and shareholding pattern of the Special Purpose Vehicles ('SPVs') are provided below:

Name of the SPV

Activities

Equity Shareholding (in
percentage)
as at 31 December 2023

Equity Shareholding (in
percentage)
as at 31 March 2023

Private Limited {MBPPL)

Mindspace Business Parks

The SPV is engaged in real estate development
projects such as Special Economic Zone (SEZ),
Information Technology Parks and other commercial
assets. The SPV has its projects in Airoli (Navi
Mumbai), Pune and Pocharam (Hyderabad). The SPV
is a deemed distribution licensee pursuant to which
it can distribute power to the SEZ tenants within the
Park. It commenced distribution of electricity in its
project at Airoli, Navi Mumbai from 9 Aprif 2015 .

Mindspace REIT : 100%

Mindspace REIT : 100%

Gigaplex Estate Private
Limited (Gigaplex)

The SPV is engaged in real estate development
projects such as Special Economic Zone (SEZ),
Information Technology Parks and other commercial
assets. The SPV has its projects in Airoli (Navi
Mumbai). The SPV is a deemed distribution licensee
pursuant to which it can distribute power to the SEZ
tenants within the Park. It commenced distribution
of electricity in its project at Airoli, Navi Mumbai
from 19 April 2016,

Mindspace REIT : 100%

Mindspace REIT : 100%




MINDSPACE BUSINESS PARKS REIT
RN:IN/REIT/19-20/003

Notes to the Condensed Standalone interim Financial Statements
{all amounts in Rs. million unless otherwise stated)

Equity Shareholding (in

Equity Shareholding (in

Name of the SPV Activities percentage) percentage)
as at 31 December 2023 as at 31 March 2023
Sundew Properties Limited |The SPV is engaged in development and|Mindspace REIT:89% Mindspace REIT : 89%

(Sundew)

leasing/licensing of Information Technology (IT) park,
SEZ to different customers in Hyderabad.

Telangana State Industrial
Infrastructure Corporation
Limited (11%)

Telangana State Industrial
Infrastructure Corporation
Limited (11%)

Intime Properties Limited
(Intime)

The SPV is engaged in development and
leasing/licensing of IT park to different customers in
Hyderabad.

Mindspace REIT : 89%
Telangana State Industrial
Infrastructure Corporation
Limited (11%)

Mindspace REIT : 89%
Telangana State Industrial
Infrastructure Corporation
Limited (11%)

K. Raheja IT Park
(Hyderabad} Limited (KRIT)

The SPV is engaged in development and
leasing/licensing of IT park to different customers in
Hyderabad.

Mindspace REIT : 89%
Telangana State Industrial
Infrastructure Corporation
Limited (119%)

Mindspace REIT : 89%
Telangana State Industrial
Infrastructure Corporation
Limited (11%)

KRC Infrastructure And
Projects Private Limited
(KRC Infra)

The SPV is engaged in real estate development
projects such as Special Economic Zone (SEZ) and
Information Technology Parks. The SPV has its
project in Kharadi Pune.The SPV is a deemed
distribution licensee pursuant to which it can
distribute power to the SEZ tenants within the Park.
it commenced distribution of electricity in its project
at Kharadi, Pune from 1 June 2019.

The SPV is also engaged in Facility Management
services.

Mindspace REIT : 100%

Mindspace REIT : 100%

Horizonview Properties
Private Limited
(Horizonview)

The SPV is engaged in development and
leasing/licensing of IT park to different customers in
Chennai.

Mindspace REIT : 100%

Mindspace REIT : 100%

Avacado Properties and
Trading Private Limited
(Avacado)

The SPV has developed an Industrial park for the
purpose of letting out to different customers in
Paradigm building at Malad-Mumbai and is being
maintained and operated by the SPV. The SPV also
has a commercial project in Bandra Kurla Complex,
Mumbai.

Mindspace REIT : 100%

Mindspace REIT : 100%




MINDSPACE BUSINESS PARKS REIT
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Notes to the Condensed Standalone Interim Financial Statements
(all amounts in Rs. million unless otherwise stated)

2

a)

b)

c)

d)

Basis of Preparation

The Condensed Standalone Interim Financial Statements of Mindspace Business Parks REIT comprises the Condensed Standalone Interim
Balance Sheet as at December 31, 2023, the Condensed Standalone Interim Statement of Profit and Loss, including other comprehensive
income, the Condensed Standalone Interim Statement of Cash Flow for the quarter and nine months ended December 31, 2023, the Condensed
Standalone Statement of Changes in Unitholders Equity for the nine months ended December 31, 2023, and the Condensed Standalone Interim
Statement of Net Distributable Cashflows of Mindspace Business Parks REIT for the quarter and nine months ended December 31, 2023, and a
summary of the material accounting policies and select explanatory information and other additional financiai disclosures.

The condensed standalone interim financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of Securities and Exchange
Board of India (Real Estate Investment Trusts) Regulations, 2014 as amended from time to time including guidelines and circulars issued
thereunder read with SEBI Circufar No. SEBI/HO/DDHS-PoD-2/P/CIR/2023/116 dated 6 July 2023 (“the REIT regulations"); Regulation 52 and
Regulation 54 of the SEBI {Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations 2015, as amended from time to time ("Listing
Regulations"); Indian Accounting Standard (Ind AS) 34 “Interim Financial Reporting”, as prescribed in Rule 2(1)(a) of the Companies (Indian
Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 {as amended) and other accounting principles generally accepted in India, to the extent not inconsistent with
the REIT regulations. (refer note 13 on presentation of “Unit Capital” as “Equity” instead of compound instruments under Ind AS 32 — Financial
Instruments: Presentation).

Accordingly, these condensed standalone interim financial statements do not include all the information required for a complete set of financial
statements. These condensed standalone interim financial statements should be read in conjunction with the standalone financial statements of
the Trust for the year ended 31 March 2023.

Accounting policies have been consistently applied except where a newly issued accounting standard is initially adopted or a revision to an
existing accounting standard requires a change in the accounting policy hitherto in use.

These condensed standalone interim financial statements were authorised for issue in accordance with the resolution passed by the Board of
Directors of the Manager on January 28, 2024.

Statement of compliance to Ind-AS

These Condensed Standalone financial statements for the quarter and nine months ended 31 December 2023 have been prepared in accordance
with Indian Accounting Standard (Ind AS) 34 “Interim Financial Reporting”,as prescribed in Rule 2{1){a} of the Companies (Indian Accounting
Standards) Rules, 2015 (as amended) to the extent not inconsistent with the REIT regulations as more fully described above and Note 13 to the
condensed standalone financial statements.

Material accounting policies

Functional and Presentation Currency

The Condensed Standalone Financial Statements are presented in Indian Rupees, which is also Mindspace REIT functional currency in which
Mindspace REIT operates. All financial information presented in Indian Rupees has been rounded off to the nearest million except otherwise
stated.

Basis of measurement

These Condensed Standalone Financial Statements are prepared on the historical cost basis, except for certain financial assets and liabilities
(refer accounting policy regarding financial instrument) measured at fair values.

Use of judgments and estimates

The preparation of the Condensed Standalone Financial Statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles in India (Ind
AS) requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses.
Actual results could differ from those estimates.

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on a periodic basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the period in
which the estimates are revised and in any future periods affected.

Information about critical judgements in applying accounting policies that have the most material effect on the amounts recognised in the
Condensed Standalone Financial Statements is included in the following notes:

(i) Presentation of “Unit Capital” as “Equity” in accordance with the SEBI REIT Regulations instead of compound instrument (Note no 13)

(i) Bnpairment and Fair valuation of Investments in SPVs and impairment of loans to SPVs.

{iii) recognition and measurement of provisions for contingencies and disclosure of contingent liabilities (Note 30 (a))

Current versus non-current classification

Mindspace REIT presents assets and liabilities in the Balance Sheet based on current/ non-current classification:

An asset is treated as current when it is:

- Expected to be realised or intended to be sold or consumed in normal operating cycle;

- Held primarily for the purpose of trading;

- Expected to be realised within twelve months after the reporting date; or

- Cash or cash equivalent unless it is restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at least twelve months after the
reporting date.

All other assets are classified as non-current.
A liability is current when:
- Itis expected to be settled in normat operating cycle;
- It is held primarily for the purpose of trading;
- Itis due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting date; or
- There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve months after the reporting period.
Mindspace REIT classifies all other liabilities as non-current. e
7 eking X\
e : W,

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current assets and liabilities.
The operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their
Mindspace REIT has identified twelve months as its operating cycle.
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Notes to the Condensed Standalone Interim Financial Statements
{all amounts in Rs. million unless otherwise stated)

e)

3.1

3.2

3.3

3.4

3.5

Measurement of fair values

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market
participants at the measurement date, regardless of whether that price is directly observable or estimated using another valuation
technique. In estimating the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Company takes into account the characteristics of the asset or liability
and how market participants would take those characteristics into account when pricing the asset or liability at the measurement date.
Mindspace REIT accounting policies and disclosures require the measurement of fair values, for both financial and non-financial assets and
Mindspace REIT regularly reviews significant unobservable inputs and valuation adjustments. if third party information is used to measure
fair values then the finance team assesses the evidence obtained from the third parties to support the conclusion that such valuations meet
the requirements of Ind AS, including the level in the fair value hierarchy in which such valuations should be classified.

When measuring the fair value of an asset or a liability, Mindspace REIT uses observable market data as far as possible. Fair values are
categorised into different levels in a fair value hierarchy based on the inputs used in the valuation techniques as follows:

s Level 1: quoted prices {unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities that entity can access on measurement date.

e Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices included in Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly (i.e. as prices) or
indirectly (i.e. derived from prices).

e Level 3: inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data {(unobservable inputs).

If the inputs used to measure the fair value of an asset or a liability fall into different levels of the fair value hierarchy, then the fair value
measurement is categorised in its entirety in the same level of the fair value hierarchy as the lowest level input that is significant to the
entire measurement.

Impairment of assets

Mindspace REIT assesses at each reporting date, whether there is any indication that an asset may be impaired. If any such indication exists, the
trust estimates the recoverable amount of the asset. The recoverable amount of the assets {or where applicable that of the cash generating unit
to which the asset belongs) is estimated as the higher of its net selling price and its value in use. Value in use is the present value of estimated
future cash flows (discounted using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks
specific to the asset) expected to arise from the continuing use of the assets and from its disposal at the end of its useful life. In determining fair
value less costs of disposal, recent market transactions are taken into account. For the purpose of impairment testing, assets that cannot be
tested individually are grouped together into the smallest group of assets that generates cash inflows from continuing use that are largely
independent of the cash inflows of other assets or CGU. An impairment loss is recognised whenever the carrying amount of an asset ar the cash-
generating unit to which it belongs, exceeds its recoverable amount. Impairment loss is recognised in the Condensed Standalone Statement of
Profit and Loss.

When an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the asset (or a cash-generating unit) is increased to the revised
estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that the increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been
determined had no impairment foss been recognised for the asset (or cash-generating unit) in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is
recognised immediately in the Condensed Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss.

Asset Acquisition

if the acquisition of an asset or a group of assets does not constitute a business, Mindspace REIT identifies and recognises the individual
identifiable assets acquired (including those assets that meet the definition of, and recognition criteria for, intangible assets in Ind AS 38,
Intangible Assets) and liabilities assumed. The cost of the group is allocated to the individual identifiable assets and liabilities on the basis of
their relative fair values at the date of purchase and no goodwill is recognised.

Foreign currency transactions

Transactions denominated in foreign currency are recorded at the exchange rate prevailing on the date of transactions. Exchange differences
arising on foreign exchange transactions settled during the period/ year are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss of the period/ year.
Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currency, which are outstanding as at the end of the period and not covered by forward
contracts, are translated at the end of the period at the closing exchange rate and the resultant exchange differences are recognised in the
Condensed Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss. Non-monetary foreign currency items are carried at cost.

Compound financial instruments

The component parts of compound financial instruments issued by Mindspace REIT are classified separately as financial liabilities and equity in
accordance with the substance of the contractual arrangements and the definitions of a financial liability and an equity instrument. A conversion
option that will be settled by the exchange of a fixed amount of cash or another financial asset for a fixed number of the Trust's own equity

instruments is an equity instrument.
At the date of issue, the fair value of the liability component is estimated using the prevailing market interest rate for similar non-convertible

instruments. This amount is recorded as a liability on an amortised cost basis using the effective interest method until extinguished upon
conversion or at the instrument’s maturity date.

The conversion option classified as equity is determined by deducting the amount of the liability component from the fair value of the
compound instrument as a whole. This is recognised and included in equity, net of income tax effects, and is not subsequently remeasured.
Transaction costs that relate to the issue of the convertible instruments are allocated to the liability and equity components in proportion to the
allocation of the gross proceeds. Transaction costs relating to the equity component are recognised directly in equity. Transaction costs relating
to the liability component are included in the carrying amount of the liability component and are amortised over the lives of the convertible
instrument using the effective interest method.

Embedded derivatives
A derivative embedded in a hybrid contract, with a financial liability or non-financial host, is separated from the host and accounted for as a
separate derivative if: the economic characteristics and risks are not closely related to the host; a separate instrument with the same terms as
the embedded derivative would meet the definition of a derivative; and the hybrid contract is not measured at fair value through profit or loss.
Embedded derivatives are measured at fair value with changes in fair value recognised in profit or loss. Reassessment only occurs if there is
either a change in the terms of the contract that significantly modifies the cash flows that would otherwise be required or a reclassification of a
financia! asset out of the fair value through profit or loss category. .
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3.6

3.7

Tax expense .
Income tax expense comprises current tax and deferred tax charge or credit. It is recognised in the Condensed Standalone Statement of Profit
and Loss except to the extent that it relates to an item recognised directly in equity or in other comprehensive income in which case, the current
and deferred tax are also recognised in equity and other comprehensive income respectively.

a) Current tax
Current tax comprises the expected tax payable or receivable on the taxable income for the period and any adjustment to the tax payable or
receivable in respect of previous years. The amount of current tax reflects the best estimate of the tax amount expected to be paid after
considering the uncertainty, if any, related to income taxes. It is measured using tax rates (and tax laws) enacted or substantively enacted by
end of reporting period.
Current tax assets and liabilities are offset only if there is a legally enforceable right to set off the recognised amounts, and it is intended to
realise the asset and settle the liability on a net basis or simuitanegusly.

b) Deferred tax
Deferred tax asset/ liability is recognized on temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the Condensed
Standalone Financial Statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax assets and
liabilities are measured that are expected to apply to the period when the asset is realised or the liability is settled, using the tax rates and
tax laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the manner in which
Mindspace REIT expects, at the end of the reporting period, to recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.

Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognized for all taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax assets are generally recognized for all
deductible temporary differences to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits will be available against which those deductible
temporary differences can be utilized. Such deferred tax assets and liabilities are not recognized if the temporary difference arises from the
initial recognition {other than in a business combination) of assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor
the accounting profit.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets are reviewed at the end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no longer
probable that sufficient taxable profits will be avaitable to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset if there is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax assets and liabilities, and they relate to
income taxes levied by the same tax authority on the same taxable entity, or on different tax entities, but they intend to settle current tax
liabilities and assets on a net basis or their tax assets and liabilities will be realized simultaneously.

Provisions, contingent liabilities and contingent assets

Provisions are recognised when Mindspace REIT has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of a past event, it is probable that the
Trust will be required to settle the obligation, and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. The amount recognised as a
provision is the best estimate of the consideration net of recoveries if any, required to settle the present obligation at the end of the reporting
period, taking into account the risks and uncertainties surrounding the obligation. Provisions are determined by discounting the expected future
cash flows at a pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the liability. The
unwinding of the discount is recognised as finance cost.

Contingent liabilities are disclosed when there is a possible obligation or a present obligation that may, but will probably not, require an outflow
of resources. When there is a possible obligation of a present obligation in respect of which the likelihood of outflow of resources is remote, no
provision or disclosure is made.

Provisions for onerous contracts, i.e. contracts where the expected unavoidable costs of meeting the obligations under the contract exceed the
economic benefits expected to be received under it, are recognised when it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying econemic
benefits will be required to settle a present obligation as a result of an obligating event, based on a reliable estimate of such obligation. If the
effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted.

A contingent asset is disclosed when there would be a possible asset that arises from past events and whose existence will be confirmed only by
the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of Mindspace REIT.

Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets are reviewed at each reporting date and adjusted to reflect the current best estimates.
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3.8

3.9

a)

b)

c}

d)

Investment in SPVs

The Company has elected to recognize its investments in SPVs at cost in accordance with the option available in Ind AS 27, ‘Separate Financial
Statements’. The details of such investments are given in Note 4.

Assets representing investments in SPVs are reviewed for impairment,whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that carrying
amount may not be recoverable. Such circumstances include, though are not limited to, significant or sustained decline in revenues or earnings
and material adverse changes in the economic environment.

Financial instruments

1

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets and/or financial liabilities are recognised when Mindspace REIT becomes party to a contract embodying the related financial
instruments. All financial assets, financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value. Transaction costs that are attributable to the
acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities (other than financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value through profit
or loss) are added to or deducted from as the case may be, the fair value of such assets or liabilities, on initial recognition. Transaction casts
directly attributable to the acquisition of financial assets or financial liabilities at fair vatue through profit or loss are recognised immediately
in the Condensed Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss.

Financial assets:

Classification of financial assets:

i) Mindspace REIT classifies its financial assets in the following measurement categories:
- those to be measured subsequently at fair value (either through other comprehensive income, or through the Statement of Profit
and Loss), and

- those measured at amortised cost.

(i)  The classification is done depending upon Mindspace REIT business model for managing the financial assets and the contractual
terms of the cash flows.

(iii)  Forinvestments in debt instruments, this will depend on the business model in which the investment is held.

(iv) Mindspace REIT reclassifies debt investments when and only when its business model for managing those assets changes.

Subsequent Measurement

{i) Investment in Debt instruments:
Subsequent measurement of debt instruments depends on Mindspace REIT business model for managing the asset and the cash flow
characteristics of the asset. There are three measurement categories into which the Trust classifies its debt instruments:

Financial assets at amortised cost

Financial assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost if these financial assets are held within a business whose objective is to
hold these assets in order to collect contractual cash flows and the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates
to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding

Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI)

Financial assets are subsequently measured at fair value through other comprehensive income if these financial assets are held
within a business whose objective is achieved by both collecting contractual cash flows that give rise on specified dates to solely
payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding and by selling financial assets.

Financial assets at fair value through the Statement of Profit and Loss (FVTPL)

Financial assets are subsequently measured at fair value through the Statement of Profit and Loss unless it is measured at amortised
cost or fair value through other comprehensive income on initial recognition. The transaction costs directly attributable to the
acquisition of financial assets and liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are immediately recognised in the Statement of Profit
and Loss.

Impairment of financial assets:
The Mindspace REIT applies the expected credit loss model for recognising impairment loss on financial assets measured at amortised cost,
lease receivables, trade receivables, other contractual rights to receive cash or other financial asset. For trade receivables, the Mindspace
Group measures the loss allowance at an amount equal to lifetime expected credit losses. Further, for the purpose of measuring lifetime
expected credit loss allowance for trade receivables, the Mindspace Group has used a practical expedient as permitted under Ind AS 108.
This expected credit loss allowance is computed based on a provision matrix which takes into account historical credit loss experience and
adjusted for forward-looking information.
Derecognition of financial assets:
A financial asset is primarily derecognised when:
(i) the right to receive cash flows from the asset has expired, or
(if) Mindspace REIT has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset; and
Mindspace REIT has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or
Mindspace REIT has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of
On derecognition of a financial asset in its entirety (other than investments in equity instruments at FVOCI), the differences between
the carrying amounts measured at the date of derecognition and the consideration received is recognised in Statement of Profit and
Loss. Any interest in transferred financial assets that is created or retained by Mindspace REIT is recognised as a separate asset or
liability.
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3.10 Financial liabilities and equity instruments

3.12

3.13

(a) Classification as debt or equity
Financial liabilities and equity instruments issued by Mindspace REIT are classified according to the substance of the contractual
arrangements entered into and the definitions of a financial liability and an equity instrument.
Financial Liabilities
Recognition, measurement and classification
Financial liabilities are classified as either held at a) fair value through the Statement of Profit and Loss, or b) at amortised cost. Management

determines the classification of its financial liabilities at the time of initial recognition or, where applicable, at the time of reclassification.

Mindspace REIT financial liabilities include trade and other payables, loans and borrowings and derivative financial instruments. Subsequent
measurement of financial liabilities depends on their classification as fair value through the Statement of Profit and Loss or at amortised
cost. All changes in fair value of financial liabilities classified as FVTPL are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss. Amortised cost
category is applicable to loans and borrowings, trade and other payables. After initial recognition the financial liabilities are measured at
amortised cost using the Effective Interest Rate method.

Derecognition

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires. Gains and losses are
recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss when the liabilities are derecognised.

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and presented on net basis in the Balance Sheet when there is a currently enforceable legal
right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention either to settle on a net basis or to realise the assets and settle the liabilities

simultaneously.
Embedded derivatives

Derivatives embedded in a host contract that is an asset within the scope of Ind AS 109 are not separated. Financial assets with embedded

derivatives are considered in their entirety when determining whether their cash flows are solely payment of principal and interest.

Embedded derivatives closely related to the host contracts are not separated. Derivatives embedded in all other host contract are separated
only if the economic characteristics and risks of the embedded derivative are not closely related to the economic characteristics and risks of

the host and are measured at fair value through profit or loss.
Financial guarantee contracts
A financial guarantee contract is a contract that requires the issuer to make specified payments to reimburse the hotder for a loss it incurs
because a specified debtor fails to make payments when due in accordance with the terms of a debt instrument.
Financial guarantee contracts are measured initially at the fair value and in accordance with Ind AS 109 unless on a case to case basis elected to
be accounted for financial guarantee as Insurance Contracts as specified under ind AS 104.

Revenue Recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable. This inter alia involves discounting of the consideration due to
the present value if payment extends beyond normal credit terms.

Revenue is recognised when recovery of the consideration is probable and the amount of revenue can be measured reliably.

Recognition of dividend income, interest income

Dividend income is recognised in praofit or loss on the date on which Mindspace REIT’s right to receive payment is established.

Interest income is recognised using the effective interest method. The ‘effective interest rate’ is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future
cash receipts through the expected life of the financial instrument to the gross carrying amount of the financial asset.

In calculating interest income, the effective interest rate is applied to the gross carrying amount of the asset (when the asset is not credit-
impaired). However, for financial assets that have become credit-impaired subsequent to initial recognition, interest income is calculated by
applying the effective interest rate to the amortised cost of the financial asset. If the asset is no longer credit-impaired, then the calculation of
interest income reverts to the gross basis.

Borrowing costs
Borrowing costs are interest and other costs (including exchange differences relating to foreign currency borrowings to the extent that they are
regarded as an adjustment to interest costs) incurred in connection with the borrowing of funds. Borrowing costs directly attributable to

acquisition or construction of an asset which necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use are capitalised as

part of the cost of that asset. Other borrowing costs are recognised as an expense in the period in which they are incurred.

Interest expense is recognised using the effective interest method. The ‘effective interest rate’ is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future
cash payments through the expected life of the financial instrument to the amortised cost of the financial liability. In calculating interest
expense, the effective interest rate is applied to the amortised cost of the liability.
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3.14

3.15

3.16

3.17

3.18

3.19

3.20

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprises of cash at bank and on hand, demand deposits, other short term, highly liquid investments with original
maturities of three months or less that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of
changes in value.

Cash distribution to unit holders

Mindspace REIT recognises a liability to make cash distributions to Unitholders when the distribution is authorised and a legal obligation has
been created. As per the REIT Regulations, a distribution is authorised when it is approved by the Board of Directors of the Manager. A
corresponding amount is recognised directly in equity.

Condensed Standalone Statement of Cash flows

Cash flow is reported using the indirect method, whereby net profit before tax is adjusted for the effects of transactions of a non-cash nature
and any deferrals or accruals of past or future cash receipts or payments. The cash flows from operating, investing and financing activities of
Mindspace REIT are segregated.

For the purpose of the Statement of Cash Flow, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and short-term deposits, as defined above, net of
outstanding bank overdrafts as they are considered an integral part of the Mindspace REIT's cash management.

Subsequent events

The Condensed Standalone Financial Statements are adjusted to reflect events that occur after the reporting date but before the Financial
Statements are issued. The Financial Statements have their own date of authorisation. Therefore, when preparing the Financial Statements,
management considers events up to the date of authorisation of these financial statements.

Earnings per unit

The basic earnings per unit is computed by dividing the net profit/ {loss) attributable to the unit holders of the REIT by the weighted average
number of units outstanding during the reporting period. The number of units used in computing diluted earnings/ {loss) per unit comprises the
weighted average units considered for deriving basic earnings/ (loss) per unit and also the weighted average number of units which could have

been issued on the conversion of all dilutive potential units.
Dilutive potential units are deemed converted as of the beginning of the reporting date, unless they have been issued at a later date. In

computing diluted earnings per unit, only potential equity units that are dilutive and which either reduces earnings per share or increase loss per
units are included.

Earnings before finance costs and tax

Mindspace REIT has elected to present earnings before finance cost and tax as a separate line item on the face of the Condensed Standalone
Statement of Profit and Loss. Mindspace REIT measures earnings before finance cost and tax on the basis of profit/ (loss) from continuing
operations. In its measurement, Mindspace REIT does not include finance costs and tax expense.

Errors and estimates

Mindspace REIT revises its accounting policies if the change is required due to a change in Ind AS or if the change will provide more relevant and
reliable information to the users of the Financial Statement. Changes in accounting policies are applied retrospectively.

A change in an accounting estimate that results in changes in the carrying amounts of recognised assets or liabilities or to profit or loss is applied
prospectively in the period(s) of change.

Discavery of errors results in revisions retrospectively by restating the comparative amounts of assets, tiabilities and equity of the earliest prior
period in which the error is discovered. The opening balances of the earliest period presented are also restated.
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3.21

3.22

Distributions
The Net Distributable Cash Flows of Mindspace REIT are based on the cash flows generated from Mindspace REIT's assets and investments.

In terms of the Distribution Policy and the REIT Regulations, not less than 90% of the NDCF of each of the Asset SPVs is required to be distributed
to Mindspace REIT, in proportion of their shareholding in the Asset SPV, subject to applicable provisions of the Companies Act. Presently, NDCF
to be received by Mindspace REIT from the Asset SPVs may be in the form of dividends, interest income, principal loan repayment, proceeds of
any capital reduction or buyback from the Asset SPVs, sale proceeds out of disposal of investments if any or assets directly held by Mindspace
REIT or as specifically permitted under the Trust Deed or in such other form as may be permissible under the applicable law.

The Manager is required to and shall declare and distribute at least 90% of the NDCF of Mindspace REIT as distributions (“REIT Distributions”) to
the Unitholders. Such REIT Distributions shall be declared and made for every quarter of a Financial Year.

Amended standards

(a) The Ministry of Corporate Affairs has notified Companies (Indian Accounting Standard) Amendment Rules 2023 dated March 31, 2023 to
amend the following Ind AS which are effective from April 01, 2023:
Ind AS 1 - Presentation of Financial Statements
The amendments require companies to disclose their material accounting policies rather than their significant accounting policies.
Accounting policy information, together with other information, is material when it can reasonably be expected to influence decisions of
primary users of general purpose financial statements. This amendment does not have any significant impact in the financial statements.
Ind AS 12 — Income Taxes
The amendments clarify how companies account for deferred tax on transactions such as leases and decommissioning obligations. The
amendments narrowed the scope of the recognition exemption in paragraphs 15 and 24 of Ind AS 12 (recognition exemption) so that it no
longer applies to transactions that, on initial recognition, give rise to equal taxable and deductible temporary differences. This amendment
does not have any significant impact in the financial statements.
Ind AS 8 — Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors
The amendments will help entities to distinguish between accounting policies and accounting estimates. The definition of a change in
accounting estimates has been replaced with a definition of accounting estimates. Under the new definition, accounting estimates are
“monetary amounts in financial statements that are subject to measurement uncertainty”. Entities develop accounting estimates if
accounting policies require items in financial statements to be measured in a way that involves measurement uncertainty. This amendment
does not have any significant impact in the financial statements.
There were certain amendments to standards and interpretations which are applicable for the first time for the nine months ended 31

December 2023, but either the same are not relevant or do not have an impact on the condensed standalone financial statements.
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4 Non-current investments

. As at 31 December 2023 As at 31 March 2023
Particulars
Unquoted Investments in SPVs {at cost}{refer note below)

-39,75,000 (31 March 2023: 39,75,000) equity shares of Avacado Properties and Trading Private 9,482 9,482
Limited of Rs.10 each, fully paid up

- 11,765 (31 March 2023: 11,765) equity shares of Horizonview Properties Private Limited of 0 0
Rs.10 each, fully paid up

- 5,88,235 (31 March 2023: 5,88,235) equity shares of KRC Infrastructure And Projects Private 6,868 6,868
Limited of Rs.10 each, fully paid up

-1,96,01,403 (31 March 2023: 1,96,01,403) equity shares of Gigaplex Estate Private Limited of 13,121 13,121
Rs.1 each, fully paid up

-2,50,71,875 (31 March 2023: 2,50,71,875) equity shares of Sundew Properties Limited of Rs.10 33,722 33,722
each, fully paid up

-12,03,033 (31 March 2023: 12,03,033) equity shares of Intime Properties Limited of Rs.10 each, 15,478 15,478
fully paid up

-1,78,00,000 (31 March 2023: 1,78,00,000) equity shares of K. Raheja IT Park {Hyderabad) 25,618 25,618
Limited of Rs.10 each, fully paid up

- 81,513 (31 March 2023: 81,513) equity shares of Mindspace Business Parks Private Limited of 48,814 48,814
Rs.10 each, fully paid up

Total 1,53,103 1,53,103

Note: The Trust has issued units as consideration to acquire these investments wherein the tradable REIT Unit has been issued at Rs 275 each.

Refer Note 1 for details of % shareholding in the SPVs held by Mindspace REIT.
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5 Loans {(Non current)

Particulars As at As at

31 December 2023 31 March 2023
Unsecured, considered good
Loan to SPVs- refer Note 29 30,453 29,879
Total 30,453 29,879

Note : Mindspace REIT has given loan amounting Rs. 34,685 million and repayment done by SPVs amounting Rs. 25,210 million during
the nine months ended 31 December 2023 to Gigaplex, Avacado , Horizonview, Sundew, KRC Infra, MBPPL and KRIT and the
outstanding balance as at end of 31 December 2023 is Rs. 41,334 million (including Loans to SPVs of current nature amounting to Rs.
10,881 million) (31 March 2023 Rs. 31,859 million, including Loans to SPVs of current nature amounting to Rs. 1,980 million) { refer
note 8).

Security: Unsecured

Interest : 8.55% - 8.60% per annum for the period ended 31 December 2023 (31 March 2023 - 7.22% - 8.40% per annum) in
accordance with interest rate policy adopted by Mindspace REIT.

Terms of repayment:

a) Bullet repayment of Rs. 9,978 million on date falling 15 years from the first disbursement date or such other date as may be
mutually agreed between the Lender and the Borrower in writing. (31 March 2023 - 9,969 million)

b) Bullet repayment of Rs. 4,470 million is due on 17 May 2024 and accordingly the same has been classified as current as on 31
December 2023. (31 March 2023 - 4,470 million) (refer note 8)

¢) Bullet repayment of Rs. 1,980 million is made on 16 December 2023 during the quarter ended 31 December 2023 and accordingly
the same was classified as current as on 31 March 2023. {refer note 8)

d) Bullet repayment of Rs. 4,965 million is due on 31 December 2024 and accordingly the same has been classified as current as on 31
December 2023. (31 March 2023 - Rs. 4,965 million) (refer note 8)

e) Bullet repayment of Rs. 4,975 million is due on 27 July 2027. (31 March 2023 - Rs. 4,975 million)

f) Bullet repayment of Rs. 5,500 million is due on 13 April 2026. {31 March 2023 - Rs. 5,500 million)

g) Bullet repayment of Rs. 5,000 million is due on 30 June 2026. (31 March 2023 - Rs. Nil)

h) Bullet repayment of Rs. 5,000 million is due on 10 December 2026. (31 March 2023 - Rs. Nil)

i)Bullet repayment of Rs. 1,446 million is due on 06 June 2024 and accordingly the same has been classified as current as on 31
December 2023. (31 March 2023 - Rs. Nil) (refer note 8)

6 Other financial assets (Non-current)

Particulars As at As at

31 December 2023 31 March 2023
Unsecured, considered good
Interest receivable on loan to SPVs s 530
Other receivables from related parties (refer Note 29) 19 31
Deposits 3 3
Total 22 564

7 Other non-current assets

Particulars As at As at
31 December 2023 31 March 2023

Prepaid expenses 11 2

Total 11 2
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8

10

11

Loans (Current)
Particulars As at As at

31 December 2023 31 March 2023
Unsecured, considered good
Loan to SPVs- refer Note 5 and 29 10,881 1,980
Total 10,881 1,980
Cash and cash equivalents
Particulars As at As at

31 December 2023 31 March 2023
Cash on hand -
Balances with banks

- in current accounts* (refer Note 29) 3,044 2,984

Total 3,044 2,984
*Includes balance with banks of Rs. 0 million (31 March 2023 Rs. O million ) for unpaid distributions.
Other financial assets (Current)
Particulars As at As at

31 December 2023 31 March 2023
Unsecured, considered good
Interest receivable on loan to SPVs {refer Note 29) 806 s
Other receivables from related parties (refer Note 29) 19 4
Other receivables from others 1
Total 826 4
Other current assets
Particulars As at As at

31 December 2023

31 March 2023

Unsecured, considered good

Advance for supply of goods and rendering of services 2 1
Prepaid expenses 15 6
Balances with government authorities 2 1
Total 19 8
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12

13

(@

{b)

Corpus

Particulars Amount

Balance as at 1 April 2022
Additions during the year

Balance as at 31 March 2023

Balance as at 1 April 2023
Additions during the period

OOOOOO

Balance as at 31 December 2023

Unit Capital

Particulars No. Amount

As at 1 April 2022 59,30,18,182 1,62,839
Movement during the year 2 %
As at 31 March 2023 59,30,18,182 1,62,839
As at 1 April 2023 59,30,18,182 1,62,839
Movement during the period - -

Closing Balance as at 31 December 2023 59,30,18,182 1,62,839

Terms/rights attached to units and other disclosures

Mindspace REIT has only one class of Units. Each Unit represents an undivided beneficial interest in Mindspace REIT. Each holder of Units is entitled to one vote
per unit. The Unitholders have the right to receive at least 90% of the Net Distributable Cash Flows of the Trust at least once in every six months in each financial
year in accordance with the REIT Regulations. The Board of Directors of the Manager approves distributions. The distribution will be in proportion to the number
of Units held by the Unit holders. Mindspace REIT declares and pays distributions in Indian Rupees.

Under the provisions of the REIT Regulations, Mindspace REIT is required to distribute to Unitholders not less than 90% of the net distributable cash flows of
Mindspace REIT for each financial year. Accordingly, a portion of the Unit Capital contains a contractual obligation of the Mindspace REIT to pay to its Unithalders
cash distributions. Hence, the Unit Capital is a compound financial instrument which contains equity and liability components in accordance with Ind AS 32 -
Financial Instruments: Presentation. However, in accordance with SEBI Circular (No. SEBI/HO/DDHS-PoD-2/P/CIR/2023/116 dated 6 July 2023) issued under the
REIT Regulations, the Unitholders’ funds have been presented as “Equity” in order to comply with the requirements of Section H of Chapter 3 to the SEBI Master
Circular dated 06 July 2023 dealing with the minimum presentation and disclosure requirements for key financial statements. Consistent with Unit Capital being
classified as equity, the distributions to Unitholders is also presented in Statement of Changes in Unitholders' Equity when the distributions are approved by the
Board of Directors of the Investment Manager.

Unit holders holding more than 5 percent Units in Mindspace REIT

Name of the unit holder As at 31 December 2023 As at 31 March 2023
No of Units % holding No of Units % holding
Platinum Illumination A 2018 Trust 5,43,75,000 9.17% 5,43,75,000 9.17%
Anbee Constructions LLP 3,54,04,890 5.97% 3,54,04,890 5.97%
Cape Trading LLP 3,54,38,895 5.98% 3,54,04,890 5.97%
Chandru Lachmandas Raheja 3,26,34,433 5.50% 3,26,34,433 5.50%
Capstan Trading LLP 4,10,95,719 6.93% 4,10,95,719 6.93%
Casa Maria Properties LLP 4,68,20,719 7.90% 4,68,20,719 7.90%
Palm Shelter Estate Development LLP 4,10,95,719 6.93% 4,10,95,719 6.93%
Raghukool Estate Developement LLP 4,20,04,546 7.08% 4,19,37,069 7.07%
K Raheja Corp Private Limited 3,65,96,296 6.17% 3,65,96,296 6.17%

The Trust has not allotted any fully paid-up units by way of bonus units nor has it bought back any class of units from the date of registration till the balance sheet
date. Further, the Trust had issued an aggregate of 36,363,600 Units for cash at Rs. 275 per unit and 556,654,582 Units at a price of Rs. 275 per unit for
consideration other than cash during the period of five years immediately preceding the balance sheet date.
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Note 1

Other Equity
Particulars As at As at

31 December 2023 31 March 2023
Reserves and Surplus
Retained earnings*® 3,386 3,202
Total 3,386 3,202

*Refer Condensed Standalone Interim Statement of Changes in Unit holder's Equity for detailed movement in other equity balances.

Retained earnings

The cumulative gain or loss arising from the operations which is retained and is recognized and accumulated under the heading of retained earnings. At the end of
the period, the profit after tax is transferred from the statement of profit and loss to the retained earnings account.

Borrowings (Non-current)

Particulars As at As at
31 December 2023 31 March 2023

10 year G-Sec linked secured, listed, senior, taxable, non-cumulative, rated, principal protected — market linked, - 3,741
redeemable, non-convertible debentures (“Market Linked Debentures / MLD Series 2”) (net of issue expenses, at
amortised cost) (31 March 2023 : 3,741 million) (refer Note 1)

Secured, listed, senior, taxable, non-cumulative, rated, redeemable non-convertible debentures (NCD Series 1) (net =

of issue expenses, at amortised cost) (31 March 2023 : Nil) {refer Note 2)

Secured, listed, senior, taxable, non-cumulative, rated, redeemable non-convertible debentures (NCD Series 2) (net - 750
of issue expenses, at amortised cost) (31 March 2023 : 750 million) (refer Note 3)

Secured, listed, senior, taxable, non-cumulative, rated, redeemable non-convertible debentures (NCD Series 3) {net ] 4,971
of issue expenses, at amortised cost) (31 March 2023 : 4,571 million) (refer Note 4)
Secured, listed, senior, taxable, non-cumulative, rated, redeemable non-convertible debentures (NCD Series 4) {(net 4,974 4,969
of issue expenses, at amortised cost) (31 March 2023 : 4,969 million) (refer Note 5)

Secured, listed, rated, non-cumulative, taxable, transferable, redeemable non-convertible debentures (“Mindspace 5,468 5,461
REIT Green Bond 1”) {net of issue expenses, at amortised cost) {31 March 2023 : 5,461 million) (refer Note 6)

Secured, listed, rated, non-cumulative, taxable, transferable, redeemable non-convertible debentures (NCD Series 6) 4,975 -
(net of issue expenses, at amortised cost) (31 March 2023 : NIL) (refer Note 7)

Secured, listed, rated, non-cumulative, taxable, transferable, redeemable non-convertible debentures (NCD Series 7)

(net of issue expenses, at amortised cost) ( 31 March 2023: NIL) (refer Note 8) 4,987 -

Total 20,404 19,892

In March 2021, Mindspace REIT issued 3,750 10 year G-Sec linked secured, listed, senior, taxable, non-cumulative, rated, principal protected — market linked,
redeemable, non-convertible debentures (“Market Linked Debentures / MLD Series 2”) having face value of Rs. 10,00,000 (Rupees ten lakhs only) each,
amounting to Rs. 3,750,000,000 (Indian Rupees three thousand seven hundred fifty millions only). The tenure of the said MLD Series 2 is 38 months from 18
March 2021, being date of allotment of the MLD Series 2 and coupon, if any shall be payable on the Scheduled Redemption Date i.e. on maturity on 17 May 2024.
The coupon payoff structure is linked to condition where the payoff will be fixed on the final fixing date i.e. 16 April 2024. If identified 10 year G-Sec's last traded
price as on final fixing date is greater than 25% of its last traded price as on initial fixing date i.e. 18 March 2021, the coupon rate will be 6.65% p.a. If identified 10
year G-Sec’s last traded price as on final fixing date is less than or equal to 25% of its last traded price as on initial fixing date, the coupon rate will be zero percent.
As per the valuers report in respect of valuation of these MLD Series 2, the probability of occurrence of such an event {last traded price of identified 10 year G-Sec
on final fixing date being less than or equal to 25% of its last traded price on initial fixing date) is remote and hence the value of the option considered as zero.

This MLD Series 2 was listed on BSE Limited on 22 March 2021.

Security terms

MLD Series 2 are secured by each of the following security in favour of the Debenture Trustee (holding for the benefit of the Debenture Holders):

a) First and exclusive charge being created by way of equitable mortgage on the aggregate leasable area of approximately 13,71,442 Sq. Ft. or thereabouts in
buildings no. 12A and Units of Building 12B of Madhapur, Hyderabad {approx. 12,69,140 sg. ft. in building no.12A and approx. 1,02,302 sq. ft in building no. 12B)
together with the proportionate undivided right, title and interest in the notionally demarcated land admeasuring approximately 29,842 sq. mtrs on which the
said two building no.12A and 12B, out of all those pieces and parcels of larger land that are situated, lying and being in Madhapur Village, Serilingampally Mandal,
Ranga Reddy District, Hyderabad (“Mortgaged Properties”), for MLD Series 2.

b) First ranking exclusive charge created by way of a hypothecation over the Hypothecated Properties of MLD Series 2.

) A charge on the escrow account created, in which receivables of the Mortgaged Properties of Sundew shall be received, save and except any common area
maintenance charges payable to Sundew with respect to the maintenance of the mortgaged propen}e's%"\:;.: S
d) Corporate guarantee executed by Sundew. 23 S g

"_._.__\\,_;.
@
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Note 2

Note 3

Redemption terms:
a) MLD Series 2 are redeemable by way of bullet payment at the end of 38 months from the date of allotment, i.e. 17 May 2024 and accordingly the same has
been classified as current maturities of long term borrowings as on 31 December 2023 (Refer Note 17)

b) The Coupon shall be increased by 25 bps for every notch downgrade in the rating by the Credit Rating Agency. In case rating is upgraded after any rating
downgrade, the Coupon shall be decreased by 25 bps for each upgrade. The Investors shall have the right to accelerate the MLD Series 2 if the rating is
downgraded to A+.

c) Upon occurrence of a mandatory redemption event, the Debenture Trustee may, by issuing not less than 30 (thirty) business days notice to the issuer require
the Issuer to redeem in full, all the Debentures then outstanding by paying an amount equal to the total mandatory redemption amount in respect of each
Debenture.

In December 2020, Mindspace Business Parks REIT issued 2,000 secured, listed, senior, taxable, non-cumulative, rated, redeemable, non-convertible debentures
(“NCD Series 1”) having face value of Rs. 10,00,000 (Rupees ten lakhs only) each, amounting to Rs. 2,000,000,000 (Indian Rupees two thousand millions only) with
a coupon rate of 6.45% p.a. payable quarterly beginning from the end of first full quarter from the date of allotment i.e. 31 March 2021, with last coupon
payment on the scheduled redemption date i.e. 16 December 2023. The tenure of the said NCD Series 1 is 36 months from 17 December 2020, being date of
allotment.

This NCD Series 1 was listed on BSE Limited on 21 December 2020.

Security terms

NCD Series 1 are secured by each of the following security in favour of the Debenture Trustee (holding for the benefit of the NCD Holders):

a) First and exclusive charge registered by way of simple mortgage (including receivables arising therefrom) on the aggregate leasable area of approximately
414,599 Sq. Ft. or thereabouts in buildings no. 1 and 5 of Commerzone Yerawada (approx. 43,200 sqg. ft. in building no. 1 and approx. 371,399 in building no. 5)
together with the proportionate undivided right, title and interest in the notionally demarcated land admeasuring approximately 18,264 sq. mtrs on which the
said two building no. 1 and 5, out of all those pieces and parcels of larger land that are situated, lying and being in Village Yerawada, Taluka Haveli, District Pune
(“Mortgaged Properties”) of NCD Series 1.

b) A charge on the escrow account in which receivables of the Mortgaged Properties shall be received save and except any common area maintenance charges
payable to MBBPL with respect to the maintenance of the mortgaged properties.

c) Corporate guarantee was executed by MBPPL.

Redemption terms:

a) NCD Series 1 were redeemable by way of bullet repayment at the end of 36 months from the date of allotment, i.e. 16 December 2023 and accordingly the
same was classified as current maturities of long term borrowings as an 31 March 2023 (Refer Note 17)

b) Interest was payable on the last day of each financial quarter in a year (starting from 31 March, 2021) until the scheduled redemption date.

c) The Coupon shall be increased by 25 bps for every notch downgrade in the rating by the Credit Rating Agency. In case rating is upgraded after any rating
downgrade, the Coupon shall be decreased by 25 bps for each upgrade.

d) Upon occurrence of a mandatory redemption event, the Debenture Trustee may, by issuing not less than 30 {thirty) business days’ notice to the Issuer require
the Issuer to redeem in full, all the debentures then outstanding by paying an amount equal to the total mandatory redemption amount in respect of each
debenture.

In March 2021, Mindspace Business Parks REIT issued 750 secured, listed, senior, taxable, non-cumulative, rated, redeemable, non-convertible debentures (“NCD
Series 2”) having face value of Rs. 10,00,000 (Rupees ten lakhs only) each, amounting to Rs. 75,00,00,000 (Rupees seventy five crores only) with a coupon rate of
6.6861% p.a. payable quarterly beginning from the end of first full quarter from the date of allotment i.e. 30 June 2021, with last coupon payment on the
scheduled redemption date i.e. 17 May 2024. The tenure of the said NCD Series 2 is 38 months from 18 March 2021, being date of allotment.

This NCD Series 2 was listed on BSE Limited on 22 March 2021.

Security terms

NCD Series 2 are secured by each of the following security in favour of the Debenture Trustee (holding for the benefit of the NCD Holders):

a) First and exclusive charge being registered by way of simple mortgage (including receivables arising therefrom) on the aggregate leasable area of approximately
151,460 Sq. Ft. or thereabouts in building no. 4 of Commerzone Yerawada together with the proportionate undivided right, title and interest in the notionally
demarcated land admeasuring approximately 9,561 sq. mtrs on which the said building, out of all those pieces and parcels of larger land that are situated, lying
and being in Village Yerawada, Taluka Haveli, District Pune (“Mortgaged Properties”) of NCD Series 2.

b) A charge on the escrow account to be created, in which receivables of the Mortgaged Properties shall be received, save and except any common area
maintenance charges payable to MBPPL with respect to the maintenance of the mortgaged properties.

c) Corporate guarantee executed by MBPPL.

2
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Note 4

Note 5

Redemption terms:
a) NCD Series 2 are redeemable by way of bullet repayment at the end of 38 months from the date of allotment, i.e. 17 May 2024 and accordingly the same has
been classified as current maturities of long term borrowings as on 31 December 2023 (Refer Note 17)

b) Interest is payable on the last day of each financial quarter in a year (starting from 30 June, 2021) until the scheduled redemption date.

c) The Coupon shall be increased by 25 bps for every notch downgrade in the rating by the Credit Rating Agency. In case rating is upgraded after any rating
downgrade, the Coupon shall be decreased by 25 bps for each upgrade.

d) Upon occurrence of a mandatory redemption event, the Debenture Trustee may, by issuing not less than 30 (thirty} business days’ notice to the Issuer require
the Issuer to redeem in full, all the debentures then outstanding by paying an amount equal to the total mandatory redemption amount in respect of each
debenture.

in February 2022, Mindspace Business Parks REIT issued 5,000 senior, listed, rated, secured, non-cumulative, taxable, transferable, redeemable, non-convertible
debentures {“NCD Series 3”) having face value of Rs. 10,00,000 (Rupees ten lakhs only) each, amounting to Rs. 5,000,000,000 {Indian Rupees five thousand
millions only) with a coupon rate of 6.35% p.a. Coupon on the outstanding Nominal value of each debenture shall be applicable and computed from day to day ,be
prorated on an actual/ actual basis for the actual number of days in the Coupon Period and be payable in arrears on the relevant Coupon Payment date to the
Debenture Holder whose name is appearing on the Register of Beneficial Owners as on the Record Date. The Issuer hereby aknowledges and agrees that there
shall be no maratorium period for the payment of Coupon.The first Coupon payment Date is 31 March 2022, with last coupon payment on the scheduled
redemption date i.e. 31 December 2024. The tenure of the said NCD Series 3 is 35 months from 1 February 2022, being date of allotment.

This NCD Series 3 was listed on BSE Limited on February 04, 2022.

Security terms

NCD Series 3 are secured by each of the following security in favour of the Debenture Trustee (holding for the benefit of the NCD Holders):

a) First and exclusive charge being registered by way of simple mortgage on the carpet area of approximately 5,52,974 Sq. Ft. { save and except entire 2nd floor
admeasuring 11,883 Sq. Ft. carpet area in building no. 2) (the building no. 2 ) situated on the Mortgage land along with proportionate covered and open parking
spaces, in Building 2 together with all the beneficial rights, title and interest of the Assets SPV in appurtenant to Building 2 and all erections. The Building 2 is
situated on a portion of the Mortgage Land admeasuring 8.04 Hectares, which portion is notified as a Special Economic Zone & first and exclusive charge being
registered by way of simple mortgage on the identified units with aggregating to carpet area of approximately 4,61,527 Sq. Ft. (identified units of building no. 3)
situated on the Mortgage land along with proportionate covered and open parking spaces, in Building 3 together with all the beneficial rights, title and interest of
the Assets SPV in appurtenant to Building 3 and all erections (“Mortgaged Properties”) of NCD Series 3 as further detailed in transaction documents.

b) A charge on the escrow account to be created, in which receivables of the Mortgaged Properties shall be received, save and except any common area
maintenance charges payable to Gigaplex with respect to the maintenance of the mortgaged properties
c) Corporate guarantee executed by GIGAPLEX.

Redemption terms:

a) NCD Series 3 are redeemable by way of bullet repayment at the end of 35 months from the date of allotment, i.e. 31 December, 2024 and accordingly the same
has been classified as current maturities of long term borrowings as on 31 December 2023 (Refer Note 17)

b) Interest is payable on the last day of each financial quarter in a year (starting from 31 March, 2022) until the scheduled redemption date.

c) The Coupon shall be increased by 25 bps for every notch downgrade in the rating by the Credit Rating Agency. In case rating is upgraded after any rating
downgrade, the Coupon shall be decreased by 25 bps for each upgrade.

d) Upon occurrence of a mandatory redemption event, the Debenture Trustee may, by issuing not less than 30 (thirty) business days’ notice to the Issuer require
the Issuer to redeem in full, all the debentures then outstanding by paying an amount equal to the total mandatory redemption amount in respect of each
debenture.

In July 2022, Mindspace Business Park REIT issued 5,000 senior, listed, rated, secured, non-cumulative, taxable, transferrable, redeemable, non-convertible
debentures of face value of INR 1,000,000 {Indian Rupees One Mitlion) per Debenture for aggregate principal amount of upto INR 5,000,000,000/- (Indian Rupees
Five Thousand Million Only} with a coupon rate of 7.95% p.a. Coupon on the outstanding Nominal value of each debenture shall be applicable and computed from
day to day, be prorated on an actual/ actual basis for the actual number of days in the Coupon Period and be payable in arrears on the relevant Coupon Payment
date to the Debenture Holder whose name is appearing on the Register of Beneficial Owners as on the Record Date. The first Coupon payment Date is 30 Sept
2022, with last coupon payment on the scheduled redemption date i.e. 27 July 2027. The tenure of the said NCD Series 4 is 60 months.

This NCD Series 4 was listed on BSE Limited on July 29, 2022
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Note 6

Security terms

NCD Series 4 are secured by each of the following security in favour of the Debenture Trustee (holding for the benefit of the NCD Holders):

a) First ranking sole and exclusive security interest by way of an equitable mortgage on carpet area of approximately 779,466 sq ft in building 12 D (identified
units in building) along with the common areas, usage and access rights appurtenant to the units mortgaged in Building 12D as mentioned in the trust deet,
situated on a notionally demarcated land admeasuring approximately 17414.77 square metres {equivalent to 4.30 acres), forming part of a portion of land
admeasuring 14.02 hectares equivalent to 34.64 acres or thereabout declared as ‘Special Economic Zone’ land from and out of the larger piece of land bearing
Survey no. 64(part), lying, being and situated at Madhapur Village, Serilingampally Mandal, Ranga Reddy District, Hyderabad.

b) A charge on the escrow account to be created, in which receivables of the Mortgaged Properties shall be received, save and except any common area
maintenance charges payable to Sundew with respect to the maintenance of the mortgaged properties.
c) Corporate guarantee executed by Sundew.

Redemption terms:

a) NCD Series 4 are redeemable by way of bullet repayment at the end of 60 months from the date of aliotment, i.e. 27 July, 2027.

b) Interest is payable on the last day of each financial quarter in a year (starting from 30 September, 2022) until the scheduled redemption date.

¢) The Coupon shall be increased by 25 bps for every notch downgrade in the rating by the Credit Rating Agency. In case rating is upgraded after any rating
downgrade, the Coupon shall be decreased by 25 bps for each upgrade.

d) Upon occurrence of a mandatory redemption event, the Debenture Trustee may, by issuing not less than 30 (thirty) business days’ notice to the Issuer require
the Issuer to redeem in full, all the debentures then outstanding by paying an amount eqgual to the total mandatory redemption amount in respect of each
debenture.

On 15 March 2023, Mindspace Business Parks REIT issued 55000 Green Debt Securities in the form of listed, rated, secured, non-cumulative, taxable, transferable,
redeemable non-convertible debentures (“Mindspace REIT Green Bond 1”) having nominal value of Rs. 1,00,000 {Rupees One lakh only) each, amounting to Rs.
5,500,000,000 {Rupees Five thousand five hundred millions only) with a coupon rate of 8.02% p.a. payable quarterly beginning from the end of first quarter from
the date of allotment i.e. 15 March 2023, with last coupon payment on the scheduled redemption date i.e. 13 April 2026 The tenure of the said Mindspace REIT
Green Bond 1 is 3 year and 30 days from 15 March 2023, being date of allotment. The date of payment of first coupon is 31 March 2023.

Mindspace REIT Green Bond 1 was listed on BSE Limited on March 16, 2023.

Security terms
Mindspace REIT Green Bond 1 are secured by each of the following security in favour of the Debenture Trustee (holding for the benefit of the NCD Holders) as
more particularly described in the transaction documents, summarized as follows.

a) First and exclusive charge registered by way of equitable mortgage (including receivables arising therefrom) on the aggregate leasable area of approximately
1.067 million square feet or thereabouts in buildings no. 5B and 9 of Madhapur Hyderabad (approx. 245,977 sq. ft. in building no. 5B and approx. 821,717 building
no. 9) together with the proportionate undivided right, title and interest in (i) the notionally demarcated land admeasuring approximately 7,169.90 square metres
{equivalent to 1.7717 acres) on which Building 5B is situated, and (ii) the notionally demarcated land admeasuring approximately 16,871.82 square metres
(equivalent to 4.17 acres) on which Building 9 is situated.

b) A charge on the escrow account in which receivables of the Mortgaged Properties shall be payable to Intime Properties Limited.

c) Corporate guarantee executed by Intime Properties Limited.

Redemption terms:
a) Mindspace REIT Green Bond 1 are redeemable by way of bullet repayment at the end of 3 years and 30 days from the date of allotment (date of allotment
being 15 March 2023 and date of redemption being 13 April 2026).

b) Interest is payable on the last day of each financial quarter in a year (starting from 31 March, 2023) until the scheduled redemption date and on the scheduled

redemption date.
c) The Coupon shall be increased by 25 bps for every notch downgrade in the rating by the Credit Rating Agency. In case rating is upgraded after any rating

downgrade, the Coupon shall be decreased by 25 bps for each upgrade.

d) Upon occurrence of a mandatory redemption event, the Debenture Trustee may, by issuing not less than 30 (thirty) business days’ notice to the issuer require
the Issuer to redeem in full, all the debentures then outstanding by paying an amount equal to the total mandatory redemption amount in respect of each
debenture.
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Note 7

Note 8

In June 2023, Mindspace Business Park REIT issued 50,000 listed, rated, secured, non-cumulative, taxable, transferrable, redeemable, non-convertible debentures
of face value of INR 1,00,000 (Indian Rupees One Lakh only) per Debenture for aggregate principal amount of upto INR 5,000,000,000/- (Rupees Five Thousand
Million Only) with a coupon rate of 7.75% p.a. payable quarterly. Coupon on the outstanding Nominal value of each debenture shall be applicable and computed
from day to day, be prorated on an actual/ actual basis for the actual number of days in the Coupon Period and be payable in arrears on the relevant Coupon
Payment date to the Debenture Holder whose name is appearing on the Register of Beneficial Owners as on the Record Date. The first Coupon payment Date is 30
June 2023, with last coupon payment on the scheduled redemption date i.e. 30 June 2026. The tenure of the said NCD Series 6 is 3 year and 29 days.

This NCD Series 6 was listed on BSE Limited on June 06, 2023.

Security terms

NCD Series 6 are secured by each of the following security in favour of the Debenture Trustee (holding for the benefit of the NCD Holders):

a) first ranking sole and exclusive security interest, by way of a registered simple mortgage on identified units in buildings 6, 7 and 8 of Commerzone Yerwada
adding to a cumulative carpet area of approximately 0.7msf across these 3 buildings at Commerzone Yerwada, Pune along with the commaon areas, usage and
access rights appurtenant to the units mortgaged in Buildings 6, 7 and 8 as mentioned in the trust deed, situated on a notionally demarcated land admeasuring
approximately 26,162 square metres , forming part of a portion of land larger land admeasuring 1,03,919 square metres (after deducting 21 square metres for
road from total extent of 1,03,940 square metres) at Village Yerwada, Taluka Haveli, District Pune and within the limits of Pune Municipal Corporation

b) A charge on the escrow account to be created, in which receivables of the Mortgaged Properties shall be received, save and except any common area
maintenance charges payable to Sundew with respect to the maintenance of the mortgaged properties.

c) Corporate guarantee executed by Mindspace Business Parks Private Limited.

Redemption terms:

a) NCD Series 6 are redeemable by way of bullet repayment at the end of 3 year and 29 days from the date of allotment i.e. 30 June 2026.

b} Interest is payable on the last day of each financial quarter in a year (starting from 30 June 2023) until the scheduled redemption date.

c) The Coupon shall be increased by 25 bps for every notch downgrade in the rating by the Credit Rating Agency. In case rating is upgraded after any rating
downgrade, the Coupon shall be decreased by 25 bps for each upgrade.

d) Upon occurrence of a mandatory redemption event, the Debenture Trustee may, by issuing not less than 30 (thirty) business days’ notice to the Issuer require
the Issuer to redeem in full, all the debentures then outstanding by paying an amount equal to the total mandatory redemption amount in respect of each
debenture.

In September 2023, Mindspace Business Park REIT issued 50,000 listed, rated, secured, non-cumulative, taxable, transferrable, redeemable, non-convertible
debentures of face value of INR 1,00,000 (Indian Rupees One Lakh only) per Debenture for aggregate principal amount of upto INR 5,000,000,000/- {(Rupees Five
Thousand Million Only} with a coupon rate of 8.03% p.a. payable quarterly. Coupon on the outstanding Nominal vaiue of each debenture shall be applicable and
computed from day to day, be prorated on an actual/ actual basis for the actual number of days in the Coupon Period and be payable in arrears on the relevant
Coupon Payment date to the Debenture Holder whose name is appearing on the Register of Beneficial Owners as on the Record Date. The first Coupon Payment
Date is 30 September 2023, with last coupon payment on the scheduled redemption date i.e. 10 December 2026. The tenure of the said NCD Series 7 is 3 years
and 3 months.

This NCD Series 7 was listed on BSE Limited on September 13, 2023.

Security terms

NCD Series 7 are secured by each of the following security in favour of the Debenture Trustee (holding for the benefit of the NCD Holders):

a) first ranking sole and exclusive security interest, by way of an equitable mortgage on identified units in buildings 2A, 2B and 10 of Mindspace Madhapur adding
to a cumulative carpet area of approximately 0.73 msf across these 3 buildings in buildings 2A, 2B and 10 as mentioned in the trust deed, situated on a notionally
demarcated land admeasuring approximately 36,258 square metres, being and situated at Mindspace Madhapur, Madhapur Village, Serilingampally Mandal,
Ranga Reddy District, Hyderabad.

b} first ranking sole and exclusive security interest by way of a hypothecation over Collection Account and Escrow Account and all amounts standing to the credit
of or accrued or accruing on, receivables, movable assets pertaining to Mortgaged Immovable Properties as further specified in transaction documents.

¢) Corporate guarantee executed by KRIT.

Redemption terms:
a) NCD Series 7 are redeemable by way of bullet repayment at the end of 3 year and 3 months from the date of allotment i.e. 10 December 2026.

b) Interest is payable on the last day of each financial quarter in a year (starting from 30 September 2023) until the scheduled redemption date with last payment
falling on the scheduled redemption date.

c) The Coupon shall be increased by 25 bps for every notch downgrade in the rating by the Credit Rating Agency. In case rating is upgraded after any rating
downgrade, the Coupon shall be decreased by 25 bps for each upgrade.

d} Upon occurrence of a mandatory redemption event, the Debenture Trustee may, by 1ssu;g,na'tl—ress han 30 (thirty) business days’ notice to the Issuer require
the Issuer to redeem in full, all the debentures then outstanding by paying an amouutz equﬂF [t eTl,.\Q:EG mandatory redemption amount in respect of each
debenture. /X o

Hu

&

Refer note 36 for Ratio disclosure.
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Note 1

Note 2

Other financial liabilities (Non-current)

Particulars As at As at

31 December 2023 31 March 2023
Interest accrued but not due on debentures - 522
Other payables to related party (refer Note 29) 26 18
Total 26 540
Borrowings {Current)
Particulars As at As at

31 December 2023 31 March 2023
Secured
Current maturities of long-term debt
10 year G-Sec linked secured, listed, senior, taxable, non-cumulative, rated, principal protected — market linked, 3,747 -
redeemable, non-convertible debentures (“Market Linked Debentures / MLD Series 2”) (net of issue expenses, at
amortised cost) (31 March 2023 : 3,741 million) (refer note 15 (1))
Secured, listed, senior, taxable, non-cumulative, rated, redeemable non-convertible debentures (NCD Series 1) (net - 1,996
of issue expenses, at amortised cost) (31 March 2023 : 1,996 miillion) (refer note 15 (2}))
Secured, listed, senior, taxable, non-cumulative, rated, redeemable non-convertible debentures (NCD Series 2) (net 750 -
of issue expenses, at amortised cost} (31 March 2023 : 750 million) {refer note 15 (3))
Secured, listed, senior, taxable, non-cumulative, rated, redeemable non-convertible debentures (NCD Series 3) (net 4,982 -
of issue expenses, at amortised cost) (31 March 2023 : 4,971 million) (refer Note 4)
Unsecured
Commercial Paper (Series -1) {31 March 2023 : Nil) (refer Note 1 below) - =
Commercial Paper (Series -2) {31 March 2023 : Nil) {refer Note 2 below) 1,446 -
Total 10,925 1,996

On 20 December 2022, Mindspace Business Parks REIT issued 2,000 Commercial Papers with a face value of Rs. 5,00,000 (Rupees five lakhs only} each, at a
discount of 7.2% per annum to the face value. The discounted amount raised by the REIT through MREIT CP/1 was Rs. 982,556,000 (Rupees nine hundred eighty
three millions only) and the value payable on maturity is Rs. 1000,000,000 (Rupees one thousand millions only). Discount on Commercial papers is amortized over
the tenor of the underlying instrument. The commercial papers were listed on BSE and matured and repaid on 20 March 2023.

On 19 December 2023, Mindspace Business Parks REIT issued 3,000 Commercial Papers with a face value of Rs. 5,00,000 (Rupees five lakhs only) each, at a
discount of 8.0% per annum to the face value. The discounted amount raised by the REIT through the commercial paper was Rs. 1,44,61,17,000 (Rupees one
billion four hundred forty-six million one hundred seventeen thousand only) and the value payable on maturity is Rs. 1,500,000,000 (Rupees one billion five
hundred million only). Discount on Commercial papers is amortized over the tenor of the underlying instrument. The commercial papers are listed on BSE and

shall mature on 06 June 2024.
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Trade payables

Particulars

As at
31 December 2023

As at
31 March 2023

Trade payables

- Total outstanding dues to micro and small enterprises 1 1
- Total outstanding dues other than micro and small enterprises 8 16

Total 9 17
Other financial liabilities {Current)
Particulars As at As at

31 December 2023 31 March 2023
Interest accrued but not due on debentures 733 3
Interest accrued and due on others 0 0
Unpaid Distributions 0 0
Other liabilities
- to related party* (refer Note 29) 32 26
- to others 1 -
Total 766 29
* Expense of Rs. 17 million (31 March 2023 Rs. 17 million) is payable to the Manager for Mindspace REIT Management Fees.
Other current liabilities
Particulars As at As at

31 December 2023 31 March 2023
Statutory dues 3 7
Total 3 7
Current tax liabilities
Particulars As at As at

31 December 2023 31 March 2023
Provision for Income Tax (Net of Advance Tax) 1 2
Total 1 2
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Notes to the Condensed Standalone Interim Financial Statements
{all amounts in Rs. milllons unless otherwise stated)

29  Related party disclosures
A Parties to Mindspace REIT as at 31 December 2023

SIl. No. Particulars Name of Entities Promoters/Partners* Directors
Axis Bank Limited Ms. Deepa Rath
1 Trustee Axis Trustee Services Limited [Refer note below) Mr. Rajesh Kumar Dahiya

Mr. Ganesh Sankaran
Mr. Ravi C. Raheja

Mr. Neel C. Raheja Mr. Ravi C. Raheja w.e.f. July 7, 2023
Mr. Neel C. Raheja w.e.f. July 7,
2023
Mr. Deepak Ghaisas w.e.f. July 11,
K Raheja Corp Investment Managers Private 2023
Manager Limited (formerly known as K Raheja Corp Mr. Bobby Parikh w.e.f. July 11,
Investment Managers LLP) 2023
{Refer note 34) Ms. Manisha Girotra w.e.f. July 11,
2023
Mr. Manish Kejriwal w.e.f. July 11,
2023
Mr. Vinod Rohira
w.e.f. Seotember 1. 2023
Mr. Ravi C. Raheja
Mr. Neel C. Raheja
3 Anbee Constructions LLP Mr. Chan.dru L Ra.heja
Mrs. Jyoti C. Raheja
Ms. Sumati Raheja
Sponsors

Mr. Ravi C. Raheja
Mr. Neel C. Raheja

4 Cape Trading LLP Mr. Chandru L Raheja
Mrs. Jyoti C. Raheja

Mr. Chandru L Raheja
Mr. Ravi C. Raheja
Mr. Neel C.Raheja
Mrs. Jyoti C. Raheja
Ms. Sumati Raheja

WL oo~ W;m

Mr. Ravi C. Raheja
Mr. Neel C Raheja

10 Capstan Trading LLP Mr. Chandru L Raheja
Mrs. Jyoti C Raheja

Mr. Ravi C. Raheja

Mr. Neel C. Raheja
Casa Maria Properties LLP Mr. Chandru L. Raheja

Mrs. Jyoti C. Raheja

11 Sponsors Group

Mr. Ravi C. Raheja

Mr. Neel C. Raheja
12 Raghukool Estate Developement LLP Mr. Chandru L Raheja

Mrs. Jyoti C. Raheja

Mr. Ravi C. Raheja
Mr. Neel C. Raheja
13 Shelter Estate Development LLP Mr. Chandru L Raheja

Mrs. Jyoti C. Raheja



MINDSPACE BUSINESS PARKS REIT

RN:IN/REIT/18-20/003
Notes to the Condensed Standalone Interim Financial Statements
{all amounts in Rs. millions unless otherwise stated)

14

Sponsors Group

K Raheja Corp Private Limited

Mr. Chandru L Raheja Jointly with
Mrs. Jyoti C. Raheja

Mrs. Jyoti C. Raheja Jointly with
Mr. Chandru L Raheja

Mr. Ravi C. Raheja Jointly with
Mr. Chandru L Raheja Jointly with
Mrs. Jyoti C. Raheja

Mr. Neel C. Raheja Jointly with
Mr. Chandru L Raheja Jointly with
Mrs. Jyoti C. Raheja

Anbee Constructions LLP

Cape Trading LLP

Capstan Trading LLP

Casa Maria Properties LLP

Raghukool Estate Developement LLP
Palm Shelter Estate Development LLP
Mr. Neel C. Raheja Jointly with

Mr. Ramesh M. Valecha

Ravi C. Raheja

Neel C. Raheja
Ramesh Valecha
Ramesh Ranganthan
Sunil Hingorani

15

16

Sponsors Group

Ivory Property Trust

Chandru L Raheja

Jyoti C. Raheja

ivory Properties & Hotels Pvt Ltd
Ravi C. Raheja

Neel C. Raheja

(ali are trustees)

Genext Hardware & Parks Private Ltd.

Mr. Ravi C. Raheja Jointly with
Mr. Chandru L Raheja Jointly with
Mrs. Jyoti C. Raheja

Mr. Neel C. Raheja Jointly with

Mr. Chandru L Raheja Jointly with

Mrs. lyoti C. Raheja

Chandru L Raheja jointly with Jyoti C.
Raheja, on behalf of the beneficiaries of
lvory Property Trust.

Ravi C. Raheja

Neel C. Raheja
Ramesh Valecha
Ramesh Ranganthan

17

Names of 5PVs / subsidiaries

1. Avacado Properties and Trading (India) Private

Limited

2. Gigaplex Estate Private Limited

3. Horizon Properties Private Limited

4. KRC Infrastructure and Projects Private
Limited

5. Intime Properties Limited

6. Sundew Properties Limited

7. K. Raheja IT Park (Hyderabad) Limited

8. Mindspace Business Parks Private Limited.




MINDSPACE BUSINESS PARKS REIT
RN:IN/REIT/19-20/003

Notes to the Condensed Standalone Interim Financial Statements
{all amounts in Rs. millions unless otherwise stated)

Board of Directors/Governing Board

Mr. Deepak Ghaisas (Independent Member)

Ms. Manisha Girotra (Independent Member)

Mr. Bobby Parikh (Independent Member)

Mr. Manish Kejriwal {Independent Member)

Mr. Ravi C. Raheja (Non Executive Non
Board of Directors/Governing Board|Independent Member)

and Key Managerial Personnel of the|Mr. Neel C. Raheja (Non Executive Non

18 |Manager (K Raheja Corp Independent Member)
Managers Private Limited ) {Refer|Mr. Vinod Rohira (Non Executive Non Independent
note 34) Member) w.e.f. September 1, 2023

Key Managerial Personnel
Mr. Ramesh Nair (Chief Executive Officer) w.e.f.

September 1, 2023

Mr. Vinod Rohira (Chief Executive Officer)
resigned w.e.f August 31, 2023

Ms. Preeti Chheda (Chief Financial Officer}

Brookfields Agro & Development Private Limited
Grange Hotels And Properties Private Limited
Immense Properties Private Limited
Novel Properties Private Limited
Entities controlled/jointly controlled [Pact Real Estate Private Limited

by members of the Board of Paradigm Logistics & Distribution Private Limited
19
Directors/Key Managerial Personnel

of the Manager Aqualine Real Estate Private Limited

K Raheja Corp Real Estate Private Limited
{Formerly known as "Feat Properties Private
Limited") {till 8th August 2023)

Carin Properties Private Limited

Asterope Properties Private Limited

Content Properties Private Limited

Sundew Real Estate Private Limited

Gencoval Stretagic Services Private Limited
Stemade Biotech Private Limited

Hariom infrafacilities Services Private Limited
K. Raheja Corp Advisory Services (Cyprus) Private
Limited

Convex Properties Private Limited

M/s Bobby Parikh & Associates

* only when acting collectively

Note:

Axis Bank Umited, being a promoter of Axis Trustee Services Limited {“Trustee”), trustee to Mindspace Business Parks REIT, also a Debenture Trustee regulated by SEBI, is
considered as a related party of Mindspace REIT in line with the SEBI REIT Regulations based on recent directions from SEBI dated 12 June 2023.
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Mindspace Business Park REIT
RN:N/REIT/19-20/003

Notes to the Condensed Standalone Interim Financial Statements
{all amounts are in Rs. millions unless otherwise stated)

29 Related party disclosures

C Closing Balances
. As at As at

Particualrs 31 December 2023 31 March 2023
Unsecured loan receivable {(non-current)
Avacado Properties & Trading (India) Private Limited 663 793
Gigaplex Estate Private Limited 12,170 11,983
Horizonview Properties Private Limited 4,833 4,490
Sundew Properties Limited 475 2,195
KRC Infrastructure & Projects Private Limited 9,281 7,857
Mindspace Business Park Private Limited 2,460 2,445
K. Raheja IT Park (Hyderabad) Limited 571 116
Unsecured loan receivable {current)
Avacado Properties & Trading (India) Private Limited * 450
Gigaplex Estate Private Limited 5,018 800
Horizonview Properties Private Limited 3,477 200
Sundew Properties Limited 10 170
KRC Infrastructure & Projects Private Limited 1,070 360
Mindspace Business Park Private Limited 1,066
K. Raheja IT Park {Hyderabad) Limited 240 -
Investment in equity share of SPVs
Avacado Properties & Trading (India) Private Limited 9,482 9,482
Gigaplex Estate Private Limited 13,121 13,121
Horizonview Properties Private Limited 0 0
Sundew Properties Limited 33,722 33,722
KRC Infrastructure & Projects Private Limited 6,368 6,368
Mindspace Business Park Private Limited 48,814 48,814
K. Raheja IT Park (Hyderabad) Limited 25,618 25,618
Intime properties Limited 15,478 15,478
Interest receivable (non-current)*
Gigaplex Estate Private Limited 96
Horizonview Properties Private Limited 26
Sundew Properties Limited - 185
KRC infrastructure & Projects Private Limited 107
Mindspace Business Park Private Limited 95
K. Raheja IT Park (Hyderabad) Limited 21
Interest receivable {current)*
Gigaplex Estate Private Limited 240 -
Horizonview Properties Private Limited 64 2
Sundew Properties Limited 201 g
KRC Infrastructure & Projects Private Limited 152
Mindspace Business Park Private Limited 117
K. Raheja IT Park {Hyderabad) Limited 32




Mindspace Business Park REIT
RN:IN[REIT,{lBJD[DDB

Notes to the Condensed Standalone Interim Financial Statements
{all amounts are in Rs. millions unless otherwise stated)

29 Related party disclosures

C Closing Balances

Particualrs

As at
31 December 2023

As at
31 March 2023

Guarantee commision fees receivable (non-current)
Horizonview Properties Private Limited

Sundew Properties Limited

KRC Infrastructure & Projects Private Limited
Mindspace Business Park Private Limited

Guarantee commision fees receivable (current)
Horizonview Properties Private Limited

Sundew Properties Limited

KRC Infrastructure & Projects Private Limited
Mindspace Business Park Private Limited

Other Financial Liabilities {non-current other payables)
Gigaplex Estate Private Limited

Sundew Properties Limited

Mindspace Business Park Private Limited

K. Raheja IT Park (Hyderabad) Limited

Intime properties Limited

Other Financial Liabilities {(current other liabilities)
Gigaplex Estate Private Limited

Sundew Properties Limited

Mindspace Business Park Private Limited

Intime properties Limited

K Raheja Corp Investment Managers Private Limited

Co-Sponsor Initial Corpus
Anbee Constructions LLP
Cape Trading LLP

Current Account
Axis Bank Limited

Dividend Account
Axis Bank Limited

Corporate guarantees issued and outstanding
Horizonview Properties Private Limited
Sundew Properties Limited

KRC Infrastructure & Projects Private Limited
Mindspace Business Park Private Limited

17

S W D =

DO b

4,000
8,535
1,700

13

(2)

18

2,984

1,175
4,000
5,859
5,400




Mindspace Business Park REIT

RN:IN/REIT/19-20/003

Notes to the Condensed Standalone Interim Financial Statements
(all amounts are in Rs. millions unless otherwise stated)

29

Related party disclosures

Closing Balances

Particualrs

As at
31 December 2023

Security and Corporate guarantee extended by Sundew towards debentures
Sundew Properties Limited

Security and Corporate guarantee extended by MBPPL towards debentures
Mindspace Business Park Private Limited

Security and Corporate guarantee extended by GIGAPLEX towards debentures
Gigaplex Estate Private Limited

Security and Corporate guarantee extended by INTIME towards debentures
Intime Properties Limited

Security and Corporate guarantee extended by MBBPL towards debentures
Mindspace Business Park Private Limited

Security and Corporate guarantee extended by KRIT towards debentures
K. Raheja IT Park (Hyderabad) Limited

8,750

750

5,000

5,500

5,000

5,000

As at
31 March 2023
8,750
2,750
5,000
5,500

*after Ind AS Adjustments




Mindspace Business Park REIT
RN:IN/REIT/19-20/003

Notes to the Condensed Standalone Interim Financial Statements
{all amounts are in Rs. millions unless otherwise stated)

30 Commitments and contingencies
a) Contingent Liabllities
Mindspace REIT has provided corporate guarantees for loans availed by KRC Infra, MBPPL and Sundew and the outstanding guarantee is Rs. 14,235 million {31 March 2023 Rs, 16,434

million)

b) Commitments
There are no commitments as at December 31, 2023 and March 31, 2023

31 Financlal instruments

{a) The carrying value and fair value of financial instruments by categories are as below:
Particulars Carrying value Carrying value
31 December 2023 31 March 2023
Financlal assets - -
Fair value through profit and loss - -
Fair value through other comprehensive income E:
Measured at amortised cost
Loans {Non current) 30,453 29,879
Loans {current) 10,881 1,980
Cash and cash equivalents 3,044 2,984
Other financial assets 847 568
Total Assets 45,225 35,411
Financial liabilities
Fair value through profit and loss - -
Falr value through other comprehensive income - -
Measured at amortised cost
Borrowings (Non Current) 20,404 19,892
Borrowings (Current) 10,925 1,996
Other Financial Liabilities 792 569
Trade Payables 9 17
Total liabilities 32,130 22,474
The management considers that the carrying amounts of above financial assets and financial liabilities approximate their fair vaiues.
(b) Measurement of fair values
The section explains the judgement and estimates made in determining the fair values of the financial instruments that are:
a) recognised and measured at fair value
b) measured at amortised cost and for which fair values are disclosed in the Condensed Standalone financial statements.
To provide an indication about the reliability of the inputs used in determining fair value, Mindspace REIT has classified its financial instruments into the three levels prescribed under the
accounting standard. An explanation of each level is mentioned below:
Fair vaiue hierarchy
Level 1 - Quoted prices {(unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.
Level 2 — Inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices).
Level 3 - Inputs for the assets or liabilities that are not based on observable market data {unobservable inputs).
{c) Financial instruments

Quantitative disclosures fair value measurement hierarchy for assets as at 31 December 2023;
[Particulars | Total | Level 1 | Level 2 | Level 3 | Total
fFinanciaI assets & liabilities measured at fair value = -

Quantitative disclosures fair value measurement hierarchy for assets as at 31 March 2023:
|Particulars | Total | Level 1 | Level 2 | Level 3 | Total
IFinanciaI assets & liabilities measured at fair value I - = | = :

{d} Transfers between Level 1, Level 2 and Level 3
There were no transfers between Level 1, Level 2 or Level 3 during the period ended 31 December 2023 and 31 March 2023.




Mindspace Business Park REIT
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Notes to the Condensed Standalone Interim Financial Statements
(all amounts are in Rs. millions unless otherwise stated)

{e

32

33

35

Determination of fair values

Fair values of financial assets and liabilities have been determined for measurement and/or disclosure purposes based on the following methods. When applicable, further information
about the assumptions made in determining fair values is disclosed in the notes specific to that asset or liability.

i) The fair value of mutual funds are based on price quotations at reporting date.

ii) The fair values of other current financial assets and financial liabilities are considered to be equivalent to their carrying values.

iii) The fair values of borrowings at fixed rates are considered to be equivalent to present value of the future contracted cashflows discounted at the current market rate.

Segment Reporting
Mindspace REIT does not have any reportable operating segments as at 31 December 2023 and 31 March 2023 and hence, disclosure under Ind AS 108, Operating segments has not been
provided in the Condensed Standalone financial statements.

a) The figures for the quarter ended 31 December 2023 are the derived figures between the figures in respect of the nine months ended 31 December 2023 and the figures for the half year
ended 30 September 2023, which are subjected to limited review.

b) The figures for the quarter ended 31 December 2022 are the derived figures between the figures in respect of the nine months ended 31 December 2022 and the figures for the half year
ended 30 September 2022, which were subjected to limited review.

c} The figures for the quarter ended 30 September 2023 are the derived figures between the figures in respect of the half year ended 30 September 2023 and the figures for the quarter
ended 30 June 2023, which are subjected to limited review

K Raheja Corp Investment Managers LLP (Manager) is converted into a private company as per Rule 5 of Companies (Authorised to Register) Rules 2014. Since the Manager has received
approval for the conversion effective July 07, 2023, The Manager, therefore, stands converted into a private company i.e., K Raheja Corp Investment Managers Private Limited effective July
07, 2023.

"0" represents value less than Rs. 0.5 million.
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Chartered Accountants
Lotus Corporate Park

1st Floor, Wing A-G

CTS No. 185/A, Jay Coach

Off Western Express Highway
Goregaon (East)

Mumbai-400 063
Maharashtra, India

Tel: +91 22 6245 1000
Fax: +91 22 6245 1001

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON REVIEW OF CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED INTERIM
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

To

The Board of Directors,

K Raheja Corp Investment Managers Private Limited (formerly known as K Raheja Corp Investment
Managers LLP) (The “Investment Manager”)

(Acting in capacity as the Investment Manager of Mindspace Business Parks REIT)

Introduction

1. We have reviewed the accompanying unaudited Condensed Consolidated Interim Financial
Statements of MINDSPACE BUSINESS PARKS REIT (“the REIT"/ “the Parent”) and its subsidiaries
(the “Special Purpose Vehicles”) (together referred as the “"Mindspace Group”), which comprise the
unaudited Condensed Consolidated Balance Sheet as at December 31, 2023, the unaudited
Condensed Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss, including other comprehensive income, the
unaudited Condensed Consolidated Statement of Cash Flow for the quarter and nine months ended
December 31, 2023, the unaudited Condensed Consolidated Statement of changes in Unitholders’
Equity for the nine months ended December 31, 2023, and the unaudited Statement of Net
Distributable Cash Flow of the REIT and each of its special purpose vehicles for quarter and nine
months ended December 31, 2023, as an additional disclosure in accordance with paragraph 4.6 of
Chapter 4 to the Security Exchange Board of India (SEBI) Master Circular No. SEBI/HO/DDHS-PoD-
2/P/CIR/2023/116 dated July 06, 2023 (“SEBI Circular") along with summary of the material
accounting policies and select exptanatory notes (together hereinafter referred as the "Condensed
Consolidated Interim Financial Statements”).

2. The Condensed Consolidated Interim Financial Statements, which is the responsibility of the
Investment Manager and approved by the Board of Directors of the Investment Manager, have been
prepared in accordance with the requirements of SEBI (Real Estate Investment Trusts) Regulations,
2014 as amended from time to time read with Master Circular No. SEBI/HO/DDHS-PoD-
2/P/CIR/2023/116 dated July 06, 2023 (“SEBI REIT Regulations”); Regulation 52 of the SEBI
(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (“Listing Regulations”); Indian
Accounting Standard (Ind AS) 34 “Interim Financial Reporting”, as prescribed in Rule 2(1)(a) of the
Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 (as amended) and other accounting
principles generally accepted in India, to the extent not inconsistent with the SEBI REIT Regulations.
Our responsibility is to express a conclusion on the Condensed Consolidated Interim Financial
Statements based on our review.

Scope of Review

3. We conducted our review in accordance with the Standard on Review Engagements (SRE) 2410
‘Review of Interim Financial Information Performed by the Independent Auditor of the Entity’, issued
by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI). A review of interim financial information
consists of making inquiries, primarily of the Investment Manager’'s personnel responsible for
financial and accounting matters and applying analytical and other review procedures. A review is
substantially less in scope than an audit conducted in accordance with Standards on Auditing issued
by ICAI and consequently does not enable us to obtain assurance that we would become aware of
all significant matters that might be identified in an audit. Accordingly, we do not express an audit

opinion.
Regd. Office: One 3, 32nd floor, Senapati Bapat Marg, Elphinstone Road {West), Mumbai-400 013, Maharashtra, India.
Deloitte Haskins & Limited Liability having LLP identification No: AAB-8737
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4. The Condensed Consolidated Interim Financial Statements include the financial information of the
entities listed in Annexure A to this report.

Conclusion

5. Based on our review conducted and procedures performed as stated in paragraph 3 above, nothing
has come to our attention that causes us to believe that the accompanying Condensed Consolidated
Interim Financial Statements have not been prepared in accordance with SEBI REIT Regulations,
Ind AS 34 “Interim Financial Reporting”, as prescribed in Rule 2(1)(a) of the Companies (Indian
Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 (as amended) and other accounting principles generally
accepted in India, to the extent not inconsistent with the SEBI REIT Regulations and has not
disclosed the information required to be disclosed in terms of the Listing Regulations, including the
manner in which it is to be disclosed or that it contains any material misstatement.

Emphasis of matter

6. We draw attention to Note 42(5)(a) to the Condensed Consolidated Interim Financial Statements
regarding freehold land and building thereon (Paradigm, Malad) held by Avacado Properties and
Trading (India) Private Limited (Special Purpose Vehicle) which is presently under litigation. Pending
the outcome of proceedings and a final closure of the matter, no adjustments have been made in
the Condensed Consolidated Interim Financial Statements for the quarter and nine months ended
December 31, 2023. Our conclusion is not modified in respect of this matter.

7. We draw attention to Note 19(a) of the Condensed Consolidated Interim Financial Statements, which
describes the presentation of “Unit Capital” as “"Equity” to comply with the SEBI REIT Regulations.
Our conclusion is not modified in respect of this matter.

For DELOITTE HASKINS & SELLS LLP
Chartered Accountants
(Firm’s Registration No. 117366W/W-100018)

Vi

W

Nilesh Shah
Partner
Membership No. 49660

Mumbai, January 29, 2024 UDIN: 2"/0('(('?4(0 gKFKFCg“fZ?'
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Annexure “A”

List of entities included in the Condensed Consolidated Interim Financial Statements
A. Parent entity

i. Mindspace Business Parks REIT

B. Special Purpose Vehicles

i. Avacado Properties and Trading (India) Private Limited
ii. Horizonview Properties Private Limited

iii. KRC Infrastructure and Projects Private Limited

iv. Gigaplex Estate Private Limited

v. Sundew Properties Limited

vi. Intime Properties Limited

vii. K. Raheja IT Park (Hyderabad) Limited

viii. Mindspace Business Parks Private Limited



VIINDSPACE BUSINESS PARKS REIT
RN:IN/REIT/19-20/003

Condensed Consolidated Interim Financial Statements
Consolidated Balance Sheet

(AIl amounts in Rs. million unless otherwise stated)

ASSETS

Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment
Investment property
Investment property under construction
Other Intangible assets
Financial assets

- Investments

- Other tinancial assets
Defeired tax assets (net)
Non-current Tax assets (net)
Other non-current assets
Total non-current assets

Current assets
Inventories
Financial assets
- Trade receivables
- Cash and cash equivalents
-~ Other bank balances
- Other financial assets
Other current assets
Total current assets
Total assets before regulatory deferral account

Regulatory deferral account - assets

Total assets

Note

~N o B

14
15A
15B

17

As at As at
31 December 2023 31 March 2023
{(Unaudited) (Audited)
1,223 1,296
205,765 205.144
12,836 7.867
| |
33 29
3,020 2.526
352 473
949 928
1,020 580
225,199 214 844
52 72
635 572
3,356 4.062
2,804 206
3,925 2533
687 586
11.459 8,033
236,658 226877
249 354
136,907 EET RN




MINDSPACE BUSINESS PARKS REIT
RN:IN/REIT/19-20/003

Condensed Consolidated Interim Financial Statements
Consolidated Balance Sheet

(Al amounts in Rs. million unless otherwise stated)

Note As at As at
31 December 2023 31 March 2023
Unaudited Audited

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES (Unaudited) (Audited)
EQUITY
Corpus 18 0 0
Unit Capital 19 162,839 162,839
Other equity 20 (19,486) (15,012)
Equity attributable to unit holders of the Mindspace REIT 143,353 147,827
Non-controlling interest 47 7,664 7,955
Total equity 151,017 155,782
LIABILITIES
Non-current liabilities
Financial liabilities

- Borrowings 21 47,001 45,842

- Lease liabilities 125 114

- Other financial liabilities 22 3,585 4,153
Provisions 23 74 67
Deferred tax liabilities (net) 24 3,669 2,494
Other non-current liabilities 25 446 482
Total non-current liabilities 54,900 53,152
Current liabilities
Financial liabilities

- Borrowings 26 19,997 8,693

- Lease liabilities 13 13

- Trade payables 27

- total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and
small enterprises 56 133
- total outstanding dues of creditors other than
micro enterprises and small enterprises 829 576

- Other [inancial labilitics 28 8,835 7,696
Provisions 29 7 34
Other current Habilities 30 1,199 1,127
Current Tax liabilities (net) 31 54 25
Total current liabilities 30,990 18,297
Total liabilities before regulatory deferral account 85,890 71,449
Total equity and liabilities before regulatory deferral account 236,907 227,231
Regulatory deferral account - liabilities - -
Total Equity and Liabilities 236,907 227,231
Material accounting policies 3
See the accompanying notes to the Condensed Consolidated 4-55

Interim Financial Statements

As per our report of even date attached:
for Deloitte Haskins & Sells LLP
Chartered Accountants

Firm'’s registration number: 117366W/W-100018

for and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
K Raheja Corp Investment Managers Private Limited (Formerly known as
K Raheja Corp Investment Managers LLP)

facting as the Manager to Mindspace Business Parks REIT)

/\E\E}é{,_a«(,._,z j j{ /1”1, / M S

i\ \I | l( \
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i J

Nilesh Shah

Partner

Membership number: 49660
Place: Mumbai

Date : 29 January 2024

| \ ;
{ekC. Raheja
Lirector
DIN: 00029010
Place: Mumbai
Date : 29 January 2024

Ramesh Nair
Chief Executive Officer

Place: Mumbai
Date : 29 January 2024

Preeti N. Chheda
Chief Financial Officer

Place: Mumbai
Date : 29 January 2024
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MINDSPACE BUSINESS PARKS REIT
RN:IN/REIT/19-20/003

Condensed Consolidated Interim Financial Statements
Consolidated Statement of changes in Unit holder's Equity
(All amounts in Rs. million unless otherwise stated)

A. Corpus
Balance as on 1 April 2022
Changes during the year
Balance as on 31 March 2023
Balance as on 1 April 2023
Changes during the period

Closing balance as on 31 December 2023

Corpus
Balance as on 1 April 2022
Changes during the period

Balance as on 31 December 2022

B. Unit Capital

Balance as at 1 April 2022
Changes during the year
Balance as at 31 March 2023

Balance as at 1 April 2023
Changes during the period
Balance as at 31 December 2023

Unit Capital

Balance as at 1 April 2022
Changes during the period
Balance as at 31 December 2022

C. Other equity

Retained Earnings

Balance as at 1 April 2022

Add: Profit for the year aftributable to the unitholders of Mindspace REIT

Add: Other comprehensive income/(expense) attributable to the unitholders of Mindspace REIT
Less: Distribution to Unitholders for the quarter ended 31 March 2022*

Less: Distribution to Unitholders for the quarter ended 30 June 2022*

Less: Distribution to Unitholders for the quarter ended 30 September 2022*

Less: Distribution to Unitholders for the quarter ended 31 December 2022*

Less: Transfer to/from Debenture Redemption Reserve**

Balance as at 31 March 2023
Balance as at 1 April 2023

Add: Profit for the period attributable to the unitholders of Mindspace REIT

Add: Other comprehensive income/(expense) attributable to the unitholders of Mindspace REIT
Less: Distribution to Unitholders for the quarter ended 31 March 2023*

Less: Distribution to Unitholders for the quarter ended 30 June 2023*

Less: Distribution to Unitholders for the quarter ended 30 September 2023*

Less: Transfer to/from Debenture Redemption Reserve™*

Balance as at 31 December 2023

Other equity
Retained Earnings
Balance as at 1 April 2022

Add: Profit for the period attributable to the unitholders of Mindspace REIT

Add: Other comprehensive income attributable to the unitholders of Mindspace REIT
Less: Distribution to Unitholders for the quarter ended 31 March 2022*

Less: Distribution to Unitholders for the quarter ended 30 June 2022*

Less: Distribution to Unitholders for the quarter ended 30

Less: Transfer to Debenture
Balance as at 31 December 2022

Reserve**

Amount

Amount

Amount

162,839

162,839
162,839

162,839

Amount
162,839

162,839

Amount
6,743)
2,836
(6)
(2,734)
2,811)
2,817)
(2,846)
(425)
(15,546)
(15,546)
4,065

(2,852)
(2,846)
(2,841)

134

(19,886)

Amount
(6,743)
3,126

,734)
(2,811)
(2,817)

(12,318)



MINDSPACE BUSINESS PARKS REIT
RN:IN/REIT/19-20/003

Condensed Consolidated Interim Financial Statements

Consolidated Statement of changes in Unit holder's Equity

(All amounts in Rs. million unless otherwise stated)

Debenture Redemption Reserve** Amount

Balance as at 1 April 2022 109
Transfer to retained earnings (5)
Transfer from retained earnings 430
Balance as at 31 March 2023 534
Balance as at T April 2023 534
Transfer to retained earnings (165)
Transfer from retained earnings 31
Balance as at 31 December 2023 400
Debenture Redemption Reserve** Amount
Balance as at 1 April 2022 109
Transfer from retained earnings 339
Balance as at 31 December 2022 448

* The distributions made by Trust to its Unitholders are based on the Net Distributable Cash flows (NDCF) of Mindspace REIT under the REIT

Regulations.
** Refer Note 20

Material accounting policies - refer note 3

See the accompanying notes to the Condensed Consolidated Interim Financial Statements 4-55

As per our report of even date aitached:

for Deloitte Haskins & Sells LLP
Chartered Accountants

Firm’s registration number: 117366 W/W-100018

ﬂ;{ I{xi‘.ﬂ_‘f*"
- W

Nilesh Shah
Partner
Membership number: 49660

Place: Mumbai
Date : 29 January 2024

for and on behalf of the Board of Directors of

K Raheja Corp Investment Managers Private Limited (Formerly known as K Raheja

Corp Investment Managers LLP)

‘r:u'f.i'-“__' as the Manager to Mindspace Business Parks REIT)

A Y 1

| { 141 o
\\ k + e - — LJ(}/&! L
\\ i}’é‘f‘ A“"‘f}F/ Ramesh Nair

3 o™ Chief Executive Officer
I 00029010

Place Mumbai

Date : 29 January 2024

Place: Mumbai
Date : 29 January 2024

[/ ez ( A
f o Ty s,

Preeti N. Chheda
Chief Financial Officer

Place: Mumbai
Date : 29 January 2024
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MINDSPACE BUSINESS PARKS REIT
RN:IN/REIT/19-20/003

Condensed Consolidated Interim Financial Statements
Notes to Accounts

(All amounts in Rs. million unless otherwise stated)

1

Organisation Structure

The condensed consolidated Interim financial statements (‘Condensed Consolidated Interim Financial Statements’) comprise financial statements of Mindspace Business
Parks Real Estate Investment Trust (‘Mindspace Business Parks REIT/ Mindspace REIT/Trust), its SPVs Mindspace Business Parks Private Limited ('MBPPL'), Gigaplex
Estate Private Limited (‘Gigaplex'), Sundew Properties Limited ('Sundew') Intime Properties Limited ('Intime"), K Raheja IT Park (Hyderabad) Limited (KRIT'), KRC
Infrastructure and Projects Private Limited ('KRC Infra’), Horizonview Properties Private Limited (‘Horizonview'), Avacado Properties and Trading (India) Private Limited
(‘Avacado’) (individually referred to as “Special Purpose Vehicle” or *SPV’ or "Asset SPV" and together referred to as ‘Mindspace Business Parks Group’/Mindspace
Group') The SPVs are companies domiciled in India

Anbee Constructions LLP (*ACL’) and Cape Trading LLP (‘CTL’) collectively known as (the ‘Sponsors’ or the ‘Co-Sponsors’) have set up the 'Mindspace Business Parks
REIT" as an irrevocable trust, pursuant to the Trust Deed, under the provisions of the Indian Trusts Act, 1882 and the Trust has been registered with Securities and
Exchange Board of India (‘'SEBI') as a Real Estate Investment Trust on 18th November 2019 under Regulation 6 of the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Real
Estate Investment Trusts) Regulations. 2014 having registration number RN:IN/REIT/19-20/003 The Trustee to Mindspace REIT is Axis Trustee Services Limited (the
‘Trustee’) and the Manager for Mindspace REIT is K Raheja Corp Investment Managers Private Limited (Formerly known as K Raheja Corp Investment Managers LLP)
(the ‘Investment Manager’)

The objectives and principal activity ot Mindspace REIT 1s to carry on the activity of a Ieal estate investment trust. as permissible under the REIT Regulations. to 1aise
funds through the REIT. to make Investments in accordance with the REIT Regulations and the Investment Strategy and to carry on the activities as may he required for
operating the REIT, including incidental and ancillary matters thereto

The units of the tiust were listed on the Bombay Stock Exchange (BSE Limited) and National Stock Exchange (NSE) on 7 August 2020

The brief activities and

of the SPVs are ided

; e Shareholdin Shareholding
Name of the SPV Activities (in percentage) as at 31 [g)ecember 23 (in percentage) as at 31 March 2023
v sngzaged  u oreal Mindspace Business Parks Mindspace Business Parks
l nt  projecls such as S REIT : 100% REIT 100%
Zone  (SEZ).  Inforn
! nelog . :oand commn
s. The has its ts in I
i Mun Pune Poc 1
MBPPL }(Hyderabad) The SPV is a deemed
‘distribution licensce pursuant to which i
can distribute power to the SEZ tenants
within the Park It commenced distnbution
ar neenety o orggeet o Anelt Mavi
Sumbar from ¢ Apnl 2615
The SPV 15 engaged 1n 1eal estate Business Parks Business Parks
development projects such as  Special 100% 100%
Economic  Zone (SEZ), Information
Technology Parks and other commercial
assets The SPV has its projects in Airoli
. (Navi Mumbai) The SPV is a deemed
Gigaplex e . .
distribution licensee pursuant to which it
can distribute power to the SEZ tenants
within the Park It commenced distribution
of electricity in its project at Airoli, Navi
Mumbai from 19 April 2016
The SPV is engaged in development ané Mindspace REIT : 89% Mindspace REIT : 89%
leasing/licensing of [nformation Technology
Sundew (IT) park, SEZ to different customers in Telangana State Industrial Infrastructure Telangana State Industrial Infrastiucture
Hyderabad Corporation Limited (11%) Corporation Limited {11%)
The SPV is engaged in development and Mindspace REIT : 89% Mindspace REIT : 89%
leasing/licensing of IT park to different
customers in Hyderabad Telangana State Industrial Infrastructure Telangana State Industrial Infrastructure
Corporation Limited (11%) Corporation Limited (11%)
Intime

Mindspace REIT : 89% Mindspace REIT : 89%

The SPV is engaged in development and
KRIT leasing/licensing of IT park to different

customers in Hyderabad

N,

Telangana State Industrial Infrastructure Telangana State Industrial Infrastructure
Corporation Limited (11%) Corporation Limited (11%)



The SPV is engaged in real estate]Mindspace Business Parks Mindspace Business Parks
development projects such as Special|REIT : 100% REIT : 100%

Economic Zone (SEZ) and Information
Technology Parks. The SPV has its project
in Kharadi Pune.The SPV is a deemed
distribution Tlicensee pursuant to which it
KRC Infra can distribute power to the SEZ tenants
within the Park It commenced distribution
of electricity in its project at Kharadi, Pune
from 1 June 2019

The SPV is also engaged in Facility
Management services.

The SPV is engaged in development and|Mindspace Business Parks Mindspace Business Parks
Horizonview leasing/licensing of IT park to different|REIT : 100% REIT : 100%

customers in Chennai

The SPV has developed an Industrial park|Mindspace Business Parks Mindspace Business Parks

for the purpose of letting out to different|REIT : 100% REIT : 100%

customers in Paradigm building at Malad-
Mumbai and is being maintained and
Avacado operated by the SPV The SPV also has a
commercial project in Bandra Kurla
Complex, Mumbai

Basis of preparation

The Condensed Consolidated Interim Financial Statements of Mindspace Business Parks REIT comprise the Condensed Consolidated Interim Balance Sheet as at
December 31, 2023, the Condensed Consolidated Interim Statement of Protit and Loss, including other comprehensive income. the Condensed Consolidated Interim
Statement of Cash Flow for the quarter and nine months ended December 31. 2023, the Condensed Consolidated Statement of Changes in Unitholders Equity for the nine
months ended December 31, 2023, and the Statement of Net Distributable Cashflows of Mindspace Business Parks REIT and each of the SPVs for the quarter and nine
months ended December 31, 2023, and a summary of the material accounting policies and select explanatory information and other additional finafcial disclosures

The Condensed Consolidated Interim Financial Statements have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of Securities and Exchange Board of India (Real
Estate Investment Trusts) Regulations, 2014 as amended from time to time including any guidelines and circulars issued thereunder read with SEBI Circular No
SEBI/HO/DDHS-PoD-2/P/CIR/2023/116 dated 6 July 2023 (“the REIT regulations"); Regulation 52 and Regulation 54 of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations 2015 ("Listing Regulations”): Indian Accounting Standard (Ind AS) 34 “Interim Financial Reporting™. as prescribed in Rule 2(1)(a) of the
Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 (as amended) and other accounting principles generally accepted in India, to the extent not inconsistent with REIT
regulations (refer note 19 on presentation of “Unit Capital” as “Equity” instead of compound instruments under Ind AS 32 - Financial Instruments Presentation)

The Condensed Consolidated Interim Financial Statements were authorised for issue in accordance with the resolution passed by the Board of Directors of the Manager on
January 29, 2024

Statement of compliance to Ind AS

These Condensed Consolidated Interim financial statements for the quarter and nine months ended December 31, 2023 have been prepared in accordance with Indian
Accounting Standard (Ind AS) 34 “Interim Financial Reporting”,as prescribed in Rule 2(1)(a) of the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 (as amended)
to the extent not inconsistent with the REIT regulations as more fully described above and Note 19 to the condensed consolidated financial statements

The accounting policies adopted and methods of computation followed are consistent with those of the previous financial year

The financial statements of all the SPVs and the Trust used for the purpose of consolidation are drawn up to the same reporting date

Basis of Consolidation

Mindspace Business Parks Group consolidates entities which it owns or controls. The Condensed Consolidated Interim Financial Statements comprise the financial
statements of Mindspace Business parks REIT and its subsidiary SPVs as disclosed in note 1. Control exists when the parent has power over the entity, is exposed, o1 has
rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the entity and has the ability to affect those returns by using its power over the entity. Power is demonstrated through
existing rights that give the ability to direct relevant activities, those which significantly affect the entity’s returns. Subsidiaries are consolidated from the date control
commences until the date control ceases.

The procedure for preparing Condensed Consolidated Interim Financial Statements of Mindspace Business Parks Group are stated below:
a) The financial statements of Mindspace Business Parks Gioup are consolidated for like items and intragroup balances and transactions for assets and liabilities, equity,
income, expenses and cash flows between entities of Mindspace Business Parks Group are eliminated in full upon consolidation

b) Telangana State Industrial Intrastructure Corporation Limited, which is a shareholder in Intime. KRIT and Sundew has not agreed to exchange their equity interest in
the SPVs (Intime. KRIT and Sundew), thus, Mindspace Business Parks REIT has recorded a non-controlling interests for these SPVs. The interest of non-controlling
shareholders may be initially measured either at fair value or at the non-controlling interest proportionate share of the fair value of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets
The choice of measurement basis is made on an acquisition-by-acquisition basis Subsequent to acquisition, the carrying amount of non-controlling interests is the amount
of those interests at initial recognition plus the non-controlling interests” share of subsequent changes in equity

c) The figures in the notes to accounts and disclosures have been Consolidated line by line and Inter-company transactions and balances including unrealised profits are
eliminated in full on consolidation

d) Mindspace Business Parks Group holds 4% of the equity share capital of Stargaze Properties Private Limited. a company involved in the real estate development
Mindspace Business Parks Group 1s of the view that it is not able to exercise significant influence over Stargaze Properties Private Limited and hence it has not been
accounted using equity method




3.1

Material accounting policies

(a) Functional and presentation currency

The Condensed Consolidated Interim Financial Statements are presented in Indian rupees, which is Mindspace Business Parks Group’s functional currency and the
currency of the primary economic environment in which Mindspace Business Parks Group operates. All financial information presented in Indian rupees has been rounded
off to nearest million except otherwise stated

(b) Basis of measurement

The Condensed Consolidated Interim Financial Statements are on the historical cost basis, except for the following:

- Certain financial assets and liabilities (refer accounting policy regarding financial instrument): measured at fair values;

- Net defined benefit (asset)/ liability less present value of defined obligations: Fair value of plan assets less present value of defined benefit plan.

(c) Use of judgements and estimates

The preparation of the Condensed Consolidated Interim Financial Statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles in India (Ind AS) requires
management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses. Actual results could differ from those
estimates

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on a periodic basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the period in which the estimates are revised
and in any future periods affected

Information about critical judgements in applying accounting policies that have the most material effect on the amounts recognised in the Condensed Consolidated Interim
Financial Statements is included in the following notes:

Presentation of “Unit Capital” as “Equity” in accordance with the REIT Regulations instead of compound instrument (Note 19)

Estimation of lease term for revenue recognition

Estimation of usetul life of property, plant and equipment and investment property

Estimation of recognition of deferred tax assets, availability of future taxable profit against which tax losses carried forward can be used and income taxes

Impairment and Fair valuation of Investment Property, [nvestment property under construction, Property, plant and equipment and Capital work-in-progress
Recognition and measurement of provisions for contingencies and disclosure of contingent liabilities

Significant judgements is involved in the allocation cost of acquisition to the identifiable assets and liabilities based on their relative fair values at the date of
acquisition in case of asset acquistion

d) Current versus non-current classification

Mindspace Business Parks Group presents assets and liabilities in the Condensed Consolidated Balance Sheet based on current/ non-current classification:
An asset is treated as current when it is:

- Expected to be realised or intended to be sold or consumed in normal operating cycle;

- Held primarily for the purpose of trading;

- Expected to be realised within twelve months after the reporting petiod, or

- Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at Jeast twelve months after the reporting period

All other assets are classified as non-current

A liability is current when:

- It1s expected to be settled in normal operating cycle;

- It is held primarily for the purpose of trading;

- It is due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period. o1

- There is no unconditional ight to defer the seitfement of the liabihty for at feast twelve months afier the reporting period

Mindspace Business Parks Group classifies all other liabilities as non-current

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classitied as non-current assets and liabilities

The operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realisation in cash and cash equivalents. Mindspace Business Parks Group has
identified twelve months as its operating cycle

(&) Measurement of fair values

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date,
regardless of whether that price is directly observable or estimated using another valuation technique. In estimating the fair value of an asset or a liability, Mindspace REIT
takes into account the characteristics of the asset or liability and how market participants would take those characteristics into account when pricing the asset or liability at
the measurement date

Mindspace Business Parks Group's accounting policies and disclosures require the measurement of fair values. for both financial and non-financial assets and liabilities
Mindspace Business Parks Group has an established control framework with respect to the measurement of fair values.

Mindspace Group regularly review significant unobservable inputs and valuation adjustments. If third party information is used to measure fair values then the
Management assesses the evidence obtained from the third parties to support the conclusion that such valuations meet the requirements of Ind AS, including the level in
the fair value hierarchy in which such valuations should be classified.

When measuring the fair value of an asset or a liability, Mindspace Business Parks Group uses observable market data as far as possible Fair values are categorised into
different levels in a fair value hierarchy based on the inputs used in the valuation techniques as follows:

* Level 1: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities that entity can access on measurement date

* Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices included in Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly (i as prices) or indirectly (i e derived from
prices)

« Level 3: inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (unobservable inputs)

If the inputs used to measure the fair value of an asset or a liability fall into different levels of the fair value hierarchy, then the fair value measurement is categorised in its
entiretv in the same level of the fair value hierarchv as the lowest level mnut that is sienificant to the entire measurement

Financial guarantee contracts

A financial guarantee contract 1s a contract that requires the issuer to make specified payments to reimburse the holder for a loss it incurs because a specified debtor fails
to make payments when due in accordance with the terms of a debt instiument

Financial guarantee contracts are measured initially at the fair value and in accordance with Ind AS 109 unless on a case to case basis elected to be accounted for financial
guarantee as Insurance Contracts as specified under Ind AS 104
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Property, plant and equipment

Recognition and measurement

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment, if any. Depreciation is charged when the assets are ready for their intended
use. The cost of property, plant and equipment includes freight, duties, taxes and other incidental expenses related to the acquisition or construction of the respective
assets. The cost of such assets not ready for their intended use are disclosed as capital work-in-progress. Purchase price or construction cost is defined as any consideration
paid or fair value of any other consideration given to acquire the asset

If significant parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have different useful lives, then they are accounted for as separate items (major components) of property,
plant and equipment

Subsequent expenditure

Subsequent expenditure is capitalized only if it is probable that the future economic benefits associated with the expenditure will flow to Mindspace Business Parks
Group Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic
benefits associated with the 1tem will tflow to Mindspace Business Parks Group and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. All other repairs and maintenance are
charged to the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss during the reporting period in which they are incurred

Depreciation

Depreciation / amortisation is provided using straight line method as per the useful life of the assets estimated by the management over the balance useful hfe The
estimated useful lives of the assets. which are higher than, lower than or equal to those prescribed under Schedule IT of the Companies Act 2013, are listed in the table
below Depreciation on addition / deletion of property, plant and equipment made during the period is provided on pro-rata basis from / to the date of such addition /

deletion
The assets and estimated usetul life are as under:

[ Estimated Useful Life
Asset group .
(in years)
Power assets Other assets
Right to use - Leasehold land Balance Lease term -
Buildings* 75/90 -
Plant and machinery 15 15
Electrical installation* 15 15
Computers 3 3
Temporary Structure* - I
Office equipment* | 4 4
Furniture and fixtuies* | - 7
Vehicles* - 5 |

* I'oi these class of ussets. based on technical assessment the management believes the useful life of the assets is appropriale which is different than those prescribed under
a1t C ol Schedule 11 of the Compantes Act, 2013

(1) [3ased on internal assessment the management believes the residual value of all assets except Leasehold Land is estimated to be 5% of the original cost of those
cespective assets at SPV

(2) Assets individually costing less than Rs 5 000 are fully written oft in the vear of acquisition

33 The csumaled userut lnves. residual values and depreciation wcthod are reviewed at the end of the reporting petiod with the eltect of any changes in the estimation
aceouiicd tor on a prospective basts

De-recognition

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognized upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected to arise from the continued use of the asset
Any gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of an item of property, plant and equipment is determined as the difference between the sales proceeds and the
carrying amount of the asset and 1s recognized in the Condensed Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss

Capital work in progress

Property, plant and equipment under construction is disclosed as capital work in progress which is carried at cost less any recognized impairment losses. Cost comprises of
purchase price and any attributable cost such as duties, fieight. borrowing costs. erection and commissioning expenses incurred in bringing the asset to its working
condrition for its intended use

Advance paid and expenditure incurred on acquisition / construction of property. plant and equipment which are not ready for their intended use at each balance sheet
date are disclosed under other non current assets as advances on capital account and capital work-in-progress respectively

Intangible assets

Recognition and measurement

An intangible assct is an identifiable non-monetary asset without physical substance. Intangible assets with finite useful lives that are acquired separately are initially
measured at its cost and then carried at the cost less accumulated amortisation and impairment, if any. The estimated useful life and amortisation method are reviewed at
the end of each reporting period. with the eftect of any changes in estimate being accounted for on a prospective basis [ntangible assets with indefinite useful lives that are
acquired separately are carried at cost less impairment, if any

Subsequent expenditure
Subsequent expenditure is capitalised only when it increases the future economic benefits embodied in the specific asset to which it relates. All other expenditure,
including expenditure on internally generated goodwill and brands, is recognised in the Condensed Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss as incurred

Amortisation
Amortisation 15 calculated over the cost of the asset. or other amount substituted for cost. less its residual value  Amortisation is recognised in the Condensed Consolidated
Statement of Protit and Loss on a straight line method over the estimated usctul lives of intangible assets, from the date that they are available for use

Estimated Useful Life
Asset group (in years)
Other assets
3
10

are reviewed at the end of each reporting period, with the effect of any changes in estimate being accounted for on a
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De-recognition
An intangible asset is derecognised on disposal, or when no future economic benefits are expected from use or disposal, gains or losses arising from derecognition of an
intangible asset. measured as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset, are recognised in the Consolidated Statement of Profit

and Loss when the asset is derecognised

Investment property

Recognition and measurement

Properties including land, building and other assets, which are held either for long-term rental yield or for capital appreciation or for both, and which are not occupied
substantially by Mindspace Business Parks Group are classified as investment property

Investment properties are initially recognised at cost, including related transaction costs. Subsequent to initial recognition, investment properties are measured in
accordance with the requirement of Ind AS 16's requirements for cost model i.e. Cost less depreciation less impairment losses, if any. Depreciation is charged when the
investment property is ready for its intended use. Cost comprises of direct expenses like land cost, site labour cost, material used for project construction, project
management consultancy, costs for moving the plant and machinery to the site and general expenses incurred specifically for the respective project like insurance, design
and technical assistance. and construction overheads are allocated on a reasonable basis to the cost of the project.

Plant and machinery, furniture and fixtures, office equipment and electrical equipments which are physically attached to the commercial buildings are considered as part of
tnvestment property

Acquisitions and disposals are accounted for at the date of completion of acquisitions and disposals

[f significant parts of an item of Investment property have different useful lives, then they are accounted for as separate items (major components) of Investment property

Subsequent expenditure
Subsequent expenditure is capitalised to the asset’s carrying amount only when it 1s probable that future economic benefits associated with the expenditure will flow to
Mindspace Business Parks Group and the cost of the item can be measured reliably All other repairs and maintenance costs are expensed when incurred

Depreciation

Depreciation / amortisation is provided using straight line method as per the useful life of the assets estimated by the management over the balance useful life. The
estimated useful lives of the assets, which are higher than, lower than or equal to those prescribed under Schedule II of the Companies Act 2013 and listed in the table
below. Depreciation on addition / deletion of investment property made during the period is provided on pro-rata basis from / to the date of such addition / deletion

Estimated Useful Life
Asset group .
i years)

Right to use - Leaschald land Balance Lease term
Buildings* 75/90

| Infrastructiie and development 15

I Foadwork* 15

| Rroadwalk. vontage café etc * 50

| Piant and machinery 13

| Office equipment* 4

I Furniture and tixtures* 7

"

Ulectiical installation*

* I'or these class of assets based on technical asszssment the manazement believes the useful life of the assets 1s appropriate which 1s different than thase prescribed under
Part C of Schedule 1T of the Companies Act, 2013

(1) Bascd on mternal assessment the management believes the residual value of all assets except Leasehold Land is estimated to be 5% of the original cost of those
respective assets at SPV

(2) Assets individually costing less than Rs 5,000 are fully written off in the year of acquisition

(3) The estimated useful lives. residual values and depreciation method are reviewed at the end of the reporting period with the effect of any changes in the estimation
accounted for on a prospective basis

(4) Useful life of building is restricted to the lease term of leasehold land on which the building is constructed

Fair Value

Fair value of investment property is based on a valuation by an independent valuer who holds a recognised and relevant professional qualification and has recent
experience in the location and category of the investment property being valued The fair value of investment property is disclosed in the Statement of Net assets at Fail
Value

De-recognition

An investment property is derecognized upon disposal or when the investment property is permanently withdrawn from use and no future economic benefits are expected
from the disposal Any gain or loss arising on de-recognition of the property (calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the
asset) is included in the Condensed Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss in the period in which the property is de-recognised

In determining the amount of consideration from the derecognition of Investment properties, the Group considers the effects of variable consideration, existence of a
significant financing component, non-cash consideration, and consideration payable to the buyer (if any)

Investment properties under construction

Property that is being constructed for future use as investment property is accounted for as investment property under construction until assets are ready tor their intended
use

Direct expenses hke land cost, site labour cost, material used for project construction, project management consultancy. costs for moving the plant and machinery to the
site and general expenses incurred specifically for the respective project like insurance, design and technical assistance, and construction overheads are taken as the cost of
the project

[nvestment properties under construction represent the cost incurred in respect of areas under construction of the real estate development projects less impairment losses. if
any

Advance paid for acquisition of investment property which are not ready for their intended use at each balance sheet date are disclosed under other non current assets as



3.5

3.6

3.7

38

()

(b)

—
a

(b

-

(©)

(d)

(e)

®

(€4]

Impairment of assets

Mindspace Business Parks Group assesses at each balance sheet date, whether there is any indication that an asset may be impaired. If any such indication exists,
Mindspace Business Parks Group estimates the recoverable amount of the asset. The recoverable amount of the assets (or where applicable that of the cash generating unit
(CGU) to which the asset belongs) is estimated as the higher of its fair value less cost of disposal and its value in use. Value in use is the present value of estimated future
cash flows (discounted using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset) expected to
arise from the continuing use of the assets and from its disposal at the end of its useful life. In determining fair value less costs of disposal, recent market transactions are
taken 1nto account. For the purpose of impairment testing, assets that cannot be tested individually are grouped together into the smallest group of assets that generates
cash inflows from continuing use that are largely independent of the cash inflows of other assets or CGU. An impairment loss is recognised whenever the carrying amount
of an asset or the cash-generating unit to which it belongs, exceeds its recoverable amount. Impairment loss is recognised in the Consolidated Statement of Profit and

l1.oss
When an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the asset (or a cash-generating unit) is increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable amount,

so that the increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset (or cash-
generating unit) in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised immediately in the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs that are attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of qualifying assets are treated as direct cost and are considered as part of cost of such
assets. Borrowing costs consist of interest and other costs that an entity incurs in connection with the borrowing of funds. Investiment income earned on the temporary
investment of specific borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation. A qualifying asset is an
asset that necessarily requires a substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use or sale

Capitalisation rate used to determine the amount of borrowing costs to be capitalised is the weighted average interest rate applicable to the general borrowings

Interest expense is recognised using the effective interest method. The “effective interest rate” is the 1ate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments through the
expected life of the financial instrument to the amortised cost of the financial liability In calculating interest expensc, the effective interest rate is applied to the amortised
cost of the liability

Capitalisation of borrowing costs is suspended during the extended period in which active development is interrupted Capitalisation of borrowing costs is ceased when
substantially all the activities necessary to prepare the qualifying asset for its intended use or sale are complete

All other borrowing costs are recognised as an expense in the period in which they are incurred.

Borrowing cost incurred by the SPVs on inter-company loans is continued to be capitalised only to the extent Mindspace Group has incurred external borrowing cost

Inventories

Measurement of inventory

Inventories comprise of building material and components Contractual work in progress. in respect of third party customers. is classified as work in progress. Mindspace
Business Parks Group measures its inventories at the lower of cost and net realisable value

Cost of inventories

‘The cost of inventoties of building matenial and components and work in progress comprise all costs of purchase and other costs incurred in bringing the mventorics 1o
their present location and condition. Cost is determined on moving weighted average basis

Net realisable value

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less estimated costs of completion and estimated costs necessary to make the sale

Reverue recognition
Tracijity rentals
Revenue rom property leased out under an operating lease 18 recogmsed over the lease term on a straight hine basis except where there 1s an uncertunty of wtimate

collectinn
Lease incentives granted are recognised as an integral part of the total rental income. The lease term is the non-cancellable period together with any further term for which

the tenant has the option to continue the lease. where, at the inception of the tease, the Mindspace Business Patks Gioup is reasonably certain that the tenant will exercise
that option Contingent rents are recognised as revenue in the period in which they are earned on a receipt basis

Revenue from works contractual services

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised when a performance obligation is satisfied by transfer of promised goods or services to a customer in accordance
with the agreement with the customer For works contract arrangement, the performance obligation gets satisfied over time, and therefore, the revenue recognition is done
by measuring the progress towards complete satisfaction of performance obligation from time to time as per the agreement with the customer The progress is measured n
terms of a proportion of actual cost incurred to-date. to the total estimated cost attributable to the performance obligation The revenue is recognised to the extent of
transaction price allocated to the performance obligation satisfied. Transaction price is the amount of consideration to which the Group expects to be entitled in exchange
for tiansterring goods o1 services to a customer excluding amounts collected on behalf of a third party

Maintenance services
Maintenance income is recognised over a period of time for services rendered to the customers

Revenue from power supply

Revenue from power supply is accounted for on the basis of billings to consumers and includes unbilled revenues accrued up to the end of the accounting year. Mindspace
Business Parks Group determines surplus/deficit i e. excess/ shortfall of aggregate gain over return on equity entitlement for the period in respect of its operations based on
the principles laid down under the respective Tariff Regulations as notified by Maharashtra Electricity Regulatory Commission (MERC), on the basis of the tariff order
issued by it In respect of such surplus/deficit, appropriate adjustments as stipulated under the regulations are made during the period. Further, any adjustments that may
arise on annual performance review by the MERC under the tariff regulations is made after the completion of such review

Revenue from sale of goods

Revenue towards satisfaction of a performance obligation is measured at the amount of transaction price (net of variable consideration) allocated to that performance
obligation The transaction price of goods sold is net of variable consideration on account of various discounts offered by the Company as part of the contract Revenue
trom the sale of goods is recognised when the Group performs 1ts obligations to its customers and the amount of revenue can be measured reliably and recovery of the
consideration is probable The timing of such recognition in case of sale of goods is when the control over the same 1s transferred to the customer.

Finance Lease
For assets let out under finance lease. Mindspace Business Parks Group recognises a receivable at an amount equal to the net investment in the lease Rentals received are
accounted for as repayment of principal and finance income. Minimum lease payments receivable on finance leases are apportioned between the finance income and the
reduction of the outstanding receivable The tinance income allocated to each period during the lease term so as to produce a constant periodic rate of interest on the
remaining net investment in the finance lease.

Contingent rents are recorded as income in the periods in which they are earned

Sale of surpl - material and scrap
Revenue fig b Nypenstruction material and scrap is recognised when control of the goods are mier at an amount that reflects the
considers sxpects to be entitled in exchange for those goods net of the expected remav
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Recognition of dividend income, interest income :

(i) Dividend income is recognised in profit or loss on the date on which Mindspace REIT group has right to receive payment is established

(i) Interest income is recognised on time proportion basis, by reference to the principal outstanding and the effective interest rate applicable

(iif) Delayed payment charges and interest on delayed payments are recognised, on time proportion basis, except when there is uncertainty of ultimate collection

Tax expense

Income tax expense comprises current tax and deferred tax charge or credit. It is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss except to the extent that it relates to an
item recognised directly in equity or in other comprehensive income in which case, the current and deferred tax are also recognised in equity and other comprehensive
income respectively

Current tax

Current tax comprises the expected tax payable or receivable on the taxable income or loss for the year and any adjustment to the tax payable or receivable in respect of
previous years. The amount of current tax reflects the best estimate of the tax amount expected to be paid or received after considering the uncertainty, if any, related to
income taxes. [t is measured using tax rates (and tax laws) enacted or substantively enacted by end of reporting period

Current tax assets and liabilities are offset only if there is a legally enforceable right to set off the recognised amounts. and it is intended to realise the asset and settle the
liability on a net basis or simultaneously

Deferred tax

Deferred tax asset/liability is recognised on temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the Consolidated Interim Financial Statements
and the corresponding tax bases used in the computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured that are expected to apply to the period when the
asset is realised or the liability is settled. using the tax rates and tax laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of reporting period The measurement
of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the manner in which Mindspace Business Parks Group expects. at the end of the
reporting period, to recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities

Deferred tax is not recognised for:

- Temporary differences arising on the initial recognition of assets and liabilities in a transaction that is not a business combination and that affects neither accounting nor
taxable profit or loss at the time of the transaction; and

- Temporary ditferences related to investments in subsidiaries, associates, and joint arrangements to the extent that Mindspace Business Park Group is able to control the
timing of the reversal of the temporary differences and it is probable that they will not

reverse in the foreseeable future;

Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax assets are generally recognised for all deductible temporary differences
to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits will be available against which those deductible temporary differences can be utilized. Such deferred tax assets and
liabilities are not recognised if the temporary difference anses from the initial recogmition (other than in a business combination) of assets and liabilities in a transaction
that affects neither the taxable profit nor the accounting profit

The existence of unused tax losses is strong evidence that future taxable profit may not be available. Therefore, in casc of a history of recent losses. the Mindspace
Business Parks Group recognises a defeired tax asset only to the extent that it has sufficient taxable temporary differences or there is convincing other evidence that
sufficient taxable profit will be available against which such defeired tax asset can be realised

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets are reviewed at the end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable
profits will be available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset if there is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax liabilitics, and they relate to income taxes levicd by the same tax
authority on the samc taxable entity. or on different tax entitics. but they intend to settle current tax habilities and assets on a net basis or their tax assets and liabilities wall
be realised simultancouslv

For operations carried out under tax holiday period (801A benefits of Income Tax Act, 1961), deferred tax assets or liabilities, if any, have been established for the tax
consequences of those temporary differences between the carrying values of assets and liabilities and their respective tax bases that reverse after the tax holiday ends

In the situations where one or more units of the Group are entitled to a tax holiday under the tax law, no deferred tax (asset or liability) is recognized in respect of
temporary differences which reverse during the tax holiday period, to the extent the concerned unit's gross total income is subject to the deduction during the tax holiday
period Deferred tax in respect of temporary differences which reverse after the tax holiday period is recognized in the year in which the temporary differences originate

However. the Group restricts recognition of deferred tax assets to the extent it is probable that sufficient future taxable income will be available against which such
deferred tax assets can be realized. For recognition of deferred taxes, the temporary differences which originate first are considered to reverse first

Minimum Alternate Tax (MAT)

MAT credit entitlement is recognized as an asset only when and to the extent there is convincing evidence that normal income tax will be paid during the specified period
In the year in which MAT credit becomes eligible to be recognized as an asset. the said asset is created by way of a credit to the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss
and shown as MAT credit entitlement under deferred tax assets. This is reviewed at each balance sheet date and the carrying amount of MAT credit entitlement is written
down to the extent it is not reasonably certain that normal income tax will be paid during the specitied period

Earnings per unit (EPU):

The basic earnings per unit is computed by dividing the net profit/ (loss) attributable to the unit holders of Mindspace REIT by the weighted average number of units
outstanding during the reporting period The number of units used in computing diluted earnings/ (loss) per unit comprises the weighted average units considered for
deriving basic earnings/ (loss) per unit and also the weighted average number of units which could have been issued on the conversion of all dilutive potential units

Dilutive potential units are deemed converted as of the beginning of the reporting date, unless they have been 1ssued at a later date. In computing diluted eamings per unit,
only potential equity units that are dilutive and which either reduces earnings per unit or increase loss per units are included




Provisions, contingent liabilities and contingent assets
Provisions are recognised when Mindspace Business Parks Group has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of a past event, it is probable that Mindspace
Business Parks Group will be required to settle the obligation, and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation

The amount recognised as a provision is the best estimate of the consideration net of recoveries if any, required to settle the present obligation at the end of the reporting
period, taking into account the risks and uncertainties surrounding the obligation Provisions are determined by discounting the expected future cash flows at a pre-tax rate
that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the liability. The unwinding of the discount is recognised as finance cost

Contingent liabilities are disclosed when there is a possible obligation or a present obligation that may, but will probably not, require an outflow of resources. When there
is a possible obligation of a present obligation in respect of which the likeliliood of outflow of resources is remote, no provision or disclosure is made

Provisions for onerous contracts, i.e. contracts where the expected unavoidable costs of meeting the obligations under the contract exceed the economic benefits expected
to be received under it, are recognised when it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle a present obligation as a
result of an obligating event, based on a reliable estimate of such obligation If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted

A contingent asset is disclosed when there would be a possible asset that arises from past events and whose existence will be confirmed only by the occurrence or non-
occurrence of one or mole uncertain future events not wholly within the control of Mindspace Business Patks Group
Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets are reviewed at each Balance Sheet date and adjusted to reflect the current best estimates

Foreign currency transactions and translations

Transactions denominated in foreign currency are recorded at the exchange rate prevailing on the date of transactions Exchange differences arising on foreign exchange
transactions settled during the year are recognised in the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss of the period

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currency, which are outstanding as at the period-end and not covered by forward contracts, are translated at the
period-end at the closing exchange rate and the resultant exchange differences are recognised in the Condensed Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss. Non-monetary
foreipn currency items are carried at cost

Leases

As aLessor

Mindspace Business Parks Group enters into [ease agreements as a lessor with respecl to some of its investment propetties

Leases for which Mindspace Business Parks Group is a lessor is classified as finance or operating leases Whenever the terms of the lease transfer substantially all the risks
and rewards of ownership to the lessee. the contract is classified as a finance lease. All other leases are classified as operating leases

When Mindspace Business Parks Group is an intermediate lessor, 1t accounts for the head lease and the sublease as two separate contracts The sublease is classitied as a
finance or operating lease by reference 10 the right-of-use asset arising from the head lease

Rentai income tron: operating leases is recognised on a straight-lime basis over the term of the relevant lease and presented as unbilled revenue in other financial assets

he irase tetm i3 the nun-cancellable period together with any further term for which the tenant has the option to continue the lease, where, at the mception of the lease.
the Mindspace Group s seasonably cenain that the tenant will exercise that option

sutial duecet costs such as brokerage expenses incurred specitically to earn revenues from an opcrating leasc arc capitalised to the carrving amount of lcased asset and
iecogmised over the lease term on the same basis as rental income

Amounts due from lesxees under finance leases are recognised as receivables at the amount of Mindspace Business Parks Group's net investment in the leases Finance
lease income is allocated to reporting periods so as to reflect a constant periodic rate of return on Mindspacc Business Parks Group's net investment outstanding in respect
of the trase-

As a Lessee

Mindspace Business Paras Group assesses whether a contract is ot conlains a lease, at inception of a contract A conuact Is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys the
right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration Mindspace Business Parks Group recognises a right-of-use asset and a
corresponding lease hability with respect to all lease agreements in which it is the lessee. except for short-term leases ( defined as leases with a lease term of 12 months or
less) and leases of low value assets Fot these leases. Mindspace Business Parks Group recognises the lease payments as an operating expense on a straight-line basis over
the term of the lease unless another systematic basis is more representative of the time pattern in which economic benefits from the leased asset are consumed

The lease liability is nitially measured at the present value of the lease payments that are not paid at the commencement date, discounted by using the rate implicit in the
lease. If this rate cannot be readily determined, Mindspace Business Parks Group uses its incremental borrowing rate

Lease payments included in the measurement of the lease liability comprise:

- fixed lease payments (including in-substance fixed payments), less any lease incentives;

« variable lease payments that depend on an index or rate, initially measured using the index or rate at the commencement date;

« the amount expected to be payable by the lessee under residual value guarantees;

« payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if the lease term reflects the exercise of an option to terminate the lease

The lease liability is presented separately as part of Financial Liabilities in the Condensed Consolidated balance sheet The lease liability is subsequently measured by
increasing the carrying amount to reflect interest on the lease liability (using the effective interest method) and by reducing the carrying amount to reflect the lease
payments made

Mindspace Business Parks Group remeasures the lease liability (and makes a corresponding adjustment to the related right-of-use asset) whenever

» the lease term has changed or there is a change in the assessment of exercise of a purchase option, in which case the lease liability is remeasured by discounting the
revised lease payments using a revised discount rate

« the lease payments change due to changes in an index or rate or a change in expected payment under a guaranteed residual value. in which cases the lease liability 1s
measured by discounting the 1evised lease payments using the initial discount rate (unless the lease payments change is due to a change in a floating interest rate, in which
case a revised discount rate is used)

* a lease contract is modified and the lease modification is not accounted for as a separate lease, in which case the lease liability is remeasured by discounting the revised
lease payments using a revised discount rate
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The right-of-use assets comprise the initial measurement of the corresponding lease liability, lease payments made at or before the commencement day and any initial
direct costs . They are subsequently measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses

Whenever Mindspace Business Parks Group incurs an obligation for costs to dismantle and remove a leased asset, restore the site on which it is located or restore the
underlying asset to the condition required by the terms and conditions of the lease, a provision is recognised and measured under Ind AS 37 “Provisions, Contingent
Liabilities and Contingent Assets” The costs are included in the related right-of-use asset, unless those costs are incurred to produce inventories

Right-of-use assets are depreciated using the straight-line method from the commencement date over the shorter period of lease term and useful life of the underlying asset
Mindspace Business Parks Group applies Ind AS 36 Impairment of Assets to determine whether a right-of-use asset is impaired and accounts for any identified
impairment loss as described in Note 3 5

Variable rents that do not depend on an index or rate are not included in the measurement the lease liability and the right-of-use asset. The related payments are recognised
as an expense in the period in which the event or condition that triggers those payments occurs and are included in the hine * other expenses” in the Condensed
Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss

Financial instruments

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets and/or financial liabilities are recognised when Mindspace Business Parks Group becomes party to a contract embodying the related financial instruments
All financial assets/ financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value. plus in case of financial assets/ financial liabilities not recorded at fair value through profit or
loss (FVTPL), transaction costs that are attributable 1o the acquisition or 1ssue of financial assets/ financial liabilities are added to or deducted. as the case may be, tfrom the
fair value of such assets or liabilities Transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition of financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
are recognised immediately in the Statement of Profit and Loss. Trade receivables that do not contain a significant financing component are measured at transaction price.

Financial assets:

Classitication of financial assets:
Mindspace Business Parks Group classifies its financial assets in the following measurement categories:
- those to be measured subsequently at fair value (either through other comprehensive income, or through the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss), and

- those measured at amortised cost
The classification is done depending upon Mindspace Business Parks Group's business model for managing the financial assets and the contractual terms of the cash

For investments in debt instruments, this will depend on the business model 1n which the investment is held

(iv) Mindspace Business Parks Group reclassifies debt investments when and only when its business model for managing those assets changes

(b)
(i)

(ii)

Subsequent Measuremcat

Debt instruments:

Suhequent measare nent of debt instruments depends on Mindspace Business Parks Giroup's business model for managing the asset and the cash flow chwacteristics of
the saset T here are three measurement categories into which Mindspace Business Parks Group classifies its debt instruments:

Finaneial assets af amortised cost

Financial assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost if these financial assets are held within a business whose objective is to hold these assets in order to collect
centractual cash flows and the contractual terms of the financial asset zive rise on specified dales to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the
vrineipal amount outstanding

Smancial assets at fair value through other comprchensive income (FVTOCT)

Financial assets arc subsequently measuied at fair value through other comprehensive income 1f these financial assels ate held within a business whose objective 1s
achieved by both collect:ny contractual cash flows that give rise on specified dates to solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding and by
selling financial assets

Financial assets at fair value through the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss (FVTPL)

Financial assets are subsequently measured at fair value through the Condensed Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss unless it is measured at amortised cost or fair
value through other comprehensive income on initial recognition. The transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition of financial assets and liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss are immediately recognised in the Condensed Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss

Equity instruments:

Mindspace Business Parks Group subsequently measures all equity investments at tair value There are two measurement categories into which Mindspace Business Parks
Group classifies its equity instruments:

Investments in equity instruments at FVTPL:

Investments in equity instruments are classified as at FVTPL, unless Mindspace Business Parks Group irrevocably elects on initial recognition to present subsequent
changes in fair value in other comprehensive income for equity instruments which are not held for trading

Investments in equity instruments at FVTOCI:

On initial recognition. Mindspace Business Parks Group can make an irrevocable election (on an instrument-by-instrument basis) to present the subsequent changes in fair
value in other comprehensive income. This election is not permitted if the equity investment is held for trading. These elected investiments are initially measured at fair
value plus transaction costs Subsequently, they are measured at fair value with gains and losses arising from changes in fair value recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated in the reserve for ‘equity instruments through other comprehensive income' The cumulative gain or loss is not reclassified to Consolidated
Statement of Protit and Loss on disposal of the investments, but is transferred to retained earnings.
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Mindspace Business Parks Group applies the expected credit loss model for recognising impairment loss on financial assets measured at amortised cost, lease receivables,
trade receivables, other contractual rights to receive cash or other financial asset For trade receivables, Mindspace Business Parks Group measures the loss allowance at
an amount equal to lifetime expected credit losses. Further, for the purpose of measuring lifetime expected credit loss allowance for trade receivables, Mindspace Business
Parks Group has used a practical expedient as permitted under Ind AS 109, This expected credit loss allowance is computed based on a provision matrix which takes into
account historical credit loss experience and adjusted for forward-looking information

Derecognition of financial assets:
A financial asset is primarily derecognised when:
(i) the right to receive cash flows from the asset has expired, or
(i) Mindspace Business Parks Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset; and
Mindspace Business Parks Group has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset. or
Mindspace Business Parks Group has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset. but has transferred control of the asset

On derecognition of a financial asset in its entirety (other than investments in equity instruments at EVOCI), the differences between the carrying amounts measured at the
date of derecognition and the consideration received is recognised in Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss. Any interest in transferred financial assets that is created
or retained by the SPV is recognised as a separate asset or liability

Financial liabilities and equity instruments
Classification as debt or equity

Financial liabilities and equity instruments issued by Mindspace Business Parks Group are classified according to the substance of the contractual arrangements entered
into and the definitions of a financial liability and an equity instrument

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of Mindspace Business Parks Group after deducting all of its liabilities. Equity
instruments are recorded at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs

Repurchase of Mindspace Business Parks Group's own equity instrument is recognised and deducted directly in equity. No gain or loss is recognised in the Consolidated
Statement of Profit and Loss on the purchase, sale, issue or cancellation of Mindspace Business Parks Group's own equity instruments

Compound financial instruments

The component parts of compound financial instruments issued by Mindspace Business Parks Group are classified separately as financial liabilities and equity in
accordance with the substance of the contractual arrangements and the definitions of a financial liability and an equity instrument. A conveision option that will be settled
by the exchange of a fixed amount of cash or another financial asset for a fixed number of Mindspace Business Parks Group's own equity instruments is an equity
mstrument

At the date ol 1ssue. the fair value of the liability component is estimated using the prevailing market interest rate for similar non-convertible instruments. This amount is
recorded as a liability on an amortised cost basis using the effective interest method until extinguished upon conversion or at the instrument’s maturity date

The conversion option classified as equity is detetmined by deducting the amount of the liability component from the fair value of the compound instrument as a whole
This is recognised and included in equitv, net of income tax effects. and is not subsequently iemeasured

Tiansaciion costs that relate to the issue of the convertible instruments are allocated to the hability and equity components in propoition to the atlacation of the gross
proceeds. Transaction costs relating to the equity component are recogniscd directly in equity Transaction costs relating to the liability component are included in the
carrying amount of the liability component and are amortised over the lives of the convertible instrument using the etfective interest method

Financial Liabilities

Recognition, measnrement and classification

Financial liabilities are classitied as either held at a) fair value through the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss, or b) at amortised cost. Management determines the
classification of its financial liabilities at the time of initial recognition or, where applicable, at the time of reclassification

Mindspace Business Parks Group's financial liabilities include trade and other payables, loans and borrowings and derivative financial instruments Subsequent
measurement of financial liabilities depends on their classification as fair value through the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss or at amortized cost All changes in
fair value of financial liabilities classified as FVTPL are recognized in the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss Amortised cost category is applicable to loans and
borrowings, trade and other payables. Atter initial recognition the financial liabilities are measured at amortised cost using the Etfective Interest Rate method

Derecognition

A financial liability is derecognized when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires. Gains and losses are recognized in the Condensed
Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss when the liabilities are derecognized

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and presented on net basis in the Balance Sheet when there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised
amounts and there is an intention either to settle on a net basis or to realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously

Embedded derivatives
Derivatives embedded in a host contract that is an asset within the scope of Ind AS 109 are not separated. Financial assets with embedded derivatives are considered in
their entirety when determining whether their cash flows are solely payment of principal and interest

Embedded derivatives closely related to the host contracts are not separated. Derivatives embedded in all other host contract are separated only if the economic
characteristics and risks of the embedded derivative are not closely related to the economic characteristics and risks of the host and are measured at fair value through
profit or loss
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Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents comprises of cash at banks and on hand. demand deposits, other short-term. highly liquid investments with original maturities of three months
or less that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value

Statement of Cash flow
Cash flow is reported using the indirect method, whereby net profit before tax is adjusted for the effects of transactions of a non-cash nature and any deferrals or accruals
of past or future cash receipts or payments. The cash flows from operating,. investing and financing activities of Mindspace Business Parks Group are segregated

For the purpose of the Condensed Consolidated Statement of Cash Flow, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and short-term deposits, as defined above, net of
outstanding bank overdrafts as they are considered an integral part of Mindspace Business Parks Group’s cash management

As per para 8 of Ind AS 7 “where bank overdrafts which are repayable on demand form an integral part of an entity’s cash management, bank overdrafts are included as a
component of cash and cash equivalents. Bank overdraft, in the Condensed Consolidated Balance Sheet, is included as ‘borrowings’ under Financial Liabilities

Employee benefits plan

Disclosure pursuant to Ind AS — 19 ‘Employee benefits’

Short term employee benefits

All employee benefits payable wholly within twelve months of rendering the service are classified as short-term employee benefits such as salaries, wages, etc, and are
recognised in the period in which the employee rendered the related services The undiscounted amount of short-term employee benefits expected to be paid in exchange
for the services rendered by employees is recognised as an expense during the period

Long term employee benefits

Defined contribution plans

Contributions to defined contribution schemes such as provident fund are charged as an expense based on the amount of contribution required to be made as and when
services are rendered by the employees Mindspace Business Parks Group's provident fund confribution, in respect of certain employees, is made to a government
administered fund and charged as an expense The above benefits are classified as defined contribution schemes as Mindspace Business Parks Group has no further
defined obligations beyond the monthly contributions

Defined benefit plan

Mindspace Business Parks Group's gratuity benefit scheme is a defined benefit plan. Mindspace Business Parks Group has determined the gratuity lability based on
intemnal calculation based on the number of years completed and last drawn basic salary as mentioned in the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972, The liability or asset
recognised in the balance sheet in respect of defined benefit gratuity plans is the present value of the defined benefit obligation at the end of the reporting period less the
fait velue of plan asseis, if"any The defined benefit obligation is calculated annually by actuaries / SPVs using the projected unit credit method.

The piesent value of the defined benefit obligation denominated in INR is determined by discounting the estimated future cash outflows by reference to market vields at
the end of the reporting period on government bonds that have terms approximating to the terms of the related obligation The net interest cost is calculated by applying
the discount 1ate to the net balance of the defined benefit obligation and the fair value of plan assets This cost is included in employee benefit expense in the Condensed
Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss

Gther long term employee benefits - Compensated absences

Benettis under compensated absences are accounted as othet long-term emplovee benefits Mindspace Business Parks Group has determined the liabilitv for compensated
absences based on inteinal calculation which is determined on the basis of leave credited to employee’s account and the last drawn salary Mindspace Business Parks
Group's net obligation in respect of compensated absences is the amount of benefit to be settled in future. that employees have earned in return for their service in the
current and previous years. The benefit is discounted to determine its present value. The obligation is measured on the basis of an actuarial valuation / by SPVs using the
projected unit credit method Remeasurement is recognised in the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss in the period in which they arise Compensated absences
which are not expected to occur within twelve months after the end of the period in which the employee renders the related services are recognised as a liability

Earnings before finance costs, depreciation and amortisation, regulatory income / expense, exceptional items and tax

Mindspace Business Parks Group has elected to present earnings before interest, depreciation and amortisation, regulatory income / expense, exceptional items and tax as
a separate line item on the face of the Condensed Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss. Mindspace Business Parks Group measures earnings before interest,
depreciation and amortisation, regulatory income / expense, exceptional items and tax on the basis of profit/ (loss) from continuing operations

727 ¥\
= )
*.1" 0\ J o )]
AN ViaY/i
—— ___/,-‘\ /i



3.20

3.22

3.23

3.24

3.25

3.26

Subsequent events

The Condensed Consolidated Interim Financial Statements are adjusted to reflect events that occur after the reporting date but before the Condensed Consolidated
Financial Statements are issued The Consolidated Financial Statements have their own date of authorisation, which differs from that of the financial statements of the
entities which are part of Mindspace REIT group. Therefore, when preparing the Condensed Consolidated Interim Financial Statements, management considers events up
to the date of authorisation of these financial statements

Errors and estimates

Mindspace Business Parks Group revises its accounting policies if the change is required due to a change in Ind AS or if the change will provide more relevant and
reliable information to the users of the Condensed Consolidated Interim financial statement. Changes in accounting policies are applied retrospectively

A change in an accounting estimate that results in changes in the carrying amounts of recognised assets or liabilities or to profit or loss is applied prospectively n the
period(s) of change

Discovery of errors results in revisions retrospectively by restating the comparative amounts of assets, liabilities and equity of the earliest prior period in which the error is
discovered The opening balances of the earliest period presented are also restated

Non-current assets held for sale

Non-cuirent assets are classitied as held for sale if it is highly probable that they will be recovered primarily through sale rather than through continuing use. Such assets
are generally measured at the lower of their carrying amount and fair value less costs to sell Losses on initial classification as held for sale and subsequent gains and losses
on re-measurement are recognised in the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss

Once classified as held-for-sale, intangible assets, property, plant and equipment and investment properties are no longer amortised or depreciated, and any equity-
accounted investee is no longer equity accounted.
Segment Information

Primary segment information
The primary reportable segment is business segments

Business segment

The Mindspace Group is organised into the two operating divisions - 'real estate' and “power distribution”, which are determined based on the internal organisation and
management structure of the Mindspace Group and its system of internal financial reporting and the nature of its risks and its returns. The Board of directors of the
manager has been identified as the chief operating decision maker (CODM). CODM evaluates the Mindspace Group's performance, allocates resources based on analysis
of various performance indicators of the Group as disclosed below

Real estate segment

Real estate compiises development and management of projects under Special Economic Zone (SEZ), Information Technology Parks and other commercial assets The
Group has 113 proj-ul'properties in Mumbai Region, llyderabad. I'unc and Chennat foi development and management ot commercial SEZ. 1T paiks and commercial asscis
including incidentel activities

Power distributicr
The state power 1egulator has taken on record the SEZ developet MBPPL, Gigaplex, Sundew and KRC Infra as Decmed Distribution Licensee for Power The appioved
SPVs being Deemed Distributor. supplies powel to customers within the notified SEZ

Sceondary segmeni intormation
Mindspace Business Patks Group's operations are based i India and theretore Mindspace Business Parks Group has only one geographical segment - Indta

Non-controlling intere:!s

Non-controlling interests represent the share of reserves and capital attributable to the shaieholders of the SPVs who have not agreed to exchange their shares in the SPVs
for units of Mindspace REIT and will not become the unitholders of Mindspace REIT Below is the list ot shareholders of the SPVs for whom non-contiolling interest has
been recognised Non-controlling interests in the results and equity of subsidiaries are shown separately in the Condensed Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss.
Condensed Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity and Condensed Balance Sheet

SPV Shareholder % Holding in SPV
— (As on reporting date)
KRIT Telangana State Industrial Infrastructure 11.0%
Corporation Limited
Intime Telangana State Industrial Infrastructure 11.0%
Corporation Limited
Sundew Telangana State Industrial Infiastructure 11 0%

Corporation Limited

Ind AS 110 requires entities to attribute the profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive income to the owners of Mindspace REIT and to the non-controlling
interests This requirement needs to be followed even if this resulls in the non-controlling interests having a deficit balance
Cash distribution to unit holders

The Group recognises a liability to make cash distributions to Unitholders when the distribution is authorised and a legal obligation has been created. As per the REIT
Regulations, a distribution is authorised when it is approved by the Board of Directos of the Manager A corresponding amount 1s recognised directly in other equity

Distribution Policy
The Net Distributable Cash Flows of Mindspace REIT are based on the cash tlows generated from Mindspace REIT s assets and investments

In terms of the Distribution Policy and the REIT Regulations, not less than 90% of the NDCF of each of the Asset SPVs is required to be distributed to Mindspace REIT,
in proportion of their shareholding in the Asset SPV, subject to applicable provisions of the Companies Act or the LLP Act Presently, NDCF to be received by Mindspacg
REIT from the Asset SPVs may be in the form of dividends, interest income, principal loan repayment, proceeds of any capital reduction or buyback from the Asset SPVs,
sale proceeds out of disposal of investments if any or assets directly held by Mindspace REIT or as specifically permitted under the Trust Deed or in such other form as
may be permissible under the applicable law

The Manager is required to and shall declare and distribute at least 90% of the NDCF of Mindspace REIT as distributions (“REIT Distributions”) to the Unitholders Such




3.27

Recent Pronouncements
The Ministry of Corporate Affairs has notified Companies (Indian Accounting Standard) Amendment Rules 2023 dated March 31, 2023 to amend the following Ind AS
which are effective from April 01, 2023:

Ind AS 1 — Presentation of Financial Statements

The amendments require companies to disclose their material accounting policies rather than their significant accounting policies. Accounting policy information, together
with other information, 1s material when it can reasonably be expected to influence decisions of primary users of general purpose financial statements. This amendment
does not have any significant impact in the financial statements

Ind AS 12 — Income Taxes

The amendments clarify how companies account for deferred tax on transactions such as leases and decommissioning obligations The amendments narrowed the scope of
the recognition exemption in paragraphs 15 and 24 of Ind AS 12 (recognition exemption) so that it no longer applies to transactions that, on initial recognition, give rise to
equal taxable and deductible temporary differences. This amendment does not have any significant impact in the financial statements.

Ind AS 8 — Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors

The amendments will help entities to distinguish between accounting policies and accounting estimates. The definition of a change in accounting estimates has been
replaced with a definition of accounting estimates Under the new definition, accounting estimates are “monetary amounts 1n financial statements that are subject to
measurement uncertainty” Entities develop accounting estimates if accounting policies require items in financial statements to be measured in a way that involves
measurement uncerlainty This amendment does not have any significant impact in the financial statements

There were certain amendments to standards and interpretations which are applicable for the first time for the period ended 31 December 2023, but either the same are not
relevant or do not have an impact on the consolidated Interim financial statements of the Group
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MINDSPACE BUSINESS PARKS REIT
RN:IN/REIT/19-20/003

Condensed Consolidated Interim Financial Statements
Notes to Accounts

(All amounts in Rs. million unless otherwise stated)

8 Non Current Investment

Particulars

As at
31 December 2023

As at
31 March 2023

Financial assets

Investments in equity instruments

Unquoted equity shares measured at FVTOCI

2,000 equity shares of Stargaze Properties Private Limited, face value of Rs. 10 each tully paid-up
(31 March 2023 : 2.000)

Unquoted investment in Government Securities at amortised cost
7.61% Central Government Loan (Face value Rs 100), 25,000 units (31 March 2023: 25,000)
8.24% GOI 2027 Bond (Face value Rs 100), 25,000 units (31 March 2023: 25,000)
7.17% Central Government Loan (Face value Rs 100), 25,000 units (31 March 2023: 25.000)
7.26% Central Government Loan (Face value Rs 100), 22,000 units (31 March 2023: 22,000)
7.06% Central Government Loan (Face value Rs 100), 22,000 units (31 March 2023: 22,000)
6.67% GOI 2050 Bond (Face value Rs 100), 8,000 units (31 March 2023: 8,000)
7.72% GOI 2055 Bond (Face value Rs 100), 10,000 units (31 March 2023: 10,000)
6.99% GOI 2051 Bond (Face value Rs 100), 11,300 units , (31 March 2023: 11.300)
7.26% GOI 2629 Bond (Face value Rs 100), 18.000 units (31 March 2023: 18.000)
7.40% GOI 2055 Bond (Face value Rs 100), 28,700 units (31 March 2023: 28.700)
8.33% GOI 2036 Bond (Face value Rs 100), 21.210 units (31 March 2023: 21,210)
7.06% GOI 2046 Bond (Face value Rs 100), 12.000 units (31 March 2023: 12,000)
.33% GOI 2036 Bond (Face value Rs 100). 1.790 unite (31 March 2023: 1.790)
0.99% GOI 2051 Bond (Face Value Rs 100), 28,000 units (31 Maich 2023: 28,000)
6.99% GOI 2051 Bond (Face Value Rs 100). 17.700 units (31 March 2023: 17.700)
7.36% GS 2052; Bond (Face Value Rs 100), 1,200 units (31 March 2023: Nil)
6.99% GS 2051; Bond (Face Value Rs 100), 10,400 units (31 March 2023: Nil)
6.99% GS 2051; Bond (Face Value Rs 100), 1,037 units (31 March 2023: Nil)
6.99% GOI 2051; Bond (Fave Value Rs 100), 24700 units (31 March 2023: Nil)
6.99% GOI 2051; Bond (Face Value Rs 100), 14,900 units (31 March 2023: Nil)
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Investments measured at cost (gross)

Investments measured at fair value through profit or loss

Investments measured at fair value through other comprehensive income
Investments measured at amortised cost

Aggregate amount of impairment recognised

Aggregate amount of quoted investments and market value thereof
Aggregate amount of unquoted investments




MINDSPACE BUSINESS PARKS REIT
RN:IN/REIT/19-20/003

Condensed Consolidated Interim Financial Statements
Notes to Accounts

(All amounts in Rs. million unless otherwise stated)

9  Other financial assets (Non current)

Particulars

Unsecured, considered good

Fixed deposits with banks*

Unbilled revenue

Interest receivable

Finance lease receivable

Security deposits for development rights
Security deposits

Other receivables

As at
31 December 2023

67
980

1,414
549

10
3,020

As at
31 March 2023

29
1.058
23
844
60
497
15
2,526

* Fixed deposits amounting to Rs. 67 million (31 March 2023 — 29 million) are held as lien in respect of loan availed by the SPVs and earmarked

for Debenture Redemption Reserve.

10 Deferred tax assets
Particulars

Deferred tax assets
11 Non-current Tax assets (net)
Particulars

Advance Tax (net of provision for tax)

12 Other non-current assets
Particulars

Unsecured, considered good
Capital advances
Balances with government authorities

13 Inventories (valued at lower of cost and net realisable value)

Particulars

Building materials and components

Inventory of Equipment

14 Trade receivables
Particulars

Unsecured
Considered good
Credit impaired
Less: loss allowance

tte

ing

S|

As at
31 December 2023
352
352
As at
31 December 2023
949
94y
Asai

31 December 2023

854
107
59
1,020

As at
31 December 2023

50
2
52

As at
31 December 2023

635

43
43)
635

at
31 March 2023
473
As at
31 March 2023
928
928
As at
31 March 2023
293
237
50
As at
31 March 2023
40
32
72
As at
31 March 2023
572
82
(82)
572



15A Cash and cash equivalents

Particulars As at As at
31 December 2023 31 March 2023
Cash on hand 3 3
Balances with banks
- in current accounts¥ 3,178 3.176
- in escrow accounts 60 3
- in deposit accounts with original maturity of less than
three months 115 880
3,356 4.062

*Includes balance with bank of Rs 0 million as on 31 December 2023 (31 March 2023: Rs 0 million) for unpaid distributions.

15B Other bank balances

Particulars

As at
31 December 2023

As at
31 March 2023

Fixed deposits with original ;naturity for more than 3 months and less than

twelve months* 2,586 78
Balance with banks** 218 128
2,804 206

* Fixed deposits amounting to Rs. 436 million (31 March 2023 — 78 million) are held as lien in respect of loan availed by the SPVs and earmarked

for Debenture Redemption Reserve.

** These are amounts. deposited in separate escrow accounts. earmarked for on-going Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) projects.

i6 Other financial assits (Current)

Particulars

As at
31 December 2023

As at
31 March 2923

Unsecured, considered good
Interest receivable

- on fixed deposits 126 4
- {tom others 10 11
Interest accrued but not due
<o fixed desosits 16 i
- from others 2 >
Security deposits 162 170
Fixed deposits with banks* 1,514 322
Unbilled revenue 1,540 1613
Less: loss allowance for Unbilled revenue (57 -
Finance lease receivable 409 309
Other receivables**
- Considered good 209 102
- Credit impaired 1 1
Less: loss allowance (1) (1)
3,925 2,335

* Fixed deposits amounting to Rs. 416 million (31 March 2023 — 322 million) are held as lien in respect of loan availed by the SPVs and

earmarked for Debenture Redemption Reserve.

** Refer Note 48 for related party disclosure

17 Other current assets

Particulars

As at
31 December 2023

As at
31 March 2023

Unsecured, considered good

Deposit / advance for supply of goods and rendering of services
Loan to staff

Balances with government authorities

Prepaid expenses

Other receivables

228 330
- 0
195 149
263 107
1 .
687 586
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Condensed Consolidated Interim Financial Statements
Notes to Accounts

(All amounts in Rs. million unless otherwise stated)

(a)

(b}

()
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Corpus

Corpus

As at 1 April 2022 0
Changes during the year -
Closing balance as at 31 March 2023 0
Asat 1 April 2023 0
Changes during the period -
Closing balance us at 31 December 2023 0

Unit Capital
A. Unit Capital - No. Amount
As at 1 April 2022 - 593,018,182 162,839
Changes during the vear - =
Closing balance as at 31 March 2023 593,018,182 162,839
As at 1 April 2023 593,018,182 162,839

Changes during the period - -
Closing balance as at 31 December 2023 593,018,182 162,839

Terms/rights attached to Units and other disclosures

The Trust has only one class of Units Each Unit represents an undivided beneficial interest m the Trust. Each holder of Units is entitled to one vote per unit The
Unitholders have the right to receive at least 90% of the Net Distributable Cash Flows of the Trust on quarterly basis in accordance with REIT Regulations/ in terms of
the Distribution Policy The Board of directors of Investment Manager approves disinbutions. The distribution will be in proportion to the number of Units held by the
Unitholders. The Trust declares and pays distributions in Indian Rupees

Under the provisions of the REIT Regulations, Mindspace Business Parks REIT is required to distribute to Unitholders not less than 90% of the net distributable cash
flows of Mindspace Business Parks REIT for each financial yeat, Accordingly, a portion of the Unit Capital contains a contractual obligation of the Mindspace Business
Parks REIT to pay to its Unitholders cash distributions  Hence, the Unit Capital is a compound financial instrument which contains equity and liability components in
accordance wiii Ind AS 32 - Financial Inshuments: Presentation. However, in accordance with SEBI Circular No. SEBVHO/DDHS-PoD-2/P/CIR/2023/116 dated 6 July
2023 issued under the REIT Regalations the Unitholders” funds have been presented as “Equity” in order to comply with the requitements of Section H of Chapter 3 to
the SEBI mastur circular dated 6 July 2023 dealing with the minimum presentation and disclosure requirements for key financial statements. Consistent with Unit
Caprto! being ~lassified as equity, the distnbutions to Unitholders is also presented in Statement of Changes in Unitholders' Equity when the distributions are approved
oy U1 Board ot Lhrectors of Investment Manager

Unithoiders holding mere than 5 percent Units in the Trust

| Name of the unitholder } ] Asat31 December2023 | Asat31 Maich 2023 |
| — o No of Units % holding | No of Unils % holding

vic [Dumination A 2018 Tius: 54,373,000 S17% | 54.375,000 917%
[iutiee Constroe tons LD | 33,404,890 3.97% 35,404,890 597% |
|Cape Tradmg LLP 35,438,895 598% ‘ 35,404,890 597%
Chandiu Lachiaandas Raheja 32,634,433 5.50% 32,634,433 3 50%
|Capstan Trading LLP 41,095,719 6.93% | 41,095,719 693%
I'Casa Maria Properties LLP 46,820,719 7.90% | 46,820,719 7.90%
|Palm Shelter Estate Development LLP. 41,095,719 6.93% | 41,095,719 0.93%
Raghukool Estate Developement LLP 42,004,546 7.08% | 41,937,069 707%
K Raheja Corp Private Limited 36,596,296 6.17% 36,596,296 6 17%

The Trust has not allotted any fully paid-up wts by way of bonus units nor has it bought back any class of units from the date of registration till the balance sheet date
Further, the Trust had issued an aggregate of 36,363.600 Units for cash at Rs 275 per unit and 556,654,582 Units at a price of Rs. 275 per unit for consideration other
than cash during the period of five years immediately preceding the balance sheet date

Other Equity*
Particulars As at As at
31 December 2023 31 March 2023

Reserves and Surplus

Retained earnings (19,886) (15,546)
Debenture tedemption reserve 400 534
- (19486 (15012)

*Refer Condensed Consolidated Statement of changes in Unit holder's equity for detailed movement in other equity balances

Retained earnings :

The cumulative gain or loss atising from the operations which is retained and is recognized and accumulated under the heading of retained earnings At the end of the
period, the profit/loss after tax is transferied fiom the statement of profit and loss to the 1etained eamiings account

Debenture redemption reserve

As per the Companies (Share Capital and Debentures) Rules, 2014 (amended), SPVs are required to create Debenture Redemption Reserve (DRR) out of profits, which
is available for payment of dividend. equal to 10% of the amount of debentures issued Accordingly, the SPVs have created DRR out of their profits in terms of the

Companies (Share Capital and Debenture)Rules, 2014 (as amended) which would be utilized for redemption of debentuies at the time of its matuiity
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Particulars As at As at
31 December 2023 31 March 2023

Secured

Terms loans

- from banks 23,096 15,276
- from other parties 3,134 1,578
Flexi term loan 367 380
Debentures
10 year G-Sec linked secured, listed, senior, taxable, non-cumulative, rated, - 3,741

principal protected — maiket linked, redeemable, non-convertible debentures
("Market Linked Debentures / MLD Series 2”) (net of issue expenses. at
amortised cost) (refer Note 21 A(ii))

Secured, listed, senior. taxable, non-cumulative. rated. redeemable non- - 750
convertible debentures (NCD Series 2) (net of issue expenses, at amortised

cost) (refer Note 21 A(iii))

Senior, Listed, Rated, Secured, Non-Cumulative, - 3,986
Taxable, Transferable, Redeemable Non-Conveitiable Debentures (Sundew

NCD 1) (refer Note 21 A(iv))

Secured, listed, senior, taxable, non-cumulative, rated, redeemable non- - 4971
convertible debentures (NCD Series 3) (net of issue expenses, at amorlised

cost) (refer Note 21 A(v))

Senior, listed, rated, secured, non-cumulative, taxable, transferable, 4,974 4,969
redeemable, non-convertible debentures (“NCD Series 47) (Refer note 21

Al

Secured, listed, rated, secured, non-cumulative, taxable, transferable, 5,468 5,461

redeemable non-convertible debentures (“Mindspace REIT Green Bond 17} (net
of issue expenses, at amottised cost) (refer Note 21 A(viii))

Secured, listed, rated, non-cumulative, taxable, transferable, redeemable non- 4,975 -
convertible debentures (NCD Series 6) (net of issue expenses, at amortised
cost) (1efer Note 21 A(ix))

Secured, listed, rated, non-cumulative, taxable, transferable, redeemable non- 4,987 -
converlible debentures (NCD Series 7) {net of issue expenses. at amortised
cost) (1refer Note 21 A(x))

Bonds - Senior. Listed. Rated. Secured, Non-Cummulative, Taxable, - 4,730
Transferable, Redeemable Non-Convertible Bonds (MBPPL NCB 1) (Refer
note 21 A(vi))

- - 47.001 45,342

Mindspace REIT

In December 2020, Mindspace Business Parks RETT issued 2,000 secured, listed, senior, taxable, non-cumulative, rated, redeemable, non-convertible debentures (“NCD
Series 1) having face value of Rs, 10,00,000 (Rupees ten lakhs only) each, amounting to Rs. 2,000,000,000 (Rupees two thousand million only) with a coupon iate of
6.45% p.a payable quarterly beginning from the end of first full quarter from the date of allotment i.e. 3] March 2021, with last coupon payment on the scheduled
redemption date i e. 16 December 2023. The tenure of the said NCD Seties 1 is 36 months from 17 December 2020, being date of allotment

This NCD Series | was listed on BSE Limited on 21 December 2020

Security terms

NCD Series 1 are secured by each of the following security in favour of the Debenture Trustee (holding for the benefit of the NCD Holders):

a) First and exclusive charge registered by way of simple mortgage (including receivables arising therefiom) on the aggregate leasable area of approximately 414.599 Sq

Ft or thereabouts in buildings no. 1 and 5 of Commerzone Yerawada (approx. 43.200 sq. ft. in building no. 1 and approx. 371,399 in building no. 5) together with the
proportionate undivided right, title and interest in the notionally demarcated land admeasuring approximately 18,264 sq. mtis on which the said two building no. 1 and
5, out of all those pieces and parcels of larger land that are situated, lying and being in Village Yerawada, Taluka Haveli, District Pune (“Mortgaged Propeities™) of
NCD Series |

L) A charge on the escrow account in which receivables of the Mortgaged Properties shall be received save and except any common area maintenance charges payable to
MBBPL with respect to the maintenance of the mortgaged properties

c¢) Corporate guarantee executed by MBPPL

Redemption terms:
a) NCD Series [ were redeemed by way of bullet repayment at the end of 36 months from the date of allotment, i e 16 December 2023 and accordingly the same was

classified as current maturities of long term borrowings as on 31 March 2023

b) Interest is payable on the last day of each financial quarter in a year (starting from 31 March, 2021) until the scheduled redemption date

¢) The Coupon shall be increased by 25 bps for every notch downgrade in the rating by the Credit Rating Agency In case rating is upgraded after any rating downgrade,
the Coupon shall be decreased by 25 bps for each upgrade

d) Upon occunience of a mandatory redemption event, the Debenture Trustee may, by issuing not less than 30 (thirty) business days’ notice to the Issuer require the
Issuer to redeem in full, all the debentures then outstanding by paying an amount equal to the total mandatory redemption amount in respect of each debenture
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In March 2021, Mindspace REIT issued 3,750 10 year G-Sec linked secured, listed, senior, taxable, non-cumulative, rated, principal protected — market linked,
redeemable, non-convertible debentures (“Market Linked Debentures / MLD Series 2) having face value of Rs 10,00,000 (Rupees ten lakhs only) each, amounting to
Rs. 3,750,000,000 (Rupees three thousand seven hundred fifty million only), The tenure of the said MLD Series 2 is 38 months from 18 March 2021, being date of
allotment of the MLD Series 2 and coupon, if any shall be payable on the Scheduled Redemption Date i.e. on maturity on 17 May 2024. The coupon payoff structure is
linked to condition where the payoff will be fixed on the final fixing date ie. 16 April 2024. If identified 10 year G-Sec's last traded price as on final fixing date is
greater than 25% of its last traded price as on initial fixing date i.e. 18 March 2021, the coupon rate will be 6.65% p a. If identified 10 year G-Sec’s last traded price as
on final fixing date is less than or equal to 25% of its last traded price as on initial fixing date, the coupon rate will be zero percent. As per the valuers report in respect
of valuation of these MLD Series 2. the probability of occurrence of such an event (last traded price of identified 10 year G-Sec on final fixing date being less than or
equal to 25% of its Jast traded price on initial fixing date) is remote and hence the value of the option considered as zero

This MLD Series 2 was listed on BSE Limited on 22 March 2021.

Security terms

MLD Series 2 are secured by each of the following security in favour of the Debenture Trustee (holding for the benefit of the Debenture Holders):

a) First and exclusive charge being created by way of equitable mortgage on the aggregate leasable area of approximately 13,71,442 Sq Ft. or thereabouts in buildings
no. 12A and Units of Building 12B of Madhapur, Hyderabad {approx. 12,69,140 sq. ft. in building no.12A and approx. 1,02,302 sq. ft in building no 12B) together with
the proportionate undivided right, title and interest in the notionally demarcated land admeasuring approximately 29,842 sq. mirs on which the said two building no 12A
and 12B, out of all those pieces and parcels of larger land that ate situated, lying and being in Madhapur Village, Serilingampally Mandal, Ranga Reddy District,
Hyderabad (“Mortgaged Properties™), for MLD Series 2

b} First ranking exclusive charge created by way of a hypothecation over the Hypothecated Propetties of MLD Series 2

c) A charge on the esciow account created, in which receivables of the Mortgaged Properties of Sundew shall be received, save and except any common area
maintenance chaiges payable to Sundew with respect to the maintenance of the mortgaged propertics
d) Corporate guarantee executed by Sundew

Redemption terms:

a) MLD Series 2 are redeemable by way of bullet payment at the end of 38 months from the date of allotment, i e 17 May 2024 accordingly the same has been
classified as current maturities of long term borrowings as on 31 December 2023

b) The Coupon shall be increased by 25 bps for every notch downgrade in the rating by the Credit Rating Agency In case rating is upgraded after any rating downgrade,
the Coupon shall be decreased by 25 bps for each upgrade. The Investors shall have the right to accelerate the MLD Series 2 if the rating is downgraded to A+

¢) Upon occurrence of a mandatory redemption event. the Debenture Trustee may. by issuitig not less than 30 (thirty) business days notice to the Issuer require the Issuer
to redeem in full. all the Debentures then outstanding by paying an amount equal to the total mandatory redemption amount in tespect of each Debenture

In March 2021, Mindspace Business Parks REIT issued 750 secured. listed, senior. taxable. non-cumulative, rated. redeemable, non-convertible debentures (“NCD
Series 2) having face value of Rs 10.00.000 (Rupees ten lakhs only) each. amounting to Rs. 750,000,000 (Rupees seven hundred fifty million only) with a coupon rate
of 6.6861% p a payable quarterly beginning from the end of first full quarter from the date of allotment i e 30 June 2021 with last coupon payment on the scheduled
redemption date i e. 17 May 2024 The tenure of the said NCD Series 2 is 38 months fiom 18 March 2021, being date of allotment

NCD Series 2 was listed on BSE Limited on 22 March 2021

Security (ermy

NCD Series 2 are secured by each of the following security in favour of the Debenture Trustee (holding for the benefit of the NCD Holders):

a) First and exclusive charge being registered by way of simple mortgage (including receivables aising therefiom) on the aggregate leasable area of approximately
151,460 Sq. Ft. or thereabouts in building no. 4 of Commerzone Yerawada together with the proportionate undivided right, title and interest in the notionally demarcated
land admeasuring approximately 9.561 sq. murs on which the said building, out of all those pieces and paicels of larger land that are situated, lying and being in Village
Yeiawada. Taluka Havell, District Pune ("Mortgaged Properties™) of NCD Series 2

h) A chaige on the escrow account to be created. in which tecenables of the Mortgaged Pioperties shall be 1ecenved. save and except any common atea mantenance
chaigos payable to MBPPL with tespedt to ihe mainienance of the mortgaged properties

c) Corporate guarantee executed by MBPPL

Redemption terms:

a) NCD Seties 2 are redeemable by way of bullet repayment at the end of 38 months from the date of allotment ie 17 May 2024 accordingly the same has been
classified as current matwities of long term botrowings as on 31 December 2023

b) Interest is payable on the last day of each financial quarter in a year (starting fiom 30 June, 2021) until the scheduled redemption date

¢) The Coupon shall be increased by 25 bps for every notch downgrade in the rating by the Credit Rating Agency In case rating is upgraded after any rating downgrade.
the Coupon shall be decreased by 25 bps for each upgrade

d) Upon occurience of a mandatory redemption event, the Debenture Trustee may, by issuing not less than 30 (thirty) business days’ notice to the Issuer require the
Issuer to redeem in full, all the debentures then outstanding by paying an amount equal to the total mandatory redemption amount in respect of each debenture.

In September 2021, Sundew Properties Limited issued 4,000 Senior, Listed, Rated, Secured, Non-Cumalative,Taxable, Transferable, Redeemable Non-Convertible
Debentures of (“Sundew NCD 1*) having face value of Rs. 10,00,000 (Rupees ten lakhs only) each, amounting to Rs. 4,000,000,000 (Rupees four thousand million only)
with a coupon rate of 6. 1% p a payable quarterly beginning from the end of first full quarter from the date of allotment (date of allotment being 28 September 2021 and
end of first full quarter being 31 December 2021), with last coupon payment on the scheduled redemption date i.e 28 June 2024. The tenure of the said NCD is from
deemed date of allotment i e. 28 September 2021, till scheduled redemption date i.e. 28 June 2024

This NCD was listed on BSE Limited on 1 October 2021

Security terms:

NCD 1 are secured by each of the following secwiity in favour of the Debenture Tiustee (holding for the benefit of the NCD Holders) (as further detailed in security
documents):

1. First ranking exclusive secuiity interest by way of an equitable mortgage over identified immovable properties (as identified below); First ranking sole and exclusive
security interest by way of hypothecation over

(a) the current & future movable assets owned by the Sundew and receivables pertaining to identified immovable properties Building 20 with 709,165 square feet carpet
area (save and except 11,974 square feet carpet area of cafeteria and 1,520 square feet carpet arca of SEZ oftice), Building 12B (unit no 1301 (22,069 square feet carpet
area), unit no 1302 (16,296 square feet carpet area), unit no 1401 (37,050 square feet carpet area) Part Project Mindspace Madhapur, Hyderabad Buildings

(b) the escrow account and the subscription account and all amounts standing to the credit of, or accrued or accruing on escrow account and the subscription account

2. NCD are backed by guarantee provided by Mindspace REIT
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Redemption terms:

a) NCD 1 are redeemable by way of bullet payment on 28 June 2024

b) Interest is payable on the last day of each financial quarter in a year (starting from 31 December, 2021) until the scheduled redemption date

c) The Coupon shall be increased by 25 bps for every notch downgrade in the rating by the Credit Rating Agency. In case rating is upgraded after any rating downgrade,
the Coupon shall be decreased by 25 bps for each upgrade

d) Upon occuirence of a mandatory redemption event, the Sundew shall issue mandatory redemption notice within 2 business days and no later than than 30 (thirty)
Business Days from issuance of mandatory redemption notice (unless instructed otherwise by debenture trustee), redeem in full (or as the case may be. in part) all the
Debentures then outstanding by paying an amount equal to the mandatory redemption amount in respect of each Debenture

In February 2022. Mindspace Business Parks REIT issued 5.000 senior, listed, rated, secured, non-cumulative, taxable, transferable, redeemable, non-convertible
debentures (“"NCD Series 3”) having face value of Rs. 10,00,000 (Rupees ten lakhs only) each, amounting to Rs 5.000.000.000 (Rupees five thousand million only)
with a coupon rate of 6 35% p a. Coupon on the outstanding Nominal value of each debenture shall be applicable and computed from day to day ,be prorated on an
actual/ actual basis for the actual number of days in the Coupon Period and be payable in arrears on the relevant Coupon Payment date to the Debenture Holder whose
name is appearing on the Register of Beneficial Owners as on the Record Date The Issuer hereby aknowledges and agrees that there shall be no motatorium period for
the payment of Coupon. The first Coupon payment Date is 31 Maich 2022, with last coupon pavment on the scheduled redemption date i ¢, 31 December 2024 The
tenure of the said NCD Series 3 is 35 mouths from 1 February 2022, being date of allotment

This NCD Series 3 was listed on BSE Limited on February 04, 2022

Security terms

NCD Series 3 are secured by each of the following security in favour of the Debenture Trustee (holding for the benefit of the NCD Holders):

a) Furst and exclusive charge being registered by way of simple mortgage on the carpet area of appioximately 552,974 Sq Ft (save and except entire 2nd floor
admeasuting 11.883 Sq Ft carpet area in building no. 2) (the building no 2 ) situated on the Mortgage land along with proportionate covered and open parking spaces.
in Building 2 together with all the beneficial rights, title and interest of the Auoli West in appurtenant to Building 2 and all erections The Building 2 1s situated on a
portion of the Mortgage Land admeasuring 8.04 Hectares, which portion is notified as a Special Economic Zone & first and exclusive charge being regmstered by way of
simple mortgage on the identified units with aggregating to caipet area of approximately 4.61,527 Sq. Ft. (identified units of building no. 3 ) situated on the Mortgage
land along with proportionate covered and open parking spaces, in Building 3 together with all the beneficial rights, title and interest of the Assets SPV in appurtenant to
Building 3 and all erections (“Mortgaged Properties”) of NCD Series 3 as further detailed in transaction documents

A first ranking pari passu charge by way of a simple mortgage over the Mortgaged Land as further detailed in transaction documents

b} A charge on the escrow account to be created, in which receivables of the Mortgaged Properties shall be received, save and except any common area maintenance
charges payable to GIGAPLEX with respect to the maintenance of the mortgaged properties.

¢) Corporate ghmantee executed by Gigaplex

Redemption terms:

a) NCD Series 5 are redeemable by way of bullet repayment at the end of 35 months fiom the date of allotment. i ¢ 31 December 2024 and accordingly the same has
been classified as cutrent matunties of long term botrowings as on 31 December 2023

b) Interest is payable on the last day of each financial quarter in a vear (starting trom 31 March, 2022) until the scheduled redemption date

c) The Coupon shall be mcieased by 25 bps for every notch downgtade in the rating by the Credit Ratmg Agency In case rating 1s upgraded after any 1ating downgrade,
the Coupon shall be decreased by 25 bps for each upgrade

d) Upon occurtence of a mandatory redemption event, the Debenture Trustee may, by issumng not less than 30 (thirty) business days™ notice to the Issuer require the
Issuer o 1edeens m {ull all the debentures then outstanding by paving an amount equal (o the total mandatory redemption amount in respect of each debenture

o June 2022 Niandspace Busiiess Parks Privaie Linnied ssued 4,900 seinor, edeemable, Histed, 1ated, secwed, uanslerable., 1upee denominated, non-convertible bonds
('Non Couvertable Bonds ) having face value of Rs 10 00.000 (Rupees ten lakhs only) each. amounting to Rs 4.900.000.000 (Rupees four thousand nine hundred
million ouly} v.ith a coupon rale linked to 3 month Government of India T-Bill plus spread of 203 bps pavable quarterly. with last coupon pavinent on the scheduled
redemption date i.e. 22 June 2027 The tenure of the said non convertible bond is 60 months from deemed date of allotment i e 23 June 2022, till scheduled redemption
date te 22, June 2027

This NCB Series 1 was listed on BSE Limited on June 24, 2022 During the period, principal and interest is paid on 30 June 2023

Secnrity Terms:

The Non Convertible Bonds are secured by

(1) a first ranking pari passu Security by way of a simple mortgage over the specified land (larger land admeaswring 2,02,740 square meters situated at Kalwa Industrial
Area sub district Thane ) and

(if) a first ranking exclusive Security over the identified buildings having aggregate carpet area of approximately 10,40,548 98 sq ft. (approx. 2,67,560.75 sq ft in
Building No 10, approx 2,35,961 50 sq. ft 1n Building no 11 (part),approx 2,74,449 71 sq ft in Building No. 12, approx 2,62,577 02 sq. ft. in Building No 14),
receivables and Account Assets, as specifically defined in the bond trust deed dated June 02, 2022 and as further amended from time to time (“Bond Trust Deed™)

(iti) Corporate guaiantee by the REIT puisuant to the terms of the Bond Trust Deed

Final Redemption Date is the date falling 60 months from the Deemed Date of Allotment (Principal repayment: 1% on 31 Mar 23, 2% on 31 Mar 24. 3% on 31 Mar 25.
4% on 31 Mar 26, 5% on 31 Mar 27 and Balance on Final Redemption Date) The said non convertible bonds are voluntarily redeemable by the company upon the
expity of the lock-in presciibed under the Applicable Laws as specifically defined in the Bond Trust Deed Non convertible bond holders have a put option at the end of
54 months fiom Deemed Date of Allotment as specified in the Bond Tiust Deed

On and from the occurtence of a Rating Downgrade Event/ Rating upgrade Event. the Spread shall stand increased/ decteased by 0 25% per annum over and above the
immediately preceding Coupon as on the date of the occurience of such Rating Downgiade/ Upgmade Event
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In July 2022, Mindspace Business Park REIT issued 5,000 senior, listed, rated, secured, non-cumulative, taxable, transferrable, redeemable, non-convertible debentures
of face value of INR 1,000,000 (Indian Rupees One Million) per Debenture for aggregate principal amount of upto INR 5,000,000,000/- (Rupees Five Thousand Million
Only) with a coupon rate of 7.95% p.a. Coupon on the outstanding Nominal value of each debenture shall be applicable and computed from day to day, be prorated on
an actual/ actual basis for the actual number of days in the Coupon Period and be payable in arrears on the relevant Coupon Payment date to the Debenture Holder
whose name is appearing on the Register of Beneficial Owners as on the Record Date. The first Coupon payment Date is 30 Sept 2022, with last coupon payment on the
scheduled redemption date i.e. 27 July 2027, The tenure of the said NCD Series 4 is 60 months

This NCD Series 4 was listed on BSE Limited on July 29, 2022
Security terms
NCD Series 4 are secured by each of the following security in favour of the Debenture Trustee (holding for the benefit of the NCD Holders):

a) Fitst ranking sole and exclusive security interest by way of an equitable mortgage on carpet area of approximately 779,466 sq ft in building 12 D (identified units of
building) of Madhapur, Hyderabad along with the common areas, usage and access rights appurtenant to the units mortgaged in Building 12D as mentioned in the trust
deet, situated on a notionally demarcated land admeasuring approximately 17414 77 square metres (equivalent to 4 30 acres), forming part of a portion of land
admeasuring 14 02 hectares equivalent to 34.64 acres or thereabout declared as ‘Special Economic Zone’ land from and out of the larger piece of land bearing Survey
no. 64(part), lying, being and situated at Madhapur Village, Serilingampally Mandal, Ranga Reddy District, Hyderabad.

b) A chaige on the escrow account to be created, in which receivables of the Mortgaged Properties shall be received, save and except any common area maintenance
charges payable to Sundew with respect to the maintenance of the mortgaged properties

¢) Corporate guarantee executed by Sundew Properties Limited

Redemption terms:

a) NCD Series 4 are redeemable by way of bullet 1epayment at the end of 60 months from the date of allotment, i ¢ 27 July, 2027

b) Interest 1s payable on the last day of each financial quarter in a year (starting from 30 September 2022) until the scheduled redemption date

¢) The Coupon shall be increased by 25 bps for every notch downgrade in the rating by the Credit Rating Agency In case rating is upgraded after any rating downgade,
the Coupon shall be decreased by 23 bps for each upgrade

d) Upon occurrence of a mandatory redemption event. the Debenture Trustee may. by issuing not less than 30 (ihirty) business days’ notice to the Issuer 1equire the
Issuer to 1tedeem 1 full. all the debenturcs then outstanding by paying an amount equal to (he total mandatory redemption amount in respect of each debenture

On 15 March 2023, Mindspace Business Parks REIT issued 55,000 (fifty five thousand) Green Debt Securities in the form of listed. rated, secured, non-cumulative,
taxable. transferable, redeemable non-convertible debentures (“Mindspace REIT Green Bond 1) having nominal value of Rs. 1,00.000 (Rupees One lakh only) each.
amounting to Rs 5,500,000.000 (Rupees Five thousand five hundred million only) with a coupon rate of 8 02% p a payable quarterly beginning from the end of first
quarter from the date of allotment i e 15 March 2023, wiih last coupon payment on the scheduled redemption date i e 13 Aptil 2026. The tenure of the said Mindspace
REIT Green Bond 1is 3 year and 30 days from 15 March 2023, being date of allotment The date of payment of fi1st coupon is 31 March 23

Mindspace REIT Green Bond 1 was listed on BSE Limited on 16 March 2023

Securify lerms

Mindspace REIT Green Bond | are secured by each of the following security in favour of the Debenture Trustee (holding for the benefit of the NCD Holders) as more
patticulaily described in the tiansaction documents. summarized as follows

2) First and exclusive charge tegistered by way of equitable moitgage (including receivables artsing therefrom) on the aggregate leasable atea of approximately 1 067
nullion syuare feet o1 thereabouts w buildings no. 3B aud 9 of Mindspace Madhapur, Hyderabad (approx 245977 sq ft m buildmg no 5B and appiox 821717
butiding zies 9+ ogether with the proporuonate undrvided nieht title and interest in (11 the notionally demarcated fand admeasuiing anmoximately 7.169 90 square metres
fequivalent to 1 7717 acres) on which Building 3B 1s situated and (13 the notianatly demarcated land adincasming approximately 16 871 82 synare metias (equivalent
to 4 17 acres) o which Burlding 9 fs situated

b) A chatge on the escrow account in which recervables of the Mortgaged Properties shall be payable to intime Properties Limited

c) Colporate guarantee executed by Intime Properties Limited

Redemption terms:

a) Mindspace REIT Green Bond 1 are tedeemable by way of bullet repayment at the end of 3 years and 30 days fiom the date of allotment (date of allotment being 135
Maich 2023 and date of redemption being 13 April 2026)

b) Interest is payable on the last day of each financial quarter in a year (starting from 31 March. 2023) until the scheduled redemption date and on the scheduled
redemption date

¢) The Coupon shall be increased by 25 bps for every notch downgade in the rating by the Credit Rating Agency In case rating is upgraded after any rating downgrade,
the Coupon shall be decreased by 25 bps for each upgrade

d) Upon oceurrence of a mandatory redemption event, the Debenture Trustee may, by issuing not less than 30 (thirty) business days’ notice to the Issuer requite the
Issuer to tedeem in full, all the debentures then outstanding by paying an amount equal to the total mandatory redemption amount in respect of each debenture

In June 2023, Mindspace Business Park REIT issued 50,000 listed. rated, secured, non-cumulative. taxable. tiansferrable. 1edeemable. non-convertible debentures of
face value of INR 1,00,000 (Indian Rupees One Lakh only) per Debentuie for aggiegate principal amount of upto INR 3,000,000,000/- (Rupees Five Thousand Million
Only) with a coupon rate of 775% p a. payable quarterly. Coupon on the outstanding Nominal value of each debenture shall be applicable and computed from day to
day. be prorated on an actual: actual basis for the actual number of days in the Coupon Petiod and be payable in aneais on the relevant Coupon Payment date to the
Debenture Holder whose name is appearing on the Register of Beneficial Owners as on the Record Date The first Coupon payment Date is 30 June 2023. with last
coupon payment on the scheduled redemption date i.e. 30 June 2026. The tenuie of the said NCD Series 6 is 3 year and 29 days

This NCD Series 6 was listed on BSE Limited on June 06, 2023
Security terms

NCD Series 6 are secured by each of the following security in favour of the Debenture Trustee (holding for the benefit of the NCD Holders):

a) first tanking sole and exclusive security interest, by way of a registered simple mortgage on identified units in buildings 6, 7 and 8 of Commerzone Yerwada adding to
a cumulative carpet area of approximately 0 7msf across these 3 buildings at Commerzone Yerwada, Pune along with the common arcas, usage and access rights
appurtenant fo the units mortgaged in Buildings 6, 7 and 8 as mentioned in the trust deed, situated on a notionally demarcated land admeasuring approximately 26.162
square metres , forming part of a portion of land larger land admeasuring 1,03,919 square metres (after deducting 21 square metres for road from total extent of 1,03,940
square metres) at Village Yerwada, Taluka Haveli, District Pune and within the limits of Pune Municipal Corporation

b) A charge on the escrow account to be created, in which receivables of the Mortgaged Properties shall be received, save and except any common area maintenance
charges payable to Sundew with respect to the maintenance of the mortgaged properties

¢) Corporate guarantee executed by Mindspace Business Parks Private Lmﬂc/d’_'—-——:_:,‘\\\.
A S (?
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22 Other non-current financial liabiiities

Redemption terms:

a) NCD Series 6 are redeemable by way of bullet repayment at the end of 3 year and 29 days from the date of allotment i e 30 June 2026

b) Interest is payable on the last day of each financial quarter in a year (starting from 30 June 2023) until the scheduled redemption date.

c) The Coupon shall be increased by 25 bps for every notch downgrade in the rating by the Credit Rating Agency. In case rating is upgraded after any rating downgrade,
the Coupon shall be decreased by 235 bps for each upgrade

d) Upon occurrence of a mandatory redemption event, the Debenture Trustee may, by issuing not less than 30 (thirty) business days’ notice to the Issuer require the
Issuer to redeem in full, all the debentures then outstanding by paying an amount equal to the total mandatory redemption amount in respect of each debenture

In September 2023, Mindspace Business Park REIT issued 50.000 listed, rated, secured, non-cumulative, taxable. transferrable, redeemable. non-convertible debentures
of face value of INR 1,00,000 (Indian Rupees One Lakh only) per Debenture for aggregate principal amount of upto INR 5.000,000,000/- (Rupees Five Thousand
Million Only) with a coupon rate of 8.03% p.a. payable quarterly. Coupon on the outstanding Nominal value of each debenture shall be applicable and computed fiom
day to day, be prorated on an actual/ actual basis for the actual number of days in the Coupon Period and be payable in arrears on the relevant Coupon Payment date to
the Debenture Holder whose name is appearing on the Register of Beneficial Owners as on the Record Date The first Coupon Payment Date is 30 September 2023, with
last coupon payment on the scheduled redemption date i e 10 December 2026 The tenure of the said NCD Series 7 is 3 years and 3 months

This NCD Series 7 was listed on BSE Limited on September 13,2023

Security terms

NCD Series 7 are secured by each of the following security in favour of the Debenture Trustee (holding for the benefit of the NCD Holders):

a) first ranking sole and exclusive security interest, by way of an equitable mortgage on identified units in buildings 2A, 2B and 10 of Mindspace Madhapur addiny to a
cumulative carpet area of approximately 073 msf across these 3 buildings in buildings 2A, 2B and 10 as mentioned in the trust deed, situated on a notionally
demarcated land admeasuring approximately 36,258 square metres, being and situated at Mindspace Madhapur, Madhapur Village, Serilingampally Mandal, Ranga
Reddy District, Hyderabad

b) first ranking sole and exclusive security interest by way of a hypothecation over Collection Account and Escrow Account and all amounts standing to the credit of or
accrued or accruing on, receivables, movable assets pertaining to Mortgaged Immovable Properties as further specitied in transaction documents

¢) Corporate guarantee executed by KRIT

Redemption terms:

a) NCD Seties 7 are redeemable by way of bullet 1epayment at the end of 3 year and 3 months from the date of allotment i e 10 December 2026

b) Interest is payable on the last day of each financial quarter in a year (starting fiom 30 September 2023) until the scheduled redemption date with last payment falling
on the scheduled redemption date

¢) The Coupon shall be increased by 25 bps for every notch downgrade in the rating by the Credit Rating Agency In case 1ating is upgraded after any rating downgrade,
the Coupon shall be decreased by 25 bps for each upgrade.

d) Upon occurrence of a mandatory redemption event, the Debenture Trustee may, by issuing not less than 30 (thirty) business days’ notice to the Issuer require the
Issuer to redeem in full, all the debentures then outstanding by paying an amount equal to the total mandatory redemption amount in respect of each debenture

Refer Note 49 for Ratio disclosure

Particulars As at As at
31 December 2023 31 March 2023

Security deposits 3,409 3,445
Retention money payable
- due Lo micro and small enterprises 109 31
- others 67 111

Capilal creditors
- Due to micto and small enterprises

- Others = 31
_Interest accrued but not due on debentures = - .
3,585 4,153
23 Provisions (Non current)
Particulars As a-t As at

31 December 2023 31 March 2023

Provision for employee benefits

- gratutty 33 26
- compensated absences 14 14
Other Provision (Refer Note 42 (7)c)) 27 27
74 67
24 Deferred tax liabilities (net)
Particulars As at As at
31 December 2023 31 March 2023
Delerred tax hababites Tnet) 3,669 B 2.494
3,669 2,494

25 Other non-current liabilities

Particulars As at As at
31 December 2023 31 March 2023

Unearned rent 446 482
446 482
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Short term barrowings

Particulars

As at
31 December 2023

As at
31 March 2023

Secured:

Loans repayable on demand

- overdraft from banks 2,762 1,219
Unsecured:

- Commercial Paper {(Refer note 26(i}) (31 March 2023 . Nil) 1,446 =
Current maturities of long-term debt (Secured)

10 year G-Sec linked secured, listed, senior, taxable, non-cumulative, rated, 3,747 -
principal protected — market linked, redeemable, non-convertible debentures

(“Market Linked Debentures / MLD Series 27) (net of issue expenses, at

amortised cost) (refer Note 21 A(ii))

Secured, listed, senior, taxable, non-cumulative, rated, redeemable non- 750 -
convettible debentures (NCD Series 2) (net of issue expenses, at amortised

cost) (refer Note 21 A(iii))

- Secured, listed, senior, taxable, non-cumulative, rated, redeemable non- - 1.996
convertible debentures (NCD Series 1) (net of issue expenses, at amortised

cost) (Refer Note 2] A1)}

Secured, listed, senior. taxable, non-cumulative. rated, redeemable non- 4,982 -
convertible debentures (NCD Seties 3) (net of issue expenses, at amortised

cost) (1efer Note 21 A(v))

Senior, Listed, Rated, Secured, Non-Cumulative, 3,995 -
Taxable, Transferable, Redeemable Non-Convertible Debentures (Sundew

NCD 1) (refer Note 21 A(iv))
- Bonds - Senior, Listed, Rated, Secured. Non-Cummulative, Taxable, - 98
Transferable, Redeemable Non-Convertible Bonds (MBPPL NCB 1) (Refer

note 21 A(vi))

- from banks 2,195 5,357
- from other parties 102 13
- Flexi term loan 18 i0

- 19997 8,693

(a) On 20 December 2022, Mindspace Business Parks RELT 1ssued 2,000 Commercial Papers with a tace value of Rs 5,00,000 (Rupees tive lakhs only) each, at a
discount of 7 2% per annum to the face value. The discounted amount raised by the REIT through MREIT CP/1 was Rs 982,556,000 (Rupees nine hundred eighty two
million five lakhs fifty six thousands only) and the value payable on matwity is Rs 1000 000,000 (Rupees one thousand million only) Discount on Commercial papers
is amortized over the tenor of the underlying instrument. The commercial papers weie listed on BSE and matured and tepaid on 20 March 2023

(b) On 19 December 2023. Mindspace Business Parks REIT issued 3,000 Commercial Papers with a face value of Rs 5.00,000 (Rupees five lakhs only) each. at a
discount of 8 0" per annum to the tace value  The discounted amount raised by the REIT thiough MREIT CP/Series-22023-24 was Rs 1 446.117.000 (Rupees one
thonsand fowr hundied fonty six million one hundred and seventeen thousands only) and the vatue payable on matusity is Rs 1 300,000,000 {Rupees one thousand five

hundred million only) Discount on Comimercial papers is amoitized over the tenor of the underlying instrument The commercial papers were listed on BSE and will

mature on 6 June 2024
Trade payables

Particulars

As at
31 December 2023

As at
3] March 2023

Trade Payables

- total outstanding dues of micto enterprises and small enterprises 56 133
- total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises
and small enterprises * 829 576
3§85 709
* Refer note 48 for 1elated party disclosure
Other current financial liabilities
Particulars As at Asat
31 December 2023 31 March 2023
Employees dues payable 27 13
Interest accrued but not due on loans fiom
- banks / financial institutions 92 44
- debenture/bonds 733 3
Interest accrued and due on others 24 21
Security deposits 5,649 5.162
Retention dues payable
- due to micro and small enterprises 143 193
- others 255 250
Unpaid Distributions 0
Capital creditors
- Due to micro and small enterprises 492
- Others 1,376
Other liabilities* - 44
8,835

* Refer note 48 for related party disclosure




29 _Provisions (Current}

Particulars

As at
31 December 2023

Asat
31 March 2023

Provision for employee benefits

- gratuity 4 4
- compensated absences 3 3
Provision for comp fon - 27
7 34
30 _Other current liabilities
Particulars As at Asat
31 December 2023 31 March 2023
Uneamed rent 357 365
Advances received from customers 44 46
Statutory dues 305 308
Other advances 61 54
Other payable* 432 354
1,199 1,127
*This includes Unspent Corporate Social Responsibility amount
31 Current tax liabilities (net)
Particulars As at As at
31 December 2023 31 March 2023
Proviston for income-tax, net of advance tax - 54 25
54 25
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MINDSPACE BUSINESS PARKS REIT
RN:IN/REIT/19-20/003

Condensed Consolidated Interim Financial Statements
Notes to Accounts

(All amounts in Rs. million unless otherwise stated)

42

Contingent liabilities and Capital commitments

Particulars As at As at
31 December 2023 31 March 2023

Contingent liabilities

Claims not acknowledged as debt in respect of

- Income-Tax matters (Refer note 1 below) excluding interest 963 936
- Service-Tax matters (Refer note 2 below) 219 367
- Customs duty matters (Refer note 3 below) 34 34
- Stamp duty 65 65

Capital commitments
Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on capttal account (net of advances) and not provided for (Refer 7,434 5,173
Note 4 below)

Notes:

(a) Gigaplex- An appeal has been filed for A'Y. 2010-11 before CIT(A) against the penalty order raising demand of Rs 3 million and the appeal is pending. Gigaplex has
paid 20% (Rs.1 million) with a request to keep the demand in abeyance As on December 31, as per Income tax website , there is no demand outstanding Order of
CIT(A) has been received and this penalty has now been deleted in current quarter.

(b) KRIT - Contingent liability of Rs. 933 million relate to AY 2012-13 to AY 2018-19 for which it has filed appeals before CIT(A) against orders under section 143(3)
/ 143(3) read with section 153A of the Act contesting the disallowance of deduction under section 80IA of the Income Tax Act 1961, KRIT is hopeful of a favourable
outcome for these Assessment Years In case of unfavourable decisions in appeal for AY 2012-13 to AY 2018-19, the tax would be payable under normal tax and
hence, MAT credit currently available with KRIT will no longer be available As a result, in addition to above contingent liability, KRIT would require to pay additional
tax of Rs 326 million wrt AY 2019-20 and AY 2020-21 (These years are not under litigation) because during these years KRIT has utilised the MAT credit availed
during AY 2012-13 to AY 2018-19.The disallowance of deduction under section 80IA for AYs 2012-13 to 2018-19 by the Income Tax department was based on the
order for carlier AY 201 1-12 wherein similar disallowance was made KRIT had challenged the said order of AY 2011-12 before the ITAT. The Hon ble ITAT vide its
order dated 06.05 2021 allowed the appeal m favour of KRIT by quashing the disallowance made by the income-tax authority The Income Tax department has further
filed an appeal before the High Court against the said order for AY 2011-12 of the Hon’ble ITAT

(¢} Avacado- Contingent liability of Rs. 30 55 million relates to AY 2015-16 and AY 2016-17 For AY 2015-16 and AY 2016-17. the Company had filed appeals
against order under section 143(3) read with 153A of the Income Tax Act, 1961 on account of disallowances u/s 14A and u/s 80IA which were disposed-off in favour of
the Company m earlier ycar The department has filed an appeal before the Hon'ble High Court against the same

EVS . As at As at
31 December 2023 31 March 2023

MBPPL 92 92
Sundew 2 |
Intime 21 57
KRIT 96 209
Avacado 8 3

219 367

MBPPL : The SPV has received show cause and demand notices for inclusion in taxable value amounts received as reimbursement of clectricity and allied charges and
demand service tax there on of Rs 92 million excluding applicable interest and penalty. SPV has filled appropriate replies to the show cause and demand notices

Sundew : Demand for Non Payment of service tax on renting of fitouts and equipments Rs 2 Million and Demand for Interest and Penalty on account of wrong
availment of credit of service tax paid on input services Rs 0 million SPV has filed an appeals with CESTAT and matter is pending

Intime : Intime has filed an appeal with CESTAT against demand of Rs 21 million for Non Payment of service tax on renting of fitouts and equipment for the period
April 2010 to March 2015 and Department filed an appeal with CESTAT against the order of Commissioner (Appeals) deleting the demand of Rs 15 million for Non
Payment of service tax on renting of titouts and equipment for the period April 2015 to June 2017 and these matters are pending adjudication Intime received favourable
order w.r t demand of Rs. 21 million for service tax on recovery of electricity and water and irregular availment of credit of service fax paid on input services.

KRIT : KRIT has filed an appeal with CESTAT against demand of Rs 96 million for Non Payment of service tax on renting of fitouts and equipment for the period
April 2010 to March 2015 and Department filed an appeal with CESTAT against the order of Commissioner (Appeals) deleting the demand of Rs 20 million for Non
Payment ot service tax on renting of fitouts and equipment for the period April 2015 to June 2017 and these matters are pending adjudication

KRIT received favourable order wrt demand of Rs. 93 million for service tax on recovery of electricity and water and irregular availment of credit of service tax paid
on input services

A




L

a)

Avacado : (a) The SPV has received an order dated 31 January 2018 pronounced by the Commissioner (Appeals), confirming the service tax demand of Rs. 7 million
(excluding applicable interest and penalty thereon) on renting of immovable property services provided to tenants during the period April 2008 to March 2011 It has
filed an Appeal before the Customs, Central Excise & Service Tax Appellate Tribunal The matter is pending adjudication,

(b) For the period April 2011 to September 2011, Avacado had received a Show Cause cum Demand Notice dated 22 October 2012 alleging non-payment of service tax
of Rs. | million (excluding applicable interest and penalty thereon) on renting of immovable property services provided to tenants Avacado had filed its detailed reply
on 24 December 2012 No further correspondence has been received in this case

For both the above matters, Avacado had filed applications in Form SVLDRS-1 under the Sabka Vishwas (Legacy Dispute Resolution) Scheme, 2019. Avacado had
received SVLDRS-3 with service tax demand in respect of above matters. Avacado had not accepted the demand and therefore the matter remains under dispute

Customs duty demand at the time of debonding of assets from the Software Technology Parks of India scheme ( STPI ) for Intime Rs. 16 million and KRIT Rs. 9

million.
Future Cash outflow in respect of above, if any, is determinable only on receipt of judgement / decision pending with relevant authorities

KRIT - Bank guarantees to Deputy Commissioner of Customs, Export Promotion Division for Rs.9 million

The SPV wise details of capital commitments are as follows:

SPVs As at As at
31 Deceinber 2023 31 March 2023

MBPPL 750 891
Gigaplex 761 770
Sundew 413 438
KRC Infra 1,793 1,513
Horizonview 196 328
KRIT 3,289 988
Avacado 101 141
Intime 132 104

7,434 5,172
Avacado

A Suit has been filed in the year 2008 by Nusli Neville Wadia (Plaintitf) against [vory Properties and Hotels Private Limited (Ivory) & Others which includes Avacado
as one of the Defendants inter alia in respect of the land and the Taradigm' Industrial Park building of Avacade The Plaintiff has praved against Avacado and the said
fvony restraming them fiom caurving oul further conslruction or any other acut ity on the land (on which the building Paradigm is constructed), demolition and removal
of the structures on: the said land, appointment of a Court Recerver in respect of the said land and Paradigm building, declaring the MOUs / Agreements entered 110 by
Avacado with Ivory and ihe Plamntiff as voidable and having been avoided and rescinded by the Plaintiff and to be delivered up and cancelled, restraining (rom
alienating, encumbening or parting with possession of struclures and restraining from dealing with, creating fresh leases / licenses or renewing lease / license in respeci
of the said Paradigm building and from receiving or recovering any rent / license fee / compensation in respect of the said leases / licenses, depositing all the rents in the
Court. etc The Court has not granted any ad-interim relief to the Plaintiff. Avacado has filed its reply to the said Suit denying the allegations and praying that no miernm
relielbe gianied to the Plarmitfl The nohice ol motion for mterint rebizt and the Swit are pending for the tfinal hearing betore the High Court

Based on an advice obtained from an independent legal counsel the nanagement is confident that Avacado will be able to suitably defend and the impact, it any, on the
ind AS financial statements can be deterniined on disposal of the above Petition and accordingly, Ind AS Financial statements of Avacado have been prepared on a
going concern basis. Further, the Plaintift, through his advocates & solicitors. had addressed letter dated 13 Februarv 2020 including to Mindspace REIT, the Manager,
the Trustee, the Sponsors, Avacado, Mr. Ravi C. Raheja, Mr.. Neel C. Raheja, Mr Chandru L Raheja, Ivory Properties and K Raheja Corp Pvt Ltd , expressing his
objection to the proposed Offer and any actions concerning the building Paradigm located at Mindspace Malad project The allegations and averments made by the
Plaintift have been responded and denied by the addressees, through their advocates & solicitors. No further correspondence has been received

Pursuant to the levy of service tax on renting of immovable properties given for commercial use, retrospectively with effect from 1 June 2007 by the Finance Act, 2010,
some of the lessees to whom Avacado has let out its premises, have based on a legal advice, challenged the said levy and, inter-alia, its retrospective application and
withheld payment of service tax to Avacado, based on certain judicial pronouncements and stay orders granted by appropriate High Courts from time to time Further in
this regard the Hon’ble Supreme Court has passed an interim order dated 14th October, 2011 in Civil appeal nos 8390, 8391-8393 of 2011 and in compliance of which,
such lessees have deposited with appropriate authority in 3 instalments, 50% of the amount such service tax not so paid by them upto 30 September 2011 and have
furnished surety for the balance 50% of the amount of service tax and which amount has also been deposited by them with the authorities Further as per Hon’ble
Supreme Court’s Order dated Sth April 2018 in Civil Appeal No, (s) 4487/2010, the matter is deferred until disposal of the issues pending before the nine judges Bench
in Mineral Area Development Authority and others

In view of the above and subject to the final orders being passed by the Hon’ble Supreme Court in the aforesaid appeals, there may be a contingent liability on Avacado
in respect of interest payable on account of the delayed payment of service tax. which amount would be recoverable from the respective lessees by Avacado
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a)

by

c)

KRC Infra

[n respect of KRC Intia's project at Village Kharadi. Pune. a special vivil suit s filed by Ashok Phulchand Bhandait against Balasaheb Laxman Shivale and 29 others in
respect of inter aha an undivided share admeasuring 44 15 Ares out of the land bearing S No 65 Hissa No 3 for declaravon. specitic performance, injyunction and other
reliefs Neither Gera Developments Private Limited noi KRC Tnfrastructure and Projects Private Limited is a party to the aforementioned suit and neither of them have
been jomed as parties Lo the cvil swt or Gera Developments Prsare Limited nor KRC Tnfrastructure and Projects Private Limited have filed any intervention
application There are no orders passed in the matter afiecung the suit lands or the development thereof or restraining the uansfer or development ol the afoiesaid land
in any manner whatsoever Next date is Maich 13. 2024 The malter is currently pending

nstitu *Mr. Amit Jeevan filed special
( re the e, Senior Division rt’) seekimg
inter of land bearing S 3 on which

ermanent injunction and several other reliets KRC Infrastructure & Projects Piivate
have been received by KRC Infiastructure & Projects Private Limited till date Gera
Developments Private Limited and Gera Resorts Private Limited i ¢ Defendant No 15 & 16 in the said suit have filed their written statement and an Application for
rejection of plaint on the urounds mentioned therein. The matter is currently pending Gera Developments Private Limited {~Gera Developments™) and Gera Resorts
Private Limned (“Gera Resorts™), two of the defendants wn the matter have filed an application for rejection of plaint under Order VI Rule 11 ot Code of Crvil
Procedure, which application was rejected by the Court by way of an order passed on May 05. 2022 Thereatier. on June 22. 2022 Gera Developments and Gera

v ff has filed an application under section 151 of Code of Civil Procedure seeking
a le, mot 1o carry out construction or development activities On Tune 27. 2022, the
. junction application An application to recall the order dated Mav 5 2022 was filed
n tejected the application filed by the defendants 1 and 15 On August 29 2022 KRC

Infra filed an apphcation for inteiventon as third party for being impleaded in the swit The hearng was concluded on September 27, 2022 on the ntervention
apphication and the matter has been posted to October 01, 2022 for passing ol an order on the Application for intervention filed by KRC Infia On Octaber 1. 2032 the
matter was further adjourned to October 6, 2022 and Rirther to October 7, 2022 On October 7. 2022 additional arguments were advanced on the intervention
apphcation and the matter has been posted for order on the nterventon applicaton By an order dated November 18, 2022, the Court allowed the intervention
apphcation filed by KRC Tnfra and directed the Plawntiff to implead the intervener 1e KRC Tnfra as Delendant No 66 n the swit within one month of the order On
December 3. 2022 the Plainuft filed apphcations tor amendment ot the plant and for myjunction On December 13, 2022, KRC Infra filed its say (o the apphcanon for
amendmient. By an order dated December 13. 2022, the Court allowed the application of the Plaintifi' to amend the plaint in Exhibit 5 Further. by the said Order the
Court has ditected the PlaintilT to serve the amended compilation upon KRC Infra and KRC [nfra to file its written statement along with 1ts say to the application tor

tem mjunction filed by the Planufl The matter was posted to January 3. 2023 for compliance On January 3, 2023, Defendant no.66 (1., KRC Infrastructure
and t Private Limited) has filed on record the written Statement and say Lo Application for Temporary Imunction along with aftidavit in support of Say. and

Applicaton for production of documents along with List of documents Thereafier, Defendant no 1 to 14 filed two appheations

— i) an Apphcaon seehing an adjouwrnment 1o file Additonal Wiitten Statement. and (2) an Application seeking direction trom the Hon’ble Court 1o the Plantft to
provide documents iefeted t i the amended plamt filed by the Planuil 1o the said Defendants and the marter was posted to Tanuany 11 2023 for aiguments on
behall of the Plamtdt and the Defendant no 66 on the Application for Temporary Tnjunction filed at Exhibit 3 On January 11 2023, the Plamult advanced otal
arguments before the Court on the application for lemporary tnjunction Thereafter. the Court adjourned the matter and the same was posted Lo January 24, 2023 for
arguments on behalf of De tno 66 on the apphcation for temporary injunction On lanuary 24,2023, Defendant No 66 filed an application (or production of’
docunients along with a s list of documents and filed photographs on record and the matter was adrourned o Februarn 07, 2023 {1 wguments on hehalr o
Datendant no 66 on the appheation Tor emporay imuncton On februany 07 2023 and February 21 2023 the Defendant No 66 advanced weuments hefore the Coust
on-the Applicaton tor nyunction Lhe matter was turUier posted to March 2. 2023 for concluding the arvuments on Appheation (or mjunction by the Plaintitt The
Plamnuft concluded het arguments m reply o the arguments made by Defendant no 66 Dedendant No 66 filed the written notes of areuments The Plamuft has filed
copy ot the Order dated Junuany 1302023 thereby granung stats guo to the order dated December 03 2022, passed y RTS Appeal No 429 of 2022 rejecting the
Appeal on merits ull the final disposul of the Appeal RTS/2: A, 1554:2022 filed before the Honble Addimonal Collector Pune Thereafter the caplioned matter has been
adjowned o March I35 2023, tor filing of written wguments iany by the Plamuff and other Defendants On Maich 15. 2023 the matler was adjourned ull March 23,
2023 On March 23, 2023 Defendant Nos 62 and 63 tiled an application for amendment of the WS filed by them and the Plantift has filed its say (o the said
application Thereafter. the Planoff and the Defendant Nos 62 and 63 argued on the aforesard application and the Hon’ble Court was pleased o allow the afoiesaid
amendment application The Defendant Nos 16, 17, 18, 19, 51. 52 and 33 filed their written notes of argumients and the Detendant No 16 and 17 have filed their
written notes of arguments The 2021 Swit matter has been adjourned ll luly 10, 2023 for passing order on Application for injunction filed by the Plaintiff. On July 19,
2023, the Court partly allowed the Application for injunction, restraiming Defendant 1 and 2 trom alienating and creating third party rnights in any manner over suil
propeities | (a). 1 (byand | (f) till disposal of the suit. On September 11, 2023 the Advocate for the Plaintit( filed an application for amendment of the suit. inter alia,
seeking () 1ectification of boundaries in 1espect of suit property I(e) of Defendant No 66 i e KRC Infra (viz Survey No 65:3). (b) addiuon:amendment in para No 8
and 12 stating that Defendant No 1 to 19, 51 to 34, 63 to 67 and ather defendants have refused for paitition and undivided share of the Plaintiff, Thereafter, pursuant to
Delendants No 1 to 14 filing their say and matter has been adjourned to November 3. 2023 for say of other Defendants Further, A notice of lis pendens dated

I 2022 has been registered at the office of Sub Registtar. Haveli no |1 Pune  On Novembet 3. 2023 the Plamtift carned out the amendment and filed the

plaint adjourned to November 22. 2023 for filmg additional written statement by Defendant No 66 and other defendants and appearance by the Defendunt No 67 On
November 22. 2023 the matter was adjourned Lo December 13 2023 On December 13, 2023 the Defendant No 66 sought time to file additonal wntten statement and
the Plainutt filed an Application for amendment Next daie 1s yebwo be posted The matter s curtently pending

Saraswat Malhan Guikwad (decensed) thraugh her heir CAppellant™ filed an RTS Appeal No 2 A 15354 2022 on June 6, 2022 before the Additional Collector, Pune
¢+ Additional Collector” ) agaimst Gera Resotts Private L imited through Mi Ashish Jangda ¢ Respondents *) secking to quash and set astde the arder passed on December
52022 by the Sub Drvision Ofticer. Haveli CImpugned Ouder”) in respect ol the Mutation Entry No 27115 On January 3. 2023, pursuant to the hearing, the
Addinonal Colleclorgranted a stay on the Impugned Order tll the final order disposing of the Appeal On October 16, 2023 the Appellant filed an Amendment
Apphication for impleading 13 new respondents ( Amendment Application™) and the same was allowed and notices were 1ssued W the newh added Respondents on
October 16. 2023 Fowever. the copies of the aforesaid wete not served on KRC Infia and the mauer was posted on December 5. 2023 for receipl of records and
proceedings of i) Complaint Case no 6 ot 2020 befoie the Ld Circle Inspector, Kalas: i) RTS Appeal No 429 of 2022 before the Ld Sub-Divisional Officer On
December 5. 2023 KRC Infra filed its say to the Amendment Application and the Appellant tiled on jecord the RP A D slips and Track Consignment Report of the said
notices as the notices 1ssued to the proposed Respondents were unserved Appellant filed an application to 1ssue nolices to the proposed Respondents through the
Talathi KRC Infra objected to 1t and requested for hearing on the Amendment Application before 1ssuing such notices The Respondent Nos | and 2 objected to the
Amendment Application, tiled an application secking directions to the Appellant w provide copres of the documents relied by the Appellant w1 the Amendment
Application and to tile reply 0 it KRC Infia was directed to conduct the arguments on the Amendment Application and the Respondent Nos | and 2 were directed to
fie their reply to the Amendment Application The Coust noted that no notices will be issued to the proposed Respondents through the Talathi till the said Amendment
Applicaon 1s decided Next date 15 20 | 2024 The matter 15 pendinyg

d



a)

b)

c)

MBPPL

Pursuant to the demerger and vesting of the Commerzone Undertaking of K Raheja Corp Pvt Ltd. (KRCPL), in MBPPL, MBPPL is the owner to the extent of 88.16 %
undivided right title and interest in the land bearing S. No 144, 145 Yerawada, Pune which is comprised in the said Undertaking “Shrimant Chhatrapati Udayan Raje
Bhosale (“the Plaintiff”) has filed a Special Civil Suit bearing No 133 of 2009 in the Court of Civil Judge, Senior Division Pune against the erstwhile land Owner Shri
Mukund Bhavan Trust (who had entrusted development rights to MBPPL) and the State of Maharashtra, claiming to be the owner of the said land. The Hon’ble Court
was pleased to reject the Application for amendment of plaint filed by the Plaintiff and allow the Third Party Applications on 14.11.2016, The Plaintift has filed two writ
petitions bearing Nos. 4415/2017 and 4268/2017 in the Bombay High Court challenging the aforesaid orders passed on 14.11.2016 The matter was transferred to
another Court for administrative reasons and adjourned on several occasions for compliance of the order by the Plaintiff. On 5th March 2018 the Advocate for the
Plaintiff filed a purshis on record stating that since he does not have any instructions in the matter from the Plaintiff, the Vakalatnama is being withdrawn by him and
the matter was posted on 20th March 2018. On 20th March 2018 the Hon'ble Court was pleased to adjourn the matter till 22nd June 2018 since the Advocate for the
Plaintiff had withdrawn the Vakalatnama and the Plaintiff was not represented by any Advocate. Writ Petition Nos 4415/2017 and 4268/2017 filed in the Hon'ble
Bombay High Court challenging the orders dated 14th November 2016 by Shrimant Chatrapati Udayanraje Bhosale against Shri. Mukund Bhavan Trust and others
came up for hearing on 28 November 2017 wherein the Advocate for the Petitioner undertook to serve the copy of the petition on the Respondent No. 2 i.e. State of
Maharashtra and the Hon’ble High Court was pleased to adjourn the same till 16.01.2018, 26 02 2018, 22 06 2018 On 22.06.2018 the Advocate for the Defendant No
1 filed a purshis stating that the Defendant No. 1 (a) expired matter was further adjourned till 24 10 18, 26 11.18, 211218, 01 02 2019, 25.03.2019 and 15.04 2019,
18 06 2019, 27 08.2019, 19.09 2019 On 19 09 2019 the matter has been stayed by the Hon’ble Court and further posted on 11 11 2019 for compliance of the order
dated 14.11 2016 by the Plaintiff. The matter has been stayed under Sec 10 of Code of Civil Procedure. Next date 16.09 23 for steps. Both the Writ Petitions were
posted on 21 0918, 11.10.18, 22.10,18 and further posted on 10.06.19 for Admission The matters came on board on 20.06 2019, 14112019, 1501 2019 and
21.02.2019. As per the CMIS Writ Petition No 4415/2017 was last posted on 27 03 2020 and is yet not listed As per the CMIS Writ Petition No 4268/2017 was last
posted on 27 03 2020 and thereatter on 23.07.20 for Admission and is yet not listed In the management’s view, as per legal advice, considering the matter and the
facts, no provision for any loss / liability is presently required to be made

MBPPL is subject to other legal proceedings and claims, which have arisen in the ordinary course of business, MBPPL’s management does not reasonably expect that
these legal actions, when ultimately concluded and determined, will have a material and adverse effect on MBPPL’s results of operations or financial condition

MBPPL received a communication (alleged reminder) from Pune Municipal Corporation (PMC) demanding an amount of Rs 157 millien allegedly due from MBPPL
based on objections by internal audit report of Pune Municipal Corporation. MBPPL, has submitted a letter denying all allegation of PMC, as MBPPL has not been
served with any document referred to the said PMC letter. Subsequently MBPPL addressed one more communication stating that MBPPL would be in a position to
submit their reply upon receipt of the details of amount demanded as per their reply submitted which states that if any principal outstanding is due/recoverable, MBPPL
agrees to make the said payment and sought detailed clarification on the interest amount. By letter dated 20.07.2019 to MBPPL, PMC provided the copy of the audit
report to MBPPL and requested MBPPL to provide its clarifications in respect of objectionable issues and furnish the challans in lieu of payment of the recoverable
amount By lelter dated 1708 2021 to the architect firm and another, PMC stated that it has not received any clarifications and provided the challans of amounts by
assessing interest thereon and 1equired submission of challan/receipt towards payment of an amount of ¥ 183 60 million recoverable against all objectionable issues By
its reply letter dated 06.09 2021 to PMC, MBPPL has again reiterated that the earlier PMC letter dated 04 02 2019 and the PMC letter dated 17 08 2021 are addressed to
the wrong persons and informed PMC of the non-receipt of relevant information and documents from PMC as requested by MBPPL earlier By letter dated 11.10.2021
to PMC, MBPPL replied stating that the impugned challans. demands and notice are illegal. null and void and ultra vires; and likewise the act of issuing the letter dated
17 08 2021 is ultra vires and without the authority of law and called upon PMC to withdraw the impugned challans and letter forthwith By the said letter MBPPL
further stated that if the challans and letter is not withdrawn and any further action is initiated in that event the letter dated 11 10 2021 may be treated as a notice under
section 487 of The Maharashtra Municipai Corporations Act, 1949 and under section 159 of The Maharashtia Regional and Lown Planning Act, 1966, Further, without
prejudice to the contentions raised in the reply and without admitting any liability to pay the amount as per the impugned challans, MBPPL has submitted that. in order
to resolve the controversy, MBPPL is willing to offer to pay in full and final settlement on all accounts of all demands raised  the said challans, a lumpsum one-time
amount of ¥ 26.64 million without any liability for interest thereon or for any other payments relating to the subject and to provide an opportunity of hearing and
turnishing clarifications, it required by PMC Subsequently, by letter dated March 10, 2022, PMC informed MBPPL that it has not accepted the cheque issued by
MBPPL vide its letter dated January 25, 2022 and requested MBPPL to issue demand draft for the amount as per the Challans and make the payment to PMC at the
earliest

On April 7, 2022 MBPPL submitted a reply/ letter to PMC enclosing a demand draft as desired by the PMC, for an amount of ¥ 26,64 million towards the payment as
set out in MBPPL's earlier communications. Vide letter dated July 11, 2022 PMC returned MBPPL’s demand draft while demanding entire demanded payment
MBPPL vide its letter dated July 22, 2022 read with MBPPL letter dated July 21. 2022 remitted the entire demanded payment of Rs.10,13,57,239/- under protest
MBPPL on July 28, 2022 also paid an amount of Rs 60,93,225/- being Chailan Late Fees and recorded this payment under MBPPL letter dated August 8, 2022 MBPPL
(“Petitioner”) has filed wril petition on November 14, 2022 in the Bombay High Court (“Court™) against Pune Municipal Corporation and others (“Respondents™) inter
alia, seeking to impugn and set aside the Demand Notice dated January 5, 2022 enclosing challans for certain amounts allegedly due and payable by the Petitioner
(“Impugned Demand Notice™) and for refund of the amount of ¥ 107.43 million paid by the Petitioner under protest to the Respondents towards the Impugned Demand
Notice The matter is currently pending for admission




a)

b)

a)

b)

Intime, Sundew and KRIT

In accordance with the Scheme of arrangement which was approved by Hon’ble Andhra Pradesh High Court on 23 March 2007, the Industrial Park 11 and I
undertakings of K Raheja IT Park (Hyderabad) Limited (formerly known as K Raheja IT Park (Hyderabad) Private Limited) ("KRIT", "JV Company") have been
demerged and vested in the Company with effect from the appointed date i.e. 01 September 2006,

Intime and Sundew had acquired the land at Madhapur, Hyderabad as part of the demerger scheme from KRIT. The said land is in lieu of the employment opportunities
to be generated by KRIT and others,

The liability, if any, arising due to the obligation to create the job opportunities for the entire larger land of which the above property is a part, continues to be retained
by KRIT as at 31 December 2023

During the year ended 31 March 2016, Telangana State Industrial Infrastructure Corporation Limited ("TSIIC") has returned the original Bank Guarantees to KRIT and
also confirmed to the bank that TSIIC will not claim any amount from the bank under the Bank Guarantees and the bank is relieved of its obligation. Hence, no liability
is recognised towards the price of the plot of land.

An unconditional obligation to pay amounts due to Andhra Pradesh Industrial Infrastructure Corporation Limited ("APIIC") in respect of APIIC's claims of losses due to
any difference in values pertaining to sale transactions of the project undertaken by KRIT. Losses incurred by the Government/TSIIC in its JV Company, if any, will be
paid in full by K Raheja Corp Pvt Ltd and it has furnished to the JV Company in writing agreeing and admitting liability to make such payment to Government/TSIIC.
The shareholding pattern of the Government/TSIIC in the JV Company and the Company will not change as a result of conversion from Private to Public, the
Government / TSIIC equity of 11% will remain the same in the Company and all the demerged companies and further in future, Government / TSIIC will not be asked
to infuse further cash to maintain its 11% stake.

Gigaplex

Regular Civil Suit had been filed before the Hon. Civil Judge (J.D) Vashi at Central Business District by an Education Society ("the Plaintiff") who is claiming rights in
existing school structure, claiming its area as 500 square meters and its existence since more than 30 years, seeking an injunction not to dispossess him. Gigaplex has
filed its reply opposing the Plaintiff’s prayers. After hearing the parties, the Hon’ble Judge at the Vashi Court had rejected the Plaintiff’s Injunction Application by
Order dated 20.08 18 (Order). Thereafter the Plaintiff has filed an appeal in Thane District Court. The Plaintiff’s Appeal filed in Thane District Court has been
transferred to Belapur Court is still pending for Arguments in Appellant's Applications for injunction and status quo before relevant court in Belapur. Both Suit and
Appeal are pending for hearing. In management view, the estimate of liability arising out of the same is remote, no provision has been taken

In relation to MIDC Demand on account of change in shareholding pattern refer Note 54

KRIT

A Writ petition has been filed against the Company in the High Court of Judicature of Andhra Pradesh at Hyderabad with respect to specific use of the land
admeasuring 4,500 square yards, earmarked as plot 18. Pursuant to it, the Court has passed an Order for no construction activity on the said plot of land until further
orders of the Court. KRIT has filed its reply and also sought expeditious hearing. Afier hearing, the matter was listed on 18 12 23 for pronouncement of judgement
The Court interalia held that Petitioners in the writ petition are not entitled to any reliefs and the writ petition is dismissed. Stay got vacated Subsequently, KRIT filed a
caveat in writ appeal vide Caveat no 8135 of 2023 on the file of the Hon’ble High Court for the State of Telangana Based on the facts of the case, the management
does not expect any liability and is of the opinion that no provision needs to be made

Sundew

The Office of the Land Reforms Tribunal Cum Deputy Collector & Special Grade Revenue Divisional Officer, Attapur (“Tribunal”) had, by letter dated 27 August
2009, sought information from Sundew under Section 8(2) of the Andhra Pradesh Land Reforms (Ceiling on Agriculture Holdings) Act, 1973 (“APLRAC™) in respect
of the entire land parcel at Mindspace Madhapur The Revenue Department of the Government of Andhra Pradesh forwarded a Memo dated S September 2009 for
furnishing of certam information to the Government of Andhra Pradesh, including information requested by the letter dated 27 August 2009 Sundew had filed a
detailed response on 30 September 2009 stating that (a) the land was originally granted by the Government of Andhra Pradesh to K Raheja IT Park Hyderabad Limited
(KRIT) which was a joint venture company with Andhra Pradesh [ndustrial Infrastructure Corporation Limited, (b) the land was vested in Sundew by way of demerger
order of the Andhra Pradesh High Court, (c) the land has been declared as an SEZ and is therefore exempt from the local laws; (d) the land was shown as a non-
agricultural land in the master plan of Hyderabad and is therefore not “land” covered under the APLRAC The Tribunal issued a final notice to Sundew in January 2012
requesting to submit a declaration for full and correct particulars of the lands held. In September 2009, Sundew also submitted a copy of the order dated August 9, 2012,
which was passed by the Hon’ble High Court of Andhra Pradesh (“High Court”) in a similar matter (being Writ Petition No. 19300/2012 filed by Neogen Properties
Pvt. Ltd.) wherein a stay was granted by the High Court until further orders. The matter is currently pending before the Tribunal. Future cash flows in respect of above
matters are determinable only on receipt of judgements/decisions pending at various forums/authorities




43 Management and Support fees

A Management Fees*
Property Management Fee
Pursuant to the Investment Management Agreement dated 29 June 2020 as amended. the Manager is entitled to fees @ 3% of the total rent ( lease and fitout, car park
charges or any other compensation on account of letting out) per annum of the relevant property in respect to operations, maintenance and management of the SPVs, as
apphcable to be reduced to the extent of employee cost directly incurred by the SPVs. The fees 1s charged based on the billing done to the tenants The fees has been
determined to meet the ongoing costs of the Investment Manager to undertake the services provided to the SPVs
Property Management fees for the quarter and nine months ended 31 December 2023 amounts to Rs. 90 million and 320 million respectively and for the quarter and
nine months ended 31 December 2022 amounts to Rs 112 million and Rs 311 million respectively There are no changes during the period in the methodology for
computation of fees paid to the Manager

Support Services Fee

Pursuant to the Investment Management Agreement dated 29 June 2020 as amended, the Manager is entitled to fees @ 0 5% of the total rent ( lease and fitout, car park
charges or any other compensation on account of letting out) per annum of the relevant property in respect to general administration and other support service of the
SPVs, as applicable The fees has been determined to meet the ongoing costs of the Investment Manager to undertake the services provided to the SPVs  The fees is
charged based on the billing done to the tenants

Support Management fees for the quarter and nine months ended 31 December 2023 amounts to Rs 23 million and 67 million respectively and for the quarter and nine
months ended 31 December 2022 amounts to Rs 21 million and Rs 59 million respectively There are no changes during the period in the methodology for computation
of fees paid to the Manager

REIT Management Fees

Pursuant to the Investment Management Agreement dated 21 November 2019, Investment Manager is entitled to fees @ 0 5% of REIT Net Distributable Cash Flows
which shall be pavable either in cash or in Units or a combination of both, at the discretion of the Investment Manager, The fees has been determined for undertaking
management of the REIT and its investments The REIT Management fees (including GST) accrued for the quarter and nine months ended 3! December 2023 amounts
to Rs 17 million and 51 million respectively and for the quarter and nine months ended 31 December 2022 amounts to Rs 17 million and Rs 51 million respectively

There are no changes during the period in the methodology for computation of fces paid to the Investment Manager

*Refer Note-48 for related party disclosure

B Business Support Services ©

REIT SPVs have entered into support services agreements with K Raheja Corporate Services Private Limited (KRCSPL) (Now K Raheja Corp Real Estate Private
Limited { ‘KRCREPL") pursuant to the demerger of the services business from KRCSPL into KRCREPL effective September 1, 2023) under which KRCSPL had
agieed 0 provsde project related support activities Lo the REIT SPVs The agreement was turther amended during the previous year for reduction 1n the quarterly fees
payable with effect frem 1 April, 2022

W
K
s * o
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MINDSPACE BUSINESS PARKS REIT
RN:IN/REIT/19-20/003

Condensed Consolidated Interim Financial Statements
Notes to Accounts

(All amounts in Rs. million unless otherwise stated)

45 Financial instruments
A The carrying value of financial instruments by categories are as below:

Financial assets

As at
31 December 2023

As at
31 March 2023

Fair value through Other Comprehensive Income ('FVTOCI')

Investments in equity instruments 0 0
Amortised cost
Investments - non-current 33 29
Trade receivables 635 572
Cash and cash equivalents 3,356 4,062
Other bank balances 2,804 206
Other financial assets 6,945 5,061
Total assets 13.773 9.930
Financial liabilities
Borrowings 66,998 54,535
Lease Liabilities 138 127
Security deposits 9,058 8,607
Trade payables 885 709
Other financial liabilities (other than Security deposits) 3,362 3,242
_Total liabilitics 50,441 67,220

The Management considers that the carrying amount of the above financial assets and liabilities approximates to their fair value

B. Measurement of fair values
The section explains the judgement and estimates made in determining the fair values of the financial instruments that are
a} recognised and measured at fair value
b) measured at amortised cost and for which tair values are disclosed in the financial statements

To provide an indication about the reliability of the inputs used m determining fair value, the Group has classified its financial instruments into the three levels
prescribed under the accounting standard An explanation of each level is mentioned below:

Fair value hierarchy
* Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities that the entity can access at the measurement date;

» Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices included within Level 1. that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly or indirectly; and
* Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or liability

The following table presents the fair value measurement hierarchy of assets and liabilities measured at fair value on recurring basis as at 31 December 2023.

Financial instruments
Quantitative disclosures tair value measurement hierarchy for assets as at 31 December 2023:

Particulars Date of valuation Total Level 1 Level 2 Level 3

Financial assets measured at fair value:
FVTOCI financial investments: 12/31/2023 0 - - 0
FVTOCI financial investments: 3/31/2023 0 - - 0

C  Transfers between Level 1, Level 2 and Level 3
There were no transfers between Level 1. Level 2 or Level 3 during the period ended 31 December 2023 and vear ended 31 March 2023
D Determination of fair values
Fair values of financial assets and liabilities have been determined for measurement and/or disclosure purposes based on the following methods When applicable.
Lurther information about the assumptions made in determining fair values 1s disclosed in the notes specific to that asset or hability
1) The fair value of mutual funds are based on price quotations at reporting date

it) The fair values of other current financial assets and financial liabilities are considered to be cqiuvalenit to their carrying values

rate
iv) Security deposits accepted are measured at fair value based on the discounted
borrowing rate .




VIINDSPACE BUSINESS PARKS REIT
RN:IN/REIT/19-200003

Condensed Consolidated Tnterim Financial Statements
Notes to Accounts

(All amounts in Rs. millivn unless otherwise stated)

46 Segment information
Primary segment information
The primary reportable segment 1s business segment
Business Segment
The Mindspace Group is organised into the two operating divisions - 'real estate’ and ‘power distribution”. which are determined based on the internal orgamisation and
management stiucture of the Mindspace Group and its system of internal financial reporting and the nature of its risks and its returns The Board of Ditectors of the
manager has been identitied as the chief operating decision maker (CODM) CODM evaluates the Mindspace Group's performance, allocates resources based on
analysis of various performance indicators of the Group as disclosed below
Real estate
Real estate comprises development and management of projects undet Special Economic Zone (SEZ). Information Technology Parks and other commercial assets The
Group has its project/properties in Mumbai Region. Hyderabad, Pune and Chennai for development and management of commercial SEZ, IT parks and commercial
assets Including incidental activities
Power distribution
The state power regulator has taken on record the SEZ developer MBPPL. Gigaplex. Sundew and KRC' Infra as Deemed Distiibution Licensee for Power The
approved SPVs betng Deemed Distributor, supplies power to customers wilhin the notified SF7

For the quarter ended 31 December 2023

' Real estate Power Unallocable Inter segment Total
|Particulars distribution elimination
Segment revenue 5.806 297 - | (102 6,001
Segment result 3.550 6 (152)] g 3,404
|Less Fance cost 114 0 1,047 - 1,161
Add: Interest income / othel income Il 0 96 - 107
Profit  {loss) before tax 3447 6 (! IO3)I 23350
Less Tax = = 883 - 883
Profit / (Loss) after tax 3,447 | 6 |' (1,986) - l.467_
For the quarter ended 30 September 2023
i Real estate | Power | Unallscable Inter segment Total
Particulars | distribution | elimination
Segment revenue 6.110 286 | (103)] 6.293
Seument resull 3621 9 | 1139y, - 3491 |
[Less Finance cost 115 | 0 1 035 | [
Add Interest income  othel mcome 17 | I 92 | 1Y)
Pralit tloss) befoie lax 3523 10 (1.082)] 2451
Hhess Tax - 946 - 946
Profit / (1 nss) after tax 3,523 10 ‘ (2,028)| - 1.505
For the quarter ended 31 December 2022

Real estate Power Unallocable | Inter segment Total
Particulars distribution elimination
Segment revenue 5415 207 = 164) 5.558
Seement resull 3.349 (28) (170) - 3,151
Finance cost 95 0 810 | - 905
Interest income  other income 8 0 38 - 46
Profit / (loss) before tax 3262 (28) (942) - 2292
Tax - | 027 - 1,027
Piafit / (Loss) after tax - 3.262 28) (1,969) - I,ZGS_
For the nine months ended 31 December 2023
| Real estate Power Unallocable Inter segment Total
Particulars distribution elimination
Seuzment revenue 17.617 886 - (310 18,192
Seument resull 10.594 20 (430) - 10,184
Less: Finance cost 306 | 0 3,069 - : 3,373
Add Interest income  other income 100 2 234 - 336
Profit  (loss) before tax 10,388 21| (3.264) - 7,145
Less: Tax - - 2,803 - 2,803
Profit / (Loss) after tax 10,388 21 | 6.067) - 4.342




For the nine months ended 31 December 2022

Real estate Power Unallocable Inter segment Total
Particulars distribution elimination |
Segment revenue 16,698 651 = (195) 17,154
Segment result 9,351 27 (462) - 8.862
Less: Finance cost 285 0 2,169 - 2,454
Add: Interest income / other income 12 1 151 - 164
Profit / (loss) before tax 9,078 (26} (2,480) - 6,572
Tax - - 3,150 - 3.150
Profit / (Loss) after tax 9,078 (26) (5,630) - 3,422
For the year ended 31 March 2023
Particulars Real estate Power Unallocable Inter segment Total
distribution elimination
Segment revenue 22,231 841 - (251} 22,821
Segment result 12,586 (53) (570) - 11,963
Less: Finance cost 380 4) 3,055 - 3,431
Add: Interest income / other income 31 5 184 - 220
Profit / (Loss) before exceptional items and tax 12,237 44) (3,441) - 8,752
Less: Exceptional Items (refer note 51A and 51B) (1,368) - - - (1,368)
Profit / (loss) before tax 10,869 (44) (3,441) - 7,384
Tax - - 4,299 a 4,299
Profit / (Loss) after tax 10,869 44) (7,740) - 3,085
For the nine months erded 31 December 2023
Other Information
Real estate Power Unallocable Inter segment Total
Particulars distribution elimination
Segment assets 223715 1,700 9,492 236,907
Segment liabilitics 12.305 1.341 72,244 - 85,890
'Capitel expenditire 8411 8 i 8,419
| Depreciation & amortisation - 2819 68 - | ' 2.887
For the yvear eanded 31 March 2023
Otber Information
! Real estate i Power , Unallecable ‘ Inter segment | Total _:
|Pacticuiars - distribution | | elimination | |
Segment asselts 219012 | 1.795 6,424 227231
Segment liabilities 11,526 683 38238 ‘ 71,449
Capital expenditure 7.263 3 - | - 7,266
Depreciation & amortisation 3.460 | 94 | 3.554

Secondary segment information

Mindspace Group's operations are based in India and therefore the Group has only one geographical segment - India

Segment accounting policies are in line with accounting policies of the Mindspace Group. In addition, the following specific accounting policies have been followed for

segment reporting:

Segment revenue includes income directly attributable to the segment

Revenue and expenses directly attributable to segments are reported under respective reportable segment

Revenue and expenses which are not attributable or allocable to segments have been disclosed under 'Unallocable’

Borrowings and finance cost of the Group which are not attributable or allocable to segments have been disclosed under 'Unallocable’




MINDSPACE BUSINESS PARKS REIT
RN:IN/REIT/19-20/003

Cond dC lidated Interim Fi ial
Notes to Accounts

(All amounts in Rs. million unless otherwise stated)

Q "

47 Non-controlling interest

As at 31 December 2023

For the Quarter ended
31 December 2023

Name of the entity Net assets Share in total comprehensive income

As a % of consolidated Amount As a % of consolidated

net assets total comprehensive
Amount
income
Parent
Mindspace Business Parks REIT 94.9% 143,353 93.9% 1,378
SPVs
Intime Properties Limited 1.1% 1,665 1.4% 21
K. Raheja 1T Park (Hyderabad) Limited 14% 2,062 1.1% 16
Sundew Properties Limited - 264 3.037 3% 52
Consolidated net ussets/ lota! comprehensive income o 100% a7 100%, 1467
For the quarter ended
2
As at 30 September 2023 30 September 2023

Name of the entity Net assets Share in total comprehensive income

As a % of consolidated Amount As a % of consolidated

et asseis total c?mprehenswe Amount
income
Parent B ) ) o -
Mindspace Business Parks REIT 94 9% 144,816 93.8% 1,412
SPVs
Intime Properties Limited 1,677 14%
K. Raheja [T Park (Hyderabad) Limited 2,086 L1%
Sund v Proverties SIS 3 3,983 I 1Y 4" -
et Fotn) compreh 152,567 I

As at 31 December 2022

For the Quarter ended
31 December 2022

Name of the entity R Net assets ___ Share in total comprelicnsive income
As a %, of consolidated Amount As a % of consolidated
net assets total comprehensive
Amouat
mecome

Pareat - o ' i o o

Mindspace Business Parks RET [ 94.8% 150,969 9 6% 4,159
SPVs

Tutime Properties Limited 1.1% 1,694 2.1% 26
K. Raheja IT Park (Hyderabad) Limited 1.6% 2,519 2.1% 27
Sundew Propertics Limited 2.5% 4,036 4.2% 33
Consolidated net assets/ Total comprehensive income 1M 159,218 100%: 1,265

As at 31 December 2023

For the nine months ended
31 December 2023

Name of the entity Net assets

Share in total comprehensive income

_As a % of consolidated Amount As a % of consolidated Amount
net assets total comprehensive
income

Parent T

Mindspace Business Parks REIT 94.9% 143,353 93.6% 4,065
SPVs

Intime Properties Limited 1.1% 1,665 1.5% 65
K. Raheja IT Park (Hyderabad) Limited 14% 2,062 1.2% 51
Sundew Properties Limited 2.6% 3.937 3.0% 161
Consolidated net assets/ Total comprehensive income 100% 151,017 100% ) 4342




As at 31 December 2022

For the nine months ended

31 December 2022

Name of the entity Share in total comprehensive income
As a % of consolidated Amount As a % of
net assets consolidated total
. Amount
comprehensive
income
Parent
Mindspace Business Parks REIT 94.8% 150,969 91.4% 3,126
SPVs
Intime Properties Limited 1.1% 1,694 22% 76
K. Raheja IT Park (Hyderabad) Limited 1.6% 2,519 1.9% 66
Sundew Properties Limited 2.5% 4,036 4.5% 154
Consolidated net assets/ Total comprehensive income 100% 159,218 100% 3422
As at 31 March 2023 For the year ended
31 March 2023
Name of the entity Share in total comprehensive income
As a % of consolidated Amount As a % of
net assets consolidated total
. Amount
comprehensive
income
Parent
Mindspace Business Parks REIT 94.9% 147,827 91.9% 2,830
SPVs
Intime Properties Limited 1.1% 1,688 33% 103
K Raheja IT Park (Hyderabad) Limited 1.5% 2,271 (1.6%) (49)
Sundew Properties Limited 2.5% 3,996 6 4% 196
Consolidated net assets/ Total comprehensive income 100% 155,782 100% 3.079

(1) Intime Properties Limited

Summarised balance sheet

Particulars As at As at
31 December 2023 31 March 2023

Non-current assets 14,512 14,542
Current assets 1,604 1,658
Non-current liabilities (166) (155)
Current liabilities (814) (704)
Net asscts 15,136 15,341
NCT holdings 11.0% 11.0%
Carrying amount of Non-controlling interests 1,665 1,688

The following table summarises the financial information relating to subsidiaries which have material Non-controlling interest
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MINDSPACE BUSINESS PARKS REIT

RN:IN/REIT/19-20/003
Condensed Consolidated Interim Financial Statements
Notes to Accounts
(All amounts in Rs. million unless otherwise stated)

48 Related party disclosures
A Parties to Mindspace REIT as at 31 December 2023 (Refer Note 1)

SL No Particulars

1]

o 00~

10

13

Trustee

Manager

Sponsors

Sponsors Group

Sponsors Group

Name of Entities

Axis Trustee Services Limited

K Raheja Corp Investment Managers Private Limited (formerly
known as K Raheja Corp Investment Managers LLP)***

Anbee Constructions LLP

Cape Trading LLP

Mr Chandru L Raheja
Mr Ravi C Raheja
Mr Neel C Raheia
Mrs Jvoti C Raheia
Ms Sumati Raheia

Capstan Trading LLP

Casa Maria Properties LLP

Raghukool Estate Developement LLP

Palm Shelter Estate Development LLP

K Raheja Corp Pnivate Limited

Promoters/Partners*

Axis Bank Limited**

Mr Ravi C Raheja
Mr Neel C Raheja

Mr Ravi C Raheja
Mr Neel C Raheja
Mr Chandru L Raheja
Mrs Jyoti C Raheja
Ms Sumati Raheja

Mr Ravi C Raheja
Mr Neel C Raheja
Mr Chandru L Raheja
Mrs Jyoti C Raheja

Mr Ravi C Raheja
Mr Neel C Raheja
Mr Chandru L Raheja
Mrs Jyoti C Raheja

Mr Ravi C Raheja
Mr Neel C Raheja
Mr Chandru L Raheja
Mrs Jyoti C Raheja

Mr Ravi C Raheja
Mr Neel C Raheja
Mr Chandru L. Raheja
Mrs Jyoti C Raheja

Mr Ravi C Raheja
Mr Neel C. Raheja
Mr Chandrv L Raheja
Mrs Jyoti C Raheja

Mr Chandru L. Raheja Jointly with
Mrs Jyoti C Raheja

Mrs Jyoti C Raheja Jointly with
Mr Chandru L Raheja

Mr Ravi C Raheja Jointly with
Mr Chandru L Raheja Jointly with
Mrs Jyoti C Raheja

Mr. Neel C Raheja Jointly with
Mr Chandru L Raheja Jointly with
Mrs Jyoti C Raheja

Anbee Constructions LLP

Cape Trading LLP

Capstan Trading LLP

Casa Maria Properties LLP
Raghukool Estate Developement LLP
Palm Shelter Estate Development LLP
Mr Neel C Raheja Jointly with

Mr Ramesh M Valecha

Directors

Ms Deepa Rath

Mr Rajesh Kumar Dahiya
Mr Ganesh Sankaran

Mr Ravi C Rahejawef.
July 7, 2023

Mr Neel C Rahejaw.ef.
July 7, 2023

Mr Deepak Ghaisas w e f.
July 11, 2023

Mr Bobby Parikh w e f.
July 11,2023

Ms Manisha Girotra w.e f.
July 11, 2023

Mr Manish Kejriwal we f.
July 11,2023

Mr Vinod Rohira

w e f. September 1, 2023

Ravi C Raheja
Neel C Raheja
Ramesh Valecha
Ramesh Ranganthan
Sunil Hingorani



Chandru L Raheja

Jyoti C Raheja

Ivory Properties & Hotels Pvt Ltd
15 Ivory Property Trust Ravi C Raheja

Neel C. Raheja

(all are trustees)

Mr Ravi C Raheja Jointly with Ravi C Raheja
Mr Chandru L Ralheja Jointly with Neel C Raheja
Sponsors Grou
P P Mrs Jyoti C Raheja Ramesh Valecha

Ramesh Ranganthan
Mr Neel C Raheja Jointly with
Mr Chandru L Raheja Jointly with
Mrs Jyoti C Raheja
Chandru L Raheja jointly with Jyoti C Raheja,
for and on behalf of beneficiaries of Ivory
Property Trust

16 Genext Hardware & Parks Pvt Ltd

Avacado Properties and Trading (India)
Private Limited

Gigaplex Estate Private Limited
Horizonview Properties Private Limited
KRC Infrastructure and Projects Private
Limited

[ntime Properties Limited

Sundew Properties Limited

K Raheja IT Park (Hyderabad) Limited
Mindspace Business Parks Private Limited

17 Names of SPVs/subsidiaries

00~ W

Mr Deepak Ghaisas (Independent Member)
Ms Manisha Girotra (Independent Member)
Mr Bobby Parikh (Independent Member)
Mr Manish Kejriwal (Independent Member)
Board of Directors/Governing Mr Ravi C Raheja (Non Executive Non Independent Member)
Mr Neel C Raheja (Non Executive Non Independent Member)

Board ~ and = Key ~Managerial Mr Vinod Rohira w e f. September 1, 2023 (Non Executive Non
18 Personnel of the Manager (K
Independent Member)

Raheja Corp Investment Managers
Private Limited)***

Mr Ramesh Nair (Chief Executive Officer) w e f. September I,
2023

M1 Vmod Rohira (Chiel Executive Oflicer) Gill August 31, 2023
Ms Preeti Chheda (Chief Financial Officer)

Brookfields Agro & Development Private Limited
Grange Hotels And Properties Private Limited
Immense Properties Private Limited
Entities controlled/jointly Novel Properties Private Limited
controlled by members of Pact Real Estate Private Limited
Governing Board/Key Managerial Paradigm Logistics & Distribution Private Limited

Personnel of the manager Aqualine Real Estate Private Limited
K Raheja Corp Real Estate Private Limited (Formerly known as
"Feat Properties Private Limited") (till 8th August 2023)
Canin Properties Private Limited
Asterope Properties Private Limited
Content Properties Private Limited
Gencoval Strategic Services Private Limited
Stemade Biotech Private Limited
Hariom Infrafacilities Services Private Limited
K Raheja Corp Advisory Services (Cyprus) Private Limited
Convex Properties Private Limited
M/s Bobbv Parikh & Associates

Relative of Board of Directors and
20 Key Managerial Personnel of the  Meera Rolira (Wife of Mr Vinod Rohira)

Manager .
King

oilte
SHEES

C s

* only when acting collectively

** Axis Bank Limited, being a promoter of Axis Trustee Services Limited (“Trustee™), trustee to Mindspace Business Parks REIT, also a Debenture Trustee regulated by SEBI, is considered
as a related party of Mindspace REIT in line with the SEBI REIT Regulations based on recent directions from SEBI dated 12 June 2023

***+ K Raheja Corp Investment Managers LLP (Manager) is converted into a private company as per Rule 5 of Companies (Authorised to Register) Rules 2014 Since the Manager has
received approval for the conversion effective July 07, 2023, The Manager, therefore, stands converted into a private company i e , K Raheja Corp Investment Managers Private Limited
effective July 07, 2023
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48 Related party disclosures

B. Related parties with whom the transactions have taken place during the period / year

Particulars

For the quarter ended
31 December 2023
(Unaudited)*

For the quarter ended
30 September 2023
(Unaudited)*

For the quarter ended
31 December 2022
(Unaudited)*

For the nine months ended
31 December 2023
{Unaudited)

For the nine months
ended 31 December 2022
(Unaudited)

For year ended
31 March 2023
(Audited)

Property M. Fee and Support Services Fee

K Raheja Corp [nvestment Managers Private Limited

(formerly known as K Raheja Corp [nvestment Managers

LLP)

Investment Management Fees
K Raheja Corp Investment Managers Private Limited

(formerly known as K Raheja Corp Investment Managers

LLP)

Trustee fee expenses
Axis Trustee Services Limited

Legal & professional fees
M/s Bobby Parikh and Associates

Leasing Income/related recoveries
Axis Bank Limited***

Sitting Fees
Neel C Raheja
Ravi C Raheja
Vinod N Rohira
Preeti Chheda

Reimbursement of Exp
K Raheja Carp Investment Managers Private Limited

(formerly known as K Raheja Corp Investment Managers

LLP)*

Maintenance Services
Meera Rohira

Security Deposits Received
Axis Bank Limited

Repayment of Security Deposits
K Raheja Corp Private Limited
Axis Bank Limited

Sale of Asset
K Raheja Corp Private Limited
Asterope Properties Private Limited

Material purchase
Ivory Properties & Hotels Pvt Ltd

Overdraft Drawn**
Axis Bank Limited

Overdraft Repaid=*
Axis Bank Limited
Fixed Deposit Placed
Axis Bank Limited

Fixed Deposit Redeemed
Axis Bank Limited

Interest Income on Fixed Deposit
Axis Bank Limited

Term Loan Repaid

Axis Bank Limited

Interest Expense (Including capitalised)
Axis Bank Limited

Bank Charges and Commission
Axis Bank Limited

113

17

16

12

12,102
12,378

128

1,076
94

2

138

11,333

11,514

354

133

41

Qo oo

6,168

6,031

413

391

144

2

386

51

153

37,787

36,880

526

589

3,631

273

4

370

51

142

oo oo

21,361

20,643

1322

1,428

318

430

6

498

67

209

- O O O

28,669

28,966

1,686

1,677

431

568

8

*Includes fees paid to M/s Bobby Pankh & Associates for the quarter ended 31 December 2023 is Nil, 0 mullion for the quarter ended 30 September 2023, Rs 0 million for the quarter ended 31 December 2022, Rs
0 mullion for the nine months ended 31 December 2023, Rs 0 mullion for the nine months ended 31 December 2022 and Rs 0 mullion for the year ended 31 March 2023

**Considering constant movements in the overdraft balances during the period, to ascertain the incremental borrowing for compliance under SEBI REIT Regulations, the maximum overdraft balance during the
period reduced by balance of overdraft at the beginning of the relevant period 1s being considered However, for disclosure in the financial statements, the disclosure is done based on the cumulative transactions
durng the reporting periods and accordingly, gross numbers of overdraft facihity availed and repaid are presented

*** Includes ind as adjustments
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48
C.

Related party disclosures

Balances as at the period end

Particulars As on
31 December 2023

Ason
31 March 2023

Other Receivable
K Raheja Corp Investment Managers Private Limited (formerly known as =
K Raheja Corp Investment Managers LLP)

Trade Payables

Meera Rohira 0
M/s Bobby Parikh and Associates 0
Axis Bank Limited 4
K Raheja Corp Investment Managers Private Limited (formerly known as

K Raheja Corp Investment Managers LLP) 45
Sitting Fees Payable

Neel C.Raheja 0
Ravi C.Raheja 0
Preeti Chheda =
Vinod N Rohira -
Other Financial Liabilities

K Raheja Corp Investment Managers Private Limited (formerly known as

K Raheja Corp [nvestment Managers LLP) 17
Other Liabilities

K Raheja Corp Investment Managers Private Limited (formerly known as

K Raheja Corp Investment Managers LLP) 26
Security Deposit

Axis Bank Limited 77
Co-Sponsor Initial Corpus

Anbee Constructions LLP 0
Cape Trading LLP 0
Bank Balance (Including Escrow and Dividend Account)**

Axis Bank Limited 3,327
Overdraft Balance

Axis Bank Limited 1,322
Fixed Deposit Balance

Axis Bank Limited 155
Interest Receivable on Fixed Deposit

Axis Bank Limited 1
Term Loan

Axis Bank Limited* 2,655
Trade Receivable

Axis Bank Limited -
Non-Fund Based Facilities

Axis Bank Limited 463

* Includes ind as adjustments
** Includes Book overdraft balances

o

S O OO

18

74

3,276

464

218

392
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50

51A

51B

52

53

54

King

55

a) The figures for the quarter ended 31 December 2023 are the derived figures between the figures in respect of the nine months
ended 31 December 2023 and the figures for the half year ended 30 September 2023, which are subjected to limited review.

b) The figures for the quarter ended 31 December 2022 are the derived figures between the figures in respect of the nine months
ended 31 December 2022 and the figures for the half year ended 30 September 2022, which were subjected to limited review.

c) The figures for the quarter ended 30 September 2023 are the derived figures between the figures in respect of the half year
ended 30 September 2023 and the figures for the quarter ended 30 June 2023, which are subjected to limited review.

During the previous year, KRIT had proposed to redevelop Buildings 7 and 8 at Mindspace, Madhapur, Hyderabad (forming part
of Group’s “Real estate” segment) as these were expected to be vacated by the tenant by March 2023. Vacation of these buildings
provides the Company an opportunity to evaluate the possibility of redevelopment which would potentially increase the area of the
building, help incorporating new upgraded facilities, enhance the marketability of the buildings and also offer future consolidation
opportunities to existing tenants in the Park with continuity and growth. Basis the assessment by the SPV of the opportunity and
concurrence from the Telangana State Industrial Infrastructure Corporation Ltd. (TSIIC) vide its letter dated March 13, 2023, the
SPV proposed to redevelop the said buildings subject to the receipt of statutory approvals & clearances as may be required for the
proposed redevelopment. Accordingly, the Group has charged the written down value of the said buildings, infrastructure plant
and machinery as at March 31, 2023 amounting to Rs. 1,297 million to the Condensed Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss
and considered the same as an Exceptional Item for the year ended March 31, 2023.

During the previous year, An impairment loss of Rs. 72 million related to GIS substation asset at Gigaplex Airoli forming part of
Group’s “Real estate” segment. The impairment charge arose due to technological obsolescence of asset and therefore,
impairment loss has been considered for the carrying value of the asset and considered the same as an Exceptional Item for the
year ended March 31, 2023,

Intime has received show cause notice during the previous year from the Jurisdictional GST Authority for the periods beginning
July 2017 to March 2020 for not considering charging of GST, on the recovery of utilities being electricity, water and DG back-up
power provided to tenants, amounting to Rs. 100 million. The Management, after due consultation with the Consultant, is of the
view that the charges towards electricity and DG back-up power are incurred in the capacity of a ‘pure agent’ as covered under
Rule 33 of CGST Rules, 2017 and also such supplies are exempt as per the Exemption Notification and hence to be excluded from
the value of taxable supply. The Management had filed its detailed response to the show cause notice. Based on the facts of the
case and the provisions of the GST law, no provision has been made w.r.t. recovery of electricity and DG back-up power.

Considering the weak micro market dynamics and no immediate demand visibility, the Board of Directors of the Manager, at its
meeting held on January 29, 2024 approved initiation of the process of sale of Mindspace Pocharam, comprising all piece and
parcel of land admeasuring approximately 26 acres along with the structures thereon located at Mindspace Pocharam, Telangana
for the Asset. An active program for sale will be in place. On conclusion of the process, a detailed proposal shall be placed before
the Board for its consideration and approval. This investment property is part of “Real Estate” segment of the Group.

Gigaplex, one of the SPV’s of Mindspace REIT, has received notice dated 11th December 2023 (“Demand Notice”) issued by
MIDC demanding differential premium of Rs.528 million on account of change in shareholding pattern i.e. participation of the
Company into the Mindspace REIT. The group is of the view that any such demand is not payable. The Company had sent
intimation to MIDC of the participation by the Company into Mindspace REIT (“Transaction”) on 15th July 2020 (i.e. pre-
Transaction) and also on 5th October 2020 (i.e. post-Transaction) and also explained in detail the rationale why such Transaction
to be treated as a ‘Formal Transfer’ under the circulars issued by MIDC and only a standard transfer fee is payable which
| be a nominal amount only and not such a large amount as per the Demand Notice. The Company has sent its response to the
Notice on 2nd January 2024 and once again reiterated its aforesaid position and thus the demand for differential premium
and unwarranted and has requested MIDC, inter alia, to withdraw/revoke the Demand Notice. In this regard, the
has been legally advised that under the MIDC Circulars issued with respect to the change in shareholding of any lessee
of MIDC, which Circulars are also referred to in the REIT Circular issued by MIDC, as long as the natural persons
belonging to the same family holding directly or indirectly in the lessee company by reckoning the shareholding within the
shareholding entity does not fall below 51% post transfer of shares of the lessee company as compared to the position prior to the
transfer of shares, the transfer premium payable will be a nominal sum being treated as a Formal Transfer under the MIDC
In pursuance of REIT acquiring entire shareholding of a Company, the position with respect to satisfying the said 51%
is fully satisfied and the Company has furnished substantial evidence and documents in support of the same to MIDC.
in Group’s view there is no such premium payable as demanded by MIDC except a nominal transfer premium as a
Transfer for which the Company has made provision of Rs. 6 million in the books of account. The Company is also in the
of obtaining a written legal opinion to support Company’s aforesaid contentions. Considering pendency in the disposal of

matter, in management’s view, no further provision is presently required to be made in the consolidated financial statements.

"0" represents value less than Rs. 0.5 million.
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